NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD MEETING

Thursday, June 21, 2018
Zia Board Room — Library

1:30 pm
AGENDA
. Welcome Pat Chappelle
. Adoption of Agenda Pat Chappelle
. Approval of Minutes of May 17, 2018 Pat Chappelle
. President’s Report Kelvin Sharp
. Special Presentation from Nor-Lea Hospital District David Shaw
. New Business
1. Monthly Expenditure Reports Dan Hardin
2. Monthly Revenue Report Dan Hardin
3. Oil and Gas Revenue Report Dan Hardin
4. Schedule of Investments Dan Hardin
5. Consideration of the Annual Board Policy Manual Revisions Kelvin Sharp
6. Consideration of the Annual Fixed Asset Inventory Certification Josh Morgan
7. Consideration of Disposal of Del Norte Center Inventory Josh Morgan
. Public Comments Pat Chappelle
. Announcement of Next Meeting Pat Chappelle

Adjournment Pat Chappelle



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD MEETING
MAY 17, 2018
MINUTES

The New Mexico Junior College Board met on Thursday, May 17, 2018, beginning at
1:30 p.m. in the Zia Room of Pannell Library. The following members were present: Ms.
Patricia Chappelle, Madam Chair; Mr. Ron Black, Secretary; Mr. Travis Glenn; Mrs.
Mary Lou Vinson; and Mr. Hector Baeza. Mr. Manny Gomez and Ms. Evelyn Rising
were absent.

Ms. Chappelle called the meeting to order and welcomed visitors and guests present: Ms.
Dorothy Fowler, Hobbs News-Sun and Mr. Nick Maxwell.

Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Baeza, the Board unanimously approved
to table Agenda item E.10. Consideration of Bid #1085 for Drainage Improvements.

Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Black, the agenda was unanimously
adopted, as amended.

Mr. Glenn submitted a request to amend the minutes of April 19, 2018, under the
President’s Report to read “Shyla McGill enthusiastically provided an update of the Pi
Day event”. Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mrs. Vinson, the Board
unanimously approved the amendment as requested.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Vinson, seconded by Mr. Glenn, the Board unanimously
approved the minutes of April 19, 2018, as amended.

Under President’s Report, Mrs. Kathleen Ferrell, Director of Adult Basic Education
(ABE), provided updates of the Adult Education Program. She stated ABE offers two
services at no cost to the students. The High School Equivalent (HSE) Certificate with
classes in reading, math, and language, and English as a Second Language (ESL). She
reported for the current 2017-18 FY, the ABE program has served 476 students to date
ranging from the ages of 16 through 84, served by eight part time teachers. Programs are
run at the Hobbs Literacy Center, the Lovington Youth Center and Jefferson Elementary
in Lovington. With a recent change in regulations shifting the emphasis from “head



count” to “completer”, ABE looked at other programs across the state and changed from
immediate enrollment of students to a rigorous registration with an orientation process.
With this change, retention rates have grown from 30% in 2013/2014 to 82% current.
ABE’s success is now measured by students who not only complete HSE or ESL but by
the number of students who continue into post-secondary education training/certificate
programs or enter into employment. Another component ABE added was to partner with
Workforce Solutions, NMJC Training & Outreach programs as well as post-secondary
entry. Mrs. Ferrell thanked the board for their continued support of the program.

Mrs. Cathy Mitchell, Vice President for Student Services, provided a Graduation Report.
She reported of the 314 students who applied for graduation, 230 students walked across
the stage and participated in the commencement exercises. She further reported
approximately 1,200 family and friends were in attendance to cheer on the graduates. Of
the 314 students that applied, 48 applied for Associates of Applied Science, 116 applied
for Associates of Arts, 75 applied for Associates of Science, 41 received certificates and
15 were HSE students. She further noted students who applied and are still in the process
of completing their classes for various reasons, are not included in this report.

Under New Business, Dan Hardin presented the April 2018 financial reports. Upon a
motion by Mr. Glenn, seconded by Mr. Baeza, the Board unanimously approved the
Expenditure Report for April 2018. In addition, the Revenue Report, Oil and Gas
Revenue Report, and Schedule of Investments Report were reviewed.

Mr. Dan Hardin presented the proposed capital projects for the Five Year Capital Plan.
The plan identified five projects as priorities, they are ranked and have descriptions and
estimated costs. Recommendation was for the Watson Hall Renovations to be listed as
the number one project and Infrastructure Improvements on the campus to be listed as the
number two project. Upon a motion by Mrs. Vinson, seconded by Mr. Glenn, the board
unanimously approved the Five Year Capital Plan as presented.

Mr. Scotty Holloman, General Counsel & Executive Director of Administrative Services,
presented a recommendation for Disposal of Real Property and Disposal of Personal
Property at Del Norte Center. Mr. Holloman recommended sealed bids for the sale of the
Del Norte Center real property and requested permission for administration to determine
the best method to dispose of the personal property located in the Del Norte Center.
Upon a motion Mr. Black, seconded by Mr. Glenn, the Board unanimously approved the
sale of the Del Norte real property by sealed bids. Upon a motion by Mr. Glenn,



seconded by Mrs. Vinson, the Board unanimously approved for administration to
determine the best method to dispose of the Del Norte personal property.

Mr. Scotty Holloman presented a Resolution for the Lea County Legislative Coalition
formed between the Town of Tatum, City of Lovington, City of Hobbs, City of Eunice,
City of Jal, Tatum School District, Lovington School District, Hobbs Municipal Schools,
Eunice School District, Jal School District, NMJC, Lea County and The Economic
Development Corporation of Lea County. The Lea County Legislative Coalition will
provide its members with opportunities to communicate, coordinate, support one another
on issues of mutual concern and to advocate for one another. Upon a motion by Mr.
Glenn, seconded by Mr. Black, the Board unanimously approved to adopt the Resolution
as presented.

Mr. Scotty Holloman presented a Quitclaim Deed to transfer donated property known as
the Huston Property to the NMJC Foundation. Mr. Holloman noted the property deeded
to NMJC approximately 10 years ago should have been deeded to the NMJC Foundation.
The Quitclaim Deed will accomplish the cleanup of the record title of the property. Upon
a motion by Mrs. Vinson, seconded by Mr. Glenn, the Board unanimously approved the
Quitclaim Deed as presented.

Ms. Chappelle called for comments from the public. There being none, the next regular
board meeting was scheduled for Thursday, June 21, 2018, beginning at 1:30 pm.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Vinson, seconded by Mr. Baeza, the board meeting adjourned at
2:30 pm.

Pat Chappelle, Chair Ron Black, Secretary



New Mexico Junior College

. . . . Wi
New Mexico’s first independent community college AN




--------- .

.
N\ S

.-'-/

Q’ HIGHER LEARNING COMMISSION ( seachsie o

About HLC ~  Accreditation ~ Policies ~ Publications ~ PeerReview ~ Programsand Events ~  Student Resources ~ &

# | Accreditation | Maintain Accreditation | Using the Assurance System | Assurance System Samples

Assurance System Samples Related Policies

and Procedures

HLC provides the following Assurance System demonstration sites for institutions that are preparing s Assurance Review

for an upcoming review. They are intended to help institutions become familiar with the Assurance
System and provide examples of how evidence may be organized and linked in the Assurance > Systems Portfolio and

Argument or Systems Portfolio. Appraisal

Please note: > Comprehensive

Evaluation

>  The demonstration sites are available with “read only” access. Users will not be able to edit
> Standard Pathway

any text or files, or add additional users.

> Although users are free to take notes about how the sites are organized, please respect the > AQIP Pathway

intellectual property of the institutions that have volunteered to provide their materials. By
. . ) . _ >  Open Pathway
Slide 2 logging into these demonstration sites, the user agrees not to print, export, copy, save,

photograph or otherwise reproduce content from these sites. > Criteria for




HIGHER LEARNING COMMISSION Search Site “

\/

About HLC ~  Accreditation ~ Policies ~  Publications ~ PeerReview - Programsand Events ~  Student Resources ~ &

The password for all demonstration sites is accreditation.

Institution Username

Blue Ridge Community and Technical College
Standard Pathway

Marian University

Open Pathway
Questions?

Marshall University

Open Pathway

New Mexico Junior College

Open Pathway

Ohio Christian University
Standard Pathway

Slide 3 Tohono O'odham Community College
Standard Pathway



Slide 4

2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

NMJC Credit Hour Enrollment

Annual

SCH  FallSCH FallHDCT SCH/Stu. WTI PPB

56,717 24767 3,119 7.9

54240 25469 3,329 7.7

54387 24,760 3,022 8.2 v
y N

54729 25566 2,678 9.5

51224 24076 2,459 9.8




NMJC Overall Graduation Rate

Source: IPEDS Reporting and IPEDS Cohort
30

25
20
15
10
5
0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

M JC IPEDS Cohort
Slide 5



NMJC Retention Rate: Fulltime Students

Source IPEDS Reporting and IPEDS Cohort

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HJC IPEDS Cohort

80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

Slide 6



NMJC and NM Public Education:

A partnership for students

For example,
in 2016, 473 students graduated from Hobbs High School —

Hobbs High Graduates in 2016

Enrolled in College 323 (68.3%)
 The number staying in-state 302 (93.5%)
e Attending NMIJC 274 (84.8%)
e Attending other NM schools 28

Slide 7



NMJC Non-Credit Workforce Training

Students Companies Contact Lea Co. Program
Served Hrs. Unempl. Rank
2013-14 4,336 269 47,957 4.3% #1
2014-15 3,333 244 61,051 4.3% #2
2015-16 2,020 229 34,563 8.0% #2

2016-17 2,027 239 40,609 7.9% #3

Slide 8



NMJC Workforce Training:

Common topics

* Oil and Gas Safety Training

* CDL Training

* Face-to-face medical training (Clinical Medical Assist, EMT, etc.)
* Soft Skills Training (Leadership, MS Office, Communication)

* Instrumentation and Controls

* Lease Pumper Training

Slide 9



Training for Jobs

Credit and non-credit programs

Program 17-18 Enroll Job Growth Ave. Salary Employment Rate
Automotive 52 +43% S43,777 100%
Nursing 80 +6.4% 576,799 100%

Law Enforcement 74 +8.5% $60,942 100%
Welding 61 -14.8% $65,990 90-100%
Cosmetology 83 -34% 528,364 80-90%
Entertain. Tech. In development +200% $32,151

Equine — Vet Tech In development +18.6% §23,851

Diesel Tech. In development +64.3% $64,863

Salary and industry data for Lea County, NM from EMSI

Slide 10



NMJC Financial Condition

Careful management in a fluctuating economy

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17
Op. Revenue 29,863,894 35,223,251 33,695,565 31,319,972 34,819,567
|1&G Expense 20,319,150 22,808,637 24,038,820 25,273,193 26,011,825
Other Expense 5,046,832 6,087,010 5,789,547 5,582,992 5,928,017
Op. Expense 25,365,982 28,895,647 29,828,367 30,856,185 31,939,842
Net Inc. (loss) 4,497,912 6,327,604 3,867,198 463,787 2,879,725

Slide 11




NMJC Operating Budget for FY17

State Funding 6,220.556 19% Instruction 10,840,335

Local Mill & Gas 18,120,361 57% Academic Support 2,833,171

Tuition & Fees 3,928,828 12% Student Services 3,327,952

Auxiliary Enter. 2,879,839 9% Institutional Support 5,018,051

Other Revenues 790,258 1% Op & Maintenance 3,992,316
Total Operating 31,939,842 Other Operations 18.6%

Public Service 173,196

Internal Service 230,822

Instit. Student Aid 686,390

Auxil. Enterprises 2,579,012

Intercollegiate Athletics 1,581,870

Renewals and Replace. 676,727

Slide 12 Total 31,939,842




NMJC Infrastructure Maintenance

FY Project Cost GOB STB Institutional
Electrical service 2009 $1.85 million $1.171 million S679 k
Central Plant Upgrade 2009 $5.01 million S3.5 million $1.51 million
Roof Replacement 2010 $4.09 million $3 million $1.09 million
Tunnel Upgrades/ 2013 $5.8 million $3.3 million S1 million $1.5 million
Electrical/Air Handlers
HVAC/Fire/Plumbing 2019 $3.34 million S2.5 million S840 k
GOB for Nov 2018
Totals $20.1 million $9.3 million S5.17 million S5.63 million

Slide 13




Thank you for your support of higher education



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Finance

To: New Mexico Junior College Board Members
From: Dan Hardin

Date: June 15, 2018

RE: Expenditure and Revenue Reports for May 2018

The total year-to-date funds expended and/or encumbered through the month of May is
$43,554,918.00.

Board members, the budget numbers on the Expenses Report have been updated to
match what was sent to the HED the end of May. The increases reflect the one time
comps, overload salaries, part-time faculty salaries, changes in employee salary hired
during the year, budget transfers from Dean’s departments to instructional departments,
and the many other changes to the original budget during the fiscal year. Most of the
changes are in the salary and benefit accounts. The Board approves the budgets for
overloads and part-time faculty, as the faculty sign their Special Comp agreements to
teach classes we move that budget to the department where the part-time or overload
is expensed. In Athletics we do not budget for post season travel, so we must adjust
the athletic budget to cover those expenses. Finally, adjustments are made in Student
Aid to cover any shortfall for tuition and senior waivers.

The total current unrestricted fund expenditures through May are $25,490,012.00,
which is 85% of the budget. The expenditures in Instruction and General through May
are $19,779,677.00, which is 85% of the budget. As you look at the comparison of
Instruction and General in 2017 as compared to Instruction and General in 2018 there
is a large difference, this is because in 2018 New Horizons Resources was moved from
I&G into Research in a separate fund. Total Current Unrestricted funds totals are
comparable between 2017 and 2018.

Restricted funds for the year are $4,917,965.00. The Grants are doing a good job of
staying on track with their spending and reporting. Financial Aid has been working
closely with the Business Office to get all awards completed and funds drawn.

Plant funds are showing $13,146,941.00 in total expenditures and encumbrances
through the month of May. The large projects are the Entertainment Technology
Project, Technology Upgrades, and Dorm Refurbishing and various other smaller
projects. BR&R and ER&R are below budget at the end of May.



Total year-to-date expenditures through May 2018 are $43,554,918.00.

Total Revenue through May 2018 is $39,412,227.00. Unrestricted revenue is at
$32,773,153.00 year-to-date. We are expecting another large property tax distribution
from the Lea County Treasurer in June. Auxiliary income is up as compared to where
we were at this time last year.

Restricted funds will be drawn down as much as possible by the end of June.

Total revenue at the end of May including Plant fund revenue is $39,412,277.

The College received $1,364,798 in Oil and Gas revenue in May, which was for the
month of February. There will be four more months of Oil and Gas revenue to receive
that will be posted in the FY 18 fiscal year.

As of the end of May, NMJC has $11,593,127.00 in the LGIP fund, $3,000,000.00 in
CDAR’s and there are $15,228,293.75 in designated capital projects.

This concludes the Financial Report for May 2018.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Expenditure Report

May 2018
92% of Year Completed
2016-17 2017-18
Year-to-Date Percentage Current Percentage
Final Expended or of Budget Expended or Expended or of Budget
Fund Budget Encumbered Expended Budget Encumbered Encumbered Expended
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Instruction 10,189,730 8,886,291 87% 10,166,487 971,145 8,561,937 84%
Academic Support 2,520,941 2,495,620 99% 2,774,752 263,982 2,424,373 87%
Student Services 1,996,717 1,849,607 93% 2,077,878 180,151 1,758,974 85%
Institutional Support 3,847,809 4,310,324 112% 4,309,260 368,383 3,501,561 81%
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 3,653,853 3,630,700 99% 3,897,199 584,264 3,532,832 91%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 22,209,050 21,172,542 95% 23,225,576 2,367,925 19,779,677 85%
Research 0 0% 1,199,186 89,140 941,997 79%
Public Service 0 0% 50,000 3,623 33,636 67%
Internal Service Departments 85,520 134,068 157% 156,534 (4,827) 143,952 92%
Student Aid 668,551 672,790 101% 668,551 24,687 508,661 76%
Auxiliary Enterprises 2,038,349 2,493,841 122% 2,847,019 191,429 2,529,077 89%
Athletics 1,191,478 1,373,142 115% 1,692,115 63,864 1,553,012 92%
Total Current Unrestricted Fund 26,192,948 25,846,383 99% 29,838,981 2,735,841 25,490,012 85%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 1,977,141 1,334,667 68% 1,977,141 73,620 781,811 40%
Student Aid 3,989,359 3,976,043 100% 3,989,359 (9,992) 4,136,154 104%
Total Current Restricted Fund 5,966,500 5,310,710 89% 5,966,500 63,628 4,917,965 82%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Projects from Institutional Funds 11,519,140 9,887,457 86% 9,723,989 303,206 8,000,210 82%
Projects from State GOB Funds 4,955,549 4,955,550 0% 3,960,000 495,989 3,960,000 100%
Projects from State STB Funds 785,072 783,277 0% 596,058 557,752 94%
Projects from General Fund 0 0% 0 1,549 39,478 0%
Projects from Private Funds 0 0% 0 0%
Projects from State ER&R 332,720 191,493 58% 332,720 15,897 104,429 31%
Projects from State BR&R 597,281 252,318 42% 597,281 49,433 485,072 81%
Subtotal - Capital and BR&R 18,189,762 16,070,095 88% 15,210,048 866,074 13,146,941 86%
Debt Service
Revenue Bonds 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Total Plant Funds 18,189,762 16,070,095 88% 15,210,048 866,074 13,146,941 86%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 50,349,210 47,227,188 94% 51,015,529 3,665,543 43,554,918 85%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Revenue Report

May 2018
92% of Year Completed
2016-17 2017-18
Percentage Percentage
Final Year-to-date of Budget Current Year-to-date of Budget
Fund Budget Revenue Received Budget Revenue Revenue Received
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Tuition and Fees 3,667,000 3,826,488 104% 3,812,000 81,542 4,021,062 105%
State Appropriations 5,982,400 5,285,859 88% 5,629,937 469,158 5,160,738 92%
Advalorem Taxes - Oil and Gas 7,235,000 9,209,122 127% 7,235,000 1,370,817 12,123,840 168%
Advalorem Taxes - Property 7,052,621 7,306,067 104% 7,700,000 1,260,911 7,386,576 96%
Interest Income 15,000 495 3% 10,000 0 2,303 23%
Other Revenues 347,984 476,489 137% 296,538 9,323 365,150 123%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 24,300,005 26,104,520 107% 24,683,475 3,191,751 29,059,669 118%
Research 0 0 0% 400,000 300,000 75%
Public Service (V] 0 0% 0 0 0%
Internal Service Departments 39,170 14,743 38% 12,500 595 7,969 64%
Auxiliary Enterprises 2,586,000 2,690,555 104% 3,031,391 117,289 2,985,245 98%
Athletics 477,300 422,500 89% 456,994 37,971 420,270 92%
Total Current Unrestricted 27,402,475 29,232,318 107% 28,584,360 3,347,606 32,773,153 115%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 1,977,141 1,388,173 70% 1,977,141 193,888 902,079 46%
Student Aid 3,989,359 3,835,490 96% 3,989,359 69,881 4,010,000 101%
Total Current Restricted 5,966,500 5,223,663 88% 5,966,500 263,769 4,912,079 82%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Projects from State GOB Funds 4,955,549 4,954,233 0% 3,960,000 1,240,109 1,240,109 31%
Projects from State STB Funds 785,072 189,014 0% 596,058 0 409,941 69%
Projects from General Fund 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Projects from Private Funds (V] (V] 0% 0 0 0%
Interest Income (LGIP) 10,000 44,305 443% 25,000 8,416 76,995 308%
Total Plant Funds 5,750,621 5,187,552 90% 4,581,058 1,248,525 1,727,045 38%
GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 39,119,596 39,643,533 101% 39,131,918 4,859,900 39,412,277 101%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Oil and Gas Revenue Report

May 2018
929%o of Year Completed
OIL GAS COMBINED
2017-18 Variance
Month of Price Lea County Price Lea County Monthly Original Over (Under)
Sales Distribution per BBL BBLs sold per MCF MCF sold Revenue Budget Budget
Actual July $41.11 7,043,447 $3.16 25,188,223 817,449 465,000 352,449
Actual August $43.06 7,085,620 $3.71 25,547,110 873,645 465,000 408,645
Actual September $44.66 7,227,236 $3.79 24,020,104 965,644 465,000 500,644
Actual October $45.76 8,509,170 $3.65 30,213,740 1,129,761 465,000 664,761
Actual November $52.12 8,315,789 $3.91 27,529,490 1,371,215 465,000 906,215
Actual December $55.74 9,059,394 $3.54 30,776,786 1,098,317 465,000 633,317
Actual January $61.57 8,776,392 $3.64 29,184,430 1,547,258 465,000 1,082,258
Actual February $60.75 8,427,721 $3.38 29,613,231 1,364,798 465,000 899,798
Accrual March 465,000 465,000 0
Accrual April 465,000 465,000 0
Accrual May 465,000 465,000 0
Accrual June 465,000 (465,000)
Y.T.D. Production Tax Revenue 10,563,087 5,580,000 4,983,087
Y.T.D. Equipment Tax Revenue 1,560,753 1,655,000 (94,247)
Total Year-to-Date Oil & Gas and Equipment Tax Revenue 12,123,840 7,235,000 4,888,840

Source: New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Schedule of Investments

929% of Year Completed

May 2018

Amount Account Interest Interest
Financial Institution Invested Number Rate Earned
State of New Mexico
Local Government Investment Pool 9,593,127 7102-1348 1.650% 8,416

Plus deposits 2,000,000
Less withdrawals

Total LGIP investments 11,593,127 8,416

Lea County State Bank CDAR 3,000,000 1.76%
Capital Project 5/31/2018
Vehicles 236,093.50
Campus Master Plan 60,000.00
Technology Upgrade 536,319.51
Smart Classrooms 200,000.00
JASI 21,912.62
WHM South Gallery 266,594.43
Baseball Field 12,867.08
Rodeo Arena 88,969.88
Infrastructure 300,000.00
Luminis Software 2,993.00
Landscaping 146,926.06
Campus Signage 120,282.62
Dorm/Apartment Refurbish 120,482.72
Campus Construction 183,157.89
Oil & Gas Training 144,149.32
Public Sector 9,227.00
Campus Security 113,495.52
Lumens Software-Distance Learng 5,000.00
Copier Replacement 60,274.00
Non-Recurring Compensation 652,169.10
Athletics 3,188.90
Student Life Programming 20,432.28
Warehouse/Cont Ed Remodel 384.00
Succession Plan 52,014.15
WHM Exhibits 54,942.87
Mansur Hall Upgrades 1,961.13
Track Upgrades 600,000.00
Driving Range Upgrades 200,000.00
McLean Hall Renovations 300,000.00
Cafeteria Upgrade 155,872.08
New Horizons Resources 450,000.00
Channel 19 Upgrade 8,115.71
FERPA & Title IX 5,610.68
Equestrian Center 3,000,000.00
Bob Moran Upgrades 54,278.07
Turf Replacement 82,781.47
WHM Titanic Exhibit 3,734.85
HVAC Software-Central Plant 200,000.00
Busing Support for Recruiting 5,872.30
HED Faculty Development 8,648.35
Caster Upgrades 500,000.00
Allied Health 6,237,748.29
Workforce Training Contingency 1,794.37

Total

15,228,293.75




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD POLICY MANUAL

Adopted
January 16, 2003

Revised
June 2115, 20187

New Mexico Junior College Board
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240 (575) 392-4510

www.nmjc.edu
NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGEBOARD POLICY MANUAL



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Policy Number
I.  MANUAL
General Provisions ...100
Il.  NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE ORGANIZATION

New Mexico Junior College Mission ...200
New Mexico Junior College Planning and Objective Development ..201

I1l.  NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD
Board Authority, Composition, Organization and Duties ...300
Board Travel ...301
Professional Development for Board Members ...302
Board Meetings ...303
Board Code of Ethics ...304

IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION
The President ...400
Evaluation of the College President ..401
Presidential Travel ...402
Executive Organization ...403
Internal Communication ...404
External Communication ...405
New Mexico Junior College Foundation ...406
Accreditation ...407

V. PERSONNEL
Requirements and Employment ...500
Employment Terms and Workloads ..501
Employment Separation ...502
Appeal Process ...503
Salary, Benefits and Advancement ...504
Staff Development ...505
Annual Goal Setting ...506
Employee Records ...507
Employee Standards of Ethics ...508
Drug-Free Workplace ...509
Sexual Harassment ...510



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Section

VI.  CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

Policy Number

Educational Programs and Services ...600
Academic Freedom ...601
Curriculum Development and Revision ...602
VIl.  STUDENT SERVICES
Student Programs and Services ...700
Admissions ..701
Registration, Tuition Charges ..702
College Credits, Articulation with Other Institutions ...703
and Graduation Requirements
Code of Student Conduct ..704
Student Complaint Process ..705
VIIl. FISCAL AND SUPPORT SERVICES
Fiscal Programs and Operations ...800
General Management ...801
Financial Reporting System ...802
Purchasing and Procurement ...803
Commercial Activities at the College (including Sales/Fundraisers)  ...804
Copyrights and Patent Ownership ...805
Cash Management ...806
Travel Approval and Reimbursement ...807
Contracts and Externally-Funded Grants ...808
IX. CAMPUS ACTIVITIES AND SECURITY
Speakers or Guests, Facility Usage and Public Events ...900
IT Use Policy ..901
Campus Safety and Security ...902
Inclement Weather Policy ...903

APPENDIX A

The Community College Act
APPENDIX B

New Mexico Junior College Organizational Chart
APPENDIX C

Format and Guidelines for Proposing New and Revised Board

Policy



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 100 Page 1 of 3
SECTION: Manual

POLICY TOPIC: General Provisions

. Title: This publication shall be known as the New Mexico Junior College Board
Policy Manual.

Il.  Purpose: The Manual represents a statement of the policies of the Board related to
the philosophy and governance of New Mexico Junior College (hereinafter
sometimes referred to as “New Mexico Junior College, NMJC or College”). The
Manual together with the 1985 Community College Act (Chapter 21, Article 13,
NMSA 1978 Amended) and other applicable state and federal laws constitute the
fundamental guideline for the administration of the College.

I1l.  Definitions: The following terms when used in the Manual shall have the meaning
herein respectively ascribed to them unless the context in which such terms are used
clearly indicates another meaning:

BOARD: The New Mexico Junior College Board.

CAMPUS: Campus of New Mexico Junior College

PRESIDENT: The Chief Administrative Officer of New Mexico Junior College
and Chief Executive to the Board.

MANUAL: New Mexico Junior College Board Policy Manual.

POLICIES: Statements of the basic philosophy which express organizational
intentions for achieving expectations, goals and objectives.

PROCEDURES: Statements identifying the course of action, series of steps,
methods, or means by which policies are implemented and
administered.

RULES: Administrative orders.
NMJCEW-MEXICO
—JUNIOR

COLLEGE OR

EEOE

COLLEGE: New Mexico Junior College-Bistrict:




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 100

V.

VI.

Page 2 of 3

Formulation and Revision of Board Policy

A.

The formulation and adoption of written policies constitute the basic method by
which the Board shall exercise its leadership in the operation of the College. The
Board delegates to the President the function of implementing the policy.

Recognizing its own function as the lawful and final authority in policy matters,
the Board accepts the principle that those who are affected by the policy shall be
involved in the formulation of such policy. The Board encourages employees and
administration to review and recommend new policies or changes of policy. A
person seeking a revision or addition shall submit it in proposed form,
unnumbered and undated, together with the justification to the President who
shall forward the change to the Board with his/her recommendation for action.
No amendments to the policy shall be made without the Board's approval.

Formulation of Administrative Procedure

A.

The Board delegates to the President the function of formulating administrative
procedures and rules under which the College shall operate. As implemented
under the president's jurisdiction, these procedures and rules shall be approved by
the Board and shall also be consistent with the policies adopted by the Board.

Administrative procedures and rules shall generally be located in detail in various
collegeCollege documents to include the College Catalog, Employee Handbook,
Student Handbook, and the Business—Office—Procedures—ManualFinancial
Services Policies and Procedures Manual.

Interpretation

A.

In the event that any provision of the Manual shall appear to be vague, indefinite,
or in conflict with other provisions hereof or with state and federal laws, the
President shall be the authority for the interpretation thereof.

If an organization referenced herein changes its name, the President shall be
authorized to have any such reference modified to reflect the organization’s
current designation without reconsideration of the Board.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 100 Page 3 of 3

VIl.  Reference Coding:

A. The Manual elements shall be designated by a numbering system as follows:

1. Section Designation: first-ef-three-digits—100:Roman Numerals

2. Policy Topic Designation: fasttwo-digits——Numbering System from 100-

900.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 200 Page | of 1
SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Organization

POLICY TOPIC: New Mexico Junior College Mission

I.  Mission

The mission of New Mexico Junior College,—is-to—provideNew-Mexico-Junior

Celege; as a comprehensive community college, is to  promotes success through
learning.

Il.  Vision
Sharing eurthe Vision of New Mexico Junior College’s mission will be achieved by

building a culture that values and promotes excellence, effectiveness, responsiveness,
access, and community involvement.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 201

Page | of 2

SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Organization
POLICY TOPIC: Planning and Objective Development

Planning Introduction

New Mexico Junior College shall be committed to a system of planning and
evaluation of outcomes as important and necessary tools for accomplishing its stated
mission. Development and maintaining a planning process to include maximum
participation from the eellegeCollege constituency has been given high priority by
the Board and administration. The purpose of the planning process is to put the
College in a better position with regard to the overall mission, to achieve stated goals
and objectives, to attain positive outcomes, and to adjust more quickly to change.

Planning Activities (partial list):

A.

Budget Plan
The annual budget allocates resources in alignment with the strategic and
operational objectives of the College.

Building Replacement and Renewal Plan
The institutional BRR Plan provides for building renewal and replacement.

Strategic Plan

The Strategic Plan is the long-range outlook that gives needed information and
direction to the esHegeCollege for growth over a five-year period. The plan is
formally updated on a five-year cycle. Progress towards objectives of the plan are
reported annually.

. Master Facility Plan

The campus Master Facility Plan provides guidance concerning management of
campus facilities and future expansion of the physical plant.

Information Technology Plan

The IT Plan is updated annually and provides guidance concerning management
of College technology. The IT Plan identifies timetables and budgets for
upgrading existing services and installation of new technologies.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 201 Page 2 of 2

F. Roofing Plan
The Roofing Plan provides a detailed analysis of all institutional roofs and the
year in which they should be replaced. The plan is updated periodically.

G. Equipment Replacement and Renewal Plan
The institutional ERR Plan provides for a replacement schedule for equipment
throughout the campus. The plan is updated annually.

H. Paving and Sealant Plan
The institutional Paving and Sealant Plan provides for periodic renewal of
campus roadways and parking lots. The plan is updated periodically.

I. Landscaping Plan
The institutional Landscaping Plan provides for ongoing and emerging trends in
landscaping and revitalization of the grounds. The plan is updated periodically.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 300 Page 1 of 4
SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board

POLICY TOPIC: Board Authority, Composition, Organization and Duties

Introduction

A.

New Mexico Junior College is governed by a seven-member board elected from
the_ New Mexico Junior College—Junior—Cellege District. The duties and
responsibilities of the Board are as outlined and stated in the Community College
Act, being Sections 21-13-1 through 21-13-25 inclusive of the New Mexico
statutes 1978 compilation as amended.

The Board evaluates proposals for the improvement of the College, its
educational programs; studies present practices of operation, and approves
policies to meet the needs of the College.

Members of the Board shall have authority only when acting together as a board
in session. The Board shall not be bound by any statement or action on the part
of any individual member of the Board, except when such statement or action is
in pursuance of specific instructions by the Board. The Board delegates to the
President the responsibilities of administering and supervising the policies and
procedures of the College.

Composition

A.

Size and Term: The New Mexico Junior College Board consists of seven (7)
members elected from single-member districts. Members are required to reside
in the districts from which elected. Any member removing his / her residence
from the district from which he / she was elected shall be deemed to have resigned
his / her position, and the vacancy created by such resignation shall be filled in
the manner provided by law and in this policy for the filling of vacancies on the
Board of a community college district. The board members shall be elected for a
term of six (6) years from JanuaryAprit 1 succeeding their election. Terms of
board members are staggered.

Elections: Elections of board members shall be held on the first Tuesday
following, the first Monday of NovemberMareh of each odd-numbered year

according to state statutes.

{ Formatted: Not Highlight

{ Formatted: Not Highlight

[ Formatted: Not Highlight




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 300 Page 2 of 4

C. Vacancies: All vacancies caused in any other manner than by the expiration of
the term of office shall be filled by appointment by the remaining members. An
individual appointed by the remaining members of the board to fill a vacancy in
office shall serve until the next community college board election, at which time
candidates shall file for and be elected to fill the vacant position to serve the
remainder of the unexpired term_in accordance with Section 21-13-8 NMSA 1978
comp.

Ill.  Organization

A. Board Officers--Designation: At its first regular meeting following the election,
the Board shall select from its members a chairperson and secretary who shall
serve in these offices until the next regular board election. After each election,
Board members shall re-organize in this manner:

1. Chairperson: The duties of the Chairperson of the Board shall be:
a. To preside regularly at board meetings;
b. To call special or emergency meetings as required or to change the time
of a regular meeting; and
¢. To perform such other duties as may be prescribed by law or by action of
the Board.
2. Secretary: The duties of the Secretary of the Board shall be:
a. To preside over board meetings in the absence of the Chairperson; and
b. To perform such other duties as the Board may prescribe.

B. The President shall serve as Chief Executive to the Board. A Board Recorder shall
be appointed for clerical assistance.
1. Chief Executive to the Board: The duties of the President shall be:

a. To provide adequate notice to board members and the public of all
meetings;

b. To call all regular meetings;

c. Toattend all board meetings except during that portion of a meeting when
his salary or performance is being discussed among members;

d. To arrange for recording of minutes of the board meetings and transmit a
copy of the previous meeting minutes to each board member before each
ensuing meeting;

e. To arrange to have the board agenda prepared; and

f. To have charge of all records, proceedings and documents of the Board.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 300 Page 3 of 4

2. Board Recorder: The duties of the Board Recorder shall be:

a. To prepare the board agenda as directed by the Chief Executive to the
Board,;

b. Torecord and prepare minutes of board meetings;

¢. To arrange for the posting of the notice for all board meetings according
to statutory requirements; and

d. Toassume such other responsibilities as shall be assigned by the President
as Chief Executive to the Board.

Duties and Responsibilities

A. The Board's primary duty is to determine the financial and educational policies
of the College. The Board shall provide for the management of the College and
the execution of policies by selecting and retaining a President for the College.

B. The Board shall have the power to fix tuition and fee rates for resident and non-
resident students of the New Mexico Junior College District eistriet; to accept
gifts to the College; to accept federal aid; to purchase, hold, sell, and rent property
and equipment. The Board will embrace the general welfare of the institution and
the best educational interests of the people in the Ceollege's service area.

C. Other Board responsibilities are summarized by but not limited to the following:
1. To adopt and periodically review a statement of philosophy and mission
which clarifies basic educational beliefs and responsibilities of the College to

the community.

2. To determine and evaluate the quality of professional leadership needed to
carry out the philosophy and objectives of the College.

3. To provide that the College is operating in a fiscally responsible manner,
approve the annual budget and monthly expense summary, and approve
employee benefit programs and salary schedules.

4. To award the appropriate degree or certificate upon completion of a
curriculum organized for that purpose.

5. To review and approve expenditures and bid projects in compliance with
fiscal policy.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 300

10.

11.

Page 4 of 4

To review and take appropriate action on matters relating to physical plant
and master plan development.

To formulate or cause to be formulated such additional policies as are
necessary to promote the educational program of the College.

To adopt such minimum standards as are considered desirable by the Board
to supplement those of the New Mexico Higher Education Department and
the Higher Learning Commission (HLC).

To consider communications and requests from citizens and organizations on
matters of policy, administration, and other items of public concern affecting
the College.

To refer complaints received about the College and its operation to the
President to research and determine the appropriate course of action.

To adopt and review the Employee Handbook.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 301 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board

POLICY TOPIC: Board Travel

I.  Board Travel

New—Mexico—Junier—Cellege Board members shall routinely serve without

remuneration other than the reimbursement of actual and necessary expenses incurred
in the performance of their official duties. Travel shall be reimbursed at the same rate
as established for Collegeestiege employees. Out-of-state travel for members of the
Board shall be approved by bBoard action.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 302

Page 1 of 1

SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board
POLICY TOPIC: Professional Development for Board Members

I.  Orientation and Training of Board Members

The College President shall provide an orientation for new Board members prior to,
or soon after the member assuming his / her seat on the board. Training will focus
on understanding the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. Assistance given
in the orientation of the new Board member may include the following, as appropriate

or available:

1. Selected materials of the responsibilities of being a contributing member
on the Board.

2. Materials pertinent to meetings and an explanation of its use.

3. Invitations to meet with the College President and other administrative
personnel designated by the College President to discuss services the
administration performs for the Board.

4. Access to a copy of the Board’s policies and administrative regulations,
and other documents currently in use by other Board members.

5. Information regarding appropriate meetings and workshops.

6. A formal orientation on legal and budgetary oversight responsibilities of
the Board by the College President or designee.

7. Other information and activities as the Board or the College President

deems useful in fulfilling the role of a Board member.

1. Board Training
Annually, the esHegeCollege President shall work with the Board to develop and

implement appropriate and current training for the Board, or when appropriate.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 303

Page 1 of 7

SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board
POLICY TOPIC: Board Meetings

Introduction

To comply with the Open Meetings Act, Sections 10-15-1 to 10-15-4, NMSA 1978,
the following definitions and procedures are detailed so the conduct of all-College
Board business is in compliance with the spirit of the law:

Meetings

A.

Definition: Meetings are defined as any verbal exchange among a quorum of
board members attempting to arrive at a decision on any public business or public
policy relating to the College over which the Board has supervision or control.

Types of meetings:
1. Regular Meetings: According to state statute, meetings of the Board shall be

held not less than quarterly each calendar year. Special meetings shall be held
upon call of the Chairperson of the Board or a majority of the Board. In a
meeting of the New-Mexico-JuniorCellege-Board, a motion was adopted that
regular meetings of the Board shall be held on a monthly basis. This exceeds
what is required by law but is deemed necessary to accomplish esHegeCollege
business in an orderly and timely manner. The regular meetings will be held
on the third Thursday of every month at 1:30 p.m. in the New Mexico Junior
College Board Room (Zia Room) Hobbs, New Mexico. The date or place of
a regular meeting may be changed by action of the Board at any previous
meeting. Every board member shall be notified either by letter or personally
by distribution of the minutes carrying a record of the change or at any other
time by the Chairperson of the Board after timely notice to all members and
with the consent of a majority of members. If the date or place of any regular
meeting is changed, the public shall be informed of the change by notice as
required by law.

Special Meetings: Special meetings to conduct eeHegeCollege business shall
be called by the Chairperson of the Board, by a majority of the members of
the Board or by the President with approval of the Board Chairperson.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 303 Page 2 of 7

3. Work Sessions: Work sessions may be called by the President with the
approval of the Board Chairperson to review and discuss eetlegeCollege-
related information. No official board action shall take place in a work
session.

4. Emergency Meetings: An unscheduled meeting may be called by the Board
Chairperson for the purpose of considering an emergency or any other matter
of urgent public necessity.

5. Closed Meetings: Closed meetings or executive sessions of the Board shall
be closed to the public pursuant to state law.

Meeting Procedures

A.

Prerequisites to Transact Business: In order to transact business which is binding
to the College, the Board shall meet in official session, keep minutes, and have a
quorum of members present. All motions, duly seconded, require a majority of
those voting.

Agenda: The meeting agenda shall be prepared by estlegeCollege employees and
coordinated by the President for board presentation. Board members shall also
request that the President include an agenda item for board presentation.

Rules of Procedure: Unless otherwise determined by the Board or herein
specified, all meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of
Order Revised.

. Minutes: The minutes of each regular, special or emergency meeting or any work

session shall be recorded and include at minimum the following:

1. Date, time and place of the meeting.

2. Names of all members of the Board in attendance and a list of those absent.

3. Statement of what proposals were considered.

4. Record of any decisions made by the Board and how each member voted at
each vote.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 303 Page 3 of 7

A draft of all minutes shall be prepared within ten (10) working days after the
meeting. At this time the minutes shall be available for public inspection in
accordance with the New Mexico Public Records Act; however, these minutes shall
not become official until approved at the next regular meeting. All official records
with original signatures of board transactions of the regular meetings shall be kept on
file by the Board Recorder as a permanent official record of the College and shall
also be open to public inspection in accordance with the New Mexico Public Records
Act. Minutes shall be succinct but shall include both informational and action items.
All special meetings and work sessions where esHegeCollege business is discussed
shall be appropriately recorded and available for inspection. Board members shall
request inclusion of statements or data which they deem vital to an adequate
understanding of the minutes.

E. Voting: Voting on Board action items shall be by voice vote except when a roll
call vote is requested by a board member. A member voting against a motion shall
state his / her reasons and shall have them recorded in the minutes, if he/she so
requests at the time of voting. The minutes shall record the name of the person
making the motion, the name of the person seconding it, and the vote with
dissenting members being noted.

F. Order of Business: The normal order of business on the agenda of regular board
meetings shall be as follows:
1. Call to Order
2. Welcome
3. Adoption of Agenda
4. Approval of Minutes
5. Correspondence
6. President’s Report
7. Old Business
8. New Business
9. Public Comments
10. Announcement of Next Meeting
11. Closure of Open Meeting
12. Adjournment



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 303

Page 4 of 7

IV.  Public Access

A. Meetings Open to the Public: All meetings at which the Board plans to formulate

policy, discuss eeHegeCollege business, or take any action within the authority or
delegated authority of the Board shall be open to the public at all times except as
otherwise provided in the constitution of the state of New Mexico or the
provisions of the Open Meetings Act.

Meetings Closed to the Public: To close a meeting or to call an executive session
at which the general public shall not be entitled to be present for purposes set out
in the Open Meetings Act, the following conditions shall be met and procedures
followed:

1. The Board shall first convene in a public open meeting and during that

meeting, the Chairperson shall publicly announce that a closed or executive
meeting or session shall be held. A motion to close the meeting shall be made
and approved by a roll call majority vote of a quorum of the Board. The
motion shall include a statement of the subject to be discussed which gives
the Board authority to close the meeting. The vote on the motion shall be
recorded as required by law.

If a closed meeting is called when the Board is not in open meeting, public
notice appropriate under the circumstance shall be given. The notice shall
include a statement of the purpose of the anticipated closed meeting along
with the identification of the section or sections under the statute authorizing
the holding of such closed or executive session.

Closed meetings according to the above requirements shall be called and
voting shall take place in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

. Whenever any deliberation or any portion of a meeting is closed to the public,

no final action, decision or vote with regard to any matter considered in the
closed meeting shall be made except in a meeting which is open to the public
or as provided by law. Board action in matters of property acquisition or
litigation settlement negotiations may be considered in closed session.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 303

V. Not

Page 5 of 7

ice Requirements

A.

V1. Citi

Regular Meetings, Special Meetings or Work Sessions: In accordance with the
Open Meetings Act, reasonable notice (72 Hours) shall be given to the public
announcing the date, time, place, and subject matter of each meeting. A record of
the notice sent to all media sources shall be kept on file. The notice shall also be
posted on the New Mexico Junior College Home Page. The Board shall follow
the State requirements for posting of meetings under the Open Meetings Act.

Emergency Meetings: Emergency meetings shall be called as permitted by law
and cellegeCollege policy, and such notice as is reasonable within the time
restrictions required by the emergency shall be given to the public. Media shall
be informed in writing or orally at the earliest practical time after the decision to
meet in an emergency session is made. The information provided to the media
shall include the date, time and place of the emergency meeting, and the purpose
of calling the meeting. A record of the media outlets contacted and the
information included in the message, whether written or orally made, shall be
kept on file. Written notice of any emergency meeting shall also be posted in the
college's administrative office area.

Informal Meetings: Functions which the board members attend as a group, such
as training workshops, social gatherings, conventions, community celebrations,
and similar events (but at which no Board session is officially called and no
college business is acted upon), shall not be considered a Board meeting within
the terms of this section of Board policy and no public notice need be given.

zen Participation

A.

Rationale: Interested persons may communicate their concerns to the Board at a
meeting if certain procedures are followed. Such procedures are-intended to
preserve the constitutionally guaranteed rights of free speech and petition and to
avoid unfair discrimination among viewers seeking expression. The Board
reserves the right to amend and / or waive any or all of these procedures by
majority vote of its members.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 303

Page 6 of 7

B. Procedure: In order that the business of the College may be conducted in an
orderly and deliberative fashion, the Board sets forth the following procedures
for citizens desiring to appear before it:

1.

Citizens desiring to be heard by the Board shall notify the President forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the meeting and indicate the agenda item or non-
agenda item which they wish to address. At that time, the President shall make
the decision as to whether to deal with the issue administratively or as a Board
agenda item.

Individuals who have notified the President of their desire to address the
Board on an agenda item and have been so approved shall be recognized
before the Board_Chairperson-ChairmanChairpersen-calls for a vote on the
item or concludes the item. Speakers shall limit remarks to the agenda item.
Individuals who have notified the President of their desire to address the
Board on non-agenda items and have been so approved shall be recognized at
the time the agenda is adopted so the item can be included as an addition to
the agenda. The same individuals shall then again be recognized at the time
the item is scheduled on the revised agenda. No action shall be taken on a
non-agenda item.

The Board has the discretion of hearing or not hearing any individual or group
and reserves the right to fix such time limits on presentations as deemed
appropriate to the occasion, and may limit the number of speakers who appear
before the Board on any given issue. The Board by majority vote shall extend
such limits as it deems appropriate.

The Board shall refrain from hearing complaints or charges against
employees of the College.

Only individuals officially recognized by the Chairperson of the Board shall
be allowed to speak.

The use of profanity, obscenity, and/or other offensive language shall be
sufficient cause for the Board Chairperson to withdraw a citizen's permission
to address the Board.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 303 Page 7 of 7

VIL.

8. Except in emergencies, the Board shall not attempt to decide upon any
question before examining and evaluating information any individual
requests the Board to consider, which may be submitted by such individual
or which is otherwise reasonably available. The President shall be given an
opportunity to examine and evaluate all such information and to recommend
action before the Board makes a decision.

9. These procedures are subject to the provisions of the Open Meetings Act.

C. Written Communication: All written communication to the Board, which bears
the signature(s) and address(es) of the person(s) originating the communication,
shall be transmitted to the Board as a report from the President.

Legal Opinions--Board Requests

All questions or inquiries of a member(s) of the Board involving the law and
procedural matters pertaining to the College shall be reduced to writing by such
member(s) and transmitted to the President. Upon receipt of such questions or
inquiries by the President, he / she shall submit the same to the legal counsel of the
College for the appropriate answer which answer shall be made in writing and
transmitted through the President to the Board.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 304

Page 1 of 4

SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board

POLICY TOPI

C: Board Code of Ethics

I.  Board Member Code of Ethics

As

a member of the New Mexico Junior College Board, it is my duty and

responsibility to:

A.

Devote time, thought, and study to the duties and responsibilities of a board
member so that I may render effective and creditable service.

Work with my fellow board members in a spirit of harmony and cooperation in
spite of differences of opinion that may arise during vigorous debates of points of
issue.

Base my personal decision upon all available facts in each situation, vote my
honest conviction in every case un-swayed by partisan bias of any kind, and abide
by and uphold the final majority decision of the Board.

. Remember as an individual | have no legal authority outside the meetings of the

Board and conduct my relationships with the ¢College employees, the local
citizenry and all media of communication on the basis of this fact. Recognize any
conflict of interest both in appearance and fact regarding decisions made by the
College and announce said interest prior to board discussion. Refrain from voting
in cases when a conflict of interest may occur.

Resist every temptation and outside pressure to use my position as a board
member to benefit either myself or any other individual or agency apart from the
total interest of the College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 304

Page 2 of 4

1l. Board Member Code of Conduct

Each member of the Board of New Mexico Junior College shall endeavor to:

A.

Attend all scheduled Board Meetings insofar as possible, and become
informed concerning the issues to be considered at those meetings.

Conduct all College business in open public meetings unless, in the
judgment of the Board and only for those purposes permitted by statue, if is
deemed more appropriate to hold a closed meeting.

Hold confidential all matters discussed in Executive Sessions of the Board.

. Recognize and understand that the basic function of the Board is policy

making, not administrative.

Approach all Board related discussions, decision making, and voting from an
unbiased perspective and a non-discriminatory manner.

Promote a healthy working relationship with the President and the
administration by:

1. Appointing the best qualified professional leader available when a

President is to be appointed.-and-appeinting-the-best-quatified

President:

2. Developing and maintaining open and honest communication between
the Board and the College President.

3. Expecting the President to present recommendations for Board action
with complete information and in a timely manner that would allow
members an adequate period of study and deliberation.

4. Recognize the value of the importance of full open discussions on all
facets of any recommendation presented by the President before Board
action is taken.

5. Referring complaints to the President or advising that complaints be
presented in writing to the Board as a whole, through the President.

6. Recognizing that the hiring, assigning, transferring, dismissal or
suspension of employees will be handled according to established



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 304

Page 3 of 4

employee policies through the President’s Office and in accordance with
the approved Employee Handbook.

G. Devote appropriate time, thought, and study to the duties and
responsibilities of a Board member in order to render effective and
credible service.

111. Board Member Conflicts of Interest

The Board of New Mexico Junior College believes that it should exercise a leadership
role with respect to governmental ethics which goes beyond statutory requirements and
therefore that it is important to avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest. A
potential conflict of interest is a situation that involves a personal, familial, or business
relationship between a Board Member and/or organizations that do business with the
College or a family member who is an employee of the College. This relationship can
cause the College or the Board to be legally or otherwise vulnerable to public criticism,
embarrassment, or litigation.

A. Disclosure

All Board members are required to: (1) annually review and sign this policy; (2)
disclose those substantive relationships that he or she maintains or members of
his or her family maintain with the college or with organizations that do business
with the college or otherwise could be construed to potentially affect their
independent, unbiased judgment in light of his or her decision-making authority
or responsibility. In the event that a Board member is uncertain as to the
appropriateness of disclosing a particular relationship, the ehairmanChairperson
of the Board, the college President, or C-college counsel should be consulted.

. Restraint on Participation

It is the policy of the Board of New Mexico Junior College that members will
not participate in Board discussions or votes on items or transactions where they
have a conflict of interest.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25", No bullets or
numbering




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 304

Page 4 of 4

C. Definitions

The following definitions are provided to help Board members decide whether
a relationship should prevent a Board member from participating in
consideration of a decision or proposed transaction:

(1) Potential conflict of interest or conflict of interest: substantive
relationships maintained by Board members, or members of their family, with
the Ceollege or with organizations that do business with the Ceollege or that
otherwise could be construed to potentially affect their independent, unbiased
judgment in light of his or her decision-making authority or responsibility.

(2) Business relationship: one in which a Board member, or a member of his
or her family as defined below, serves as an officer, director, employee,
partner, trustee or controlling stockholder of an organization that does
substantial business with the Ceollege.

(3) Family member: A spouse, father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law,
son, son-in-law, daughter or daughter-in-law, or any other relative if the latter
resides in the same household as the Board member.

(4) Substantive relationships: When a Board member, or member of his or
family, (a) are the actual or beneficial owner of more than 5% of the voting
stock or controlling interest of an organization that does substantial business
with the Ceollege; (b) has other direct or indirect dealings with such an
organization from which the Board member, or member of his or her family
benefits directly, indirectly or potentially from cash or property receipts
which total $5,000 or more annually; or (c) is employed by the Ceollege or
receives fees, benefits or other compensation from the Ceollege.

(5) Substantial business: An organization that does substantial business with
the Ceollege is one that received more than $5,000 from the Ceollege in the
previous fiscal year.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 400

Page 1 of 3

SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPI

C: The President

. Authority

A.

The New Mexico Junior College president is the Chief Executive Officer of the
College. The President shall be charged in the Community College Act, in the
rules and regulations of the New Mexico Higher Education Department, in the
rules and guidelines of the Higher Learning Commission, and in the policies of
the New Mexico Junior College Board with carrying out the policies of the Board
and with administering the College efficiently and effectively. The President shall
be directly responsible to the Board for the operation of the College and shall be
expected to provide creative educational leadership in the achievement of the
mission of the College as adopted by the Board.

The Beoard—upon—the—President's—recemmendation; shall employ other
administrative and / or other employees as shall be needed for the operation,
maintenance, and administration of the College. The President shall be
responsible for the establishment of an administrative organization appropriate to
the size, complexity, and objectives of the College.

Il.  General Duties and Responsibilities

Wit

hin the framework of the policies adopted by the Board, the President shall

exercise broad and discretionary authority in carrying out the responsibilities of the
position. The President is the Chief Executive Officer of the Board and the
administrative head of all sectors, divisions and departments of the College.
community-cellege. The Chief Executive Officer shall delegate responsibilities for

the

operation of the various segments of the Collegecemmunity-college, but shall be

responsible to the Board for the results achieved. The duties and responsibilities of

the

A.

B.

President include but are not limited to the following:
To perform satisfactorily the job as the President for New Mexico Junior College;

To execute policies adopted by the Board,;



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 400 Page 2 of 3

C. To manage New Mexico Junior College in conformity with the policies of the
Board, the New Mexico Higher Education Department, the rules and guidelines
of the Higher Learning Commission, the laws of the state of New Mexico and the
laws of the United States of America;

D. To provide leadership that allows the College’s philosophy to be reflected in
curriculum development; this includes developing and presenting the Board
recommended policies and cooperating with the policy-making duties and
responsibilities of the Board;

E. To assign specific administrative functions to be performed by members of the
administrative staff;

“ {Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"

GF.  Toroute all routine communications from the Board to members of the staff
through the President and receive communications from the College employees
to the Board through the President;

HG. To work with the various administrative heads in the continuous evaluation
and improvement of the administrative, supervisory, and instructional techniques
and procedures;

+H. To attend all meetings of the Board unless excused by the Board;

J1. Toreport to the Board from time to time, at his / her discretion or upon the request
of the Board, on the educational and financial affairs of the College;

KJ.To prepare the agenda for meetings of the Board,;
LK.  To secure cumulative factual data needed by the Board, the administration
and professional and support / maintenance staff employees in planning for the

short-term and long-range needs of the College;

ML. To prepare the annual HED and institutional budget with the assistance of the
appropriate Collegecommunity-cotiege officials and personnel,;



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 400 Page 3 of 3

NM. To serve as an ex officio member of all Collegecemmunity—cotege
committees and organizations;

ON.  To be responsible for the governmental affairs and lobbying activities for the
College;

PO.  To support and promote the general welfare of the College and its various
publics and communities;

OR. To represent New Mexico Junior College to its various constituencies, the
general public and educational groups, and perform such other duties and
responsibilities as shall be assigned by the Board; and

RS.To communicate with the Board on all matters of major concern to the College
and its community.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 401 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPIC: Evaluation of College President

I.  Evaluation of College President

The New-MexiceJuniorCollege Board shall have the right and responsibility to
evaluate the College President, and / or his office, at any time. The President shall be
evaluated annually in the month of April. Each March, a request will be made to
NMJIC-Board members to administer the an-electronic “President Evaluation”.

Il. Criteria for Evaluation

The criteria for evaluating the Office of the President shall be, but not limited to, the
following:

A. Leadership of Campus, Community, and State interests.

B. Application of bBoard policies, and Board communications.

C. Administrative and management skills.

D. Resource management.

E. Achievement of Ceollege mission and objectives.

F. Public and community relations.

G. Interpersonal relationships.

H. Communication of Campus, Community, Board, and State issues.
I. Conflict management.

J.  Enrollment management.

K. Institutional planning and budgeting.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 402 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPIC: Presidential Travel

I.  Presidential Travel

The Cellege Board gives approval to the President to travel overnight and / or out of
state to attend meetings and conferences deemed needed and necessary in executing
the duties of president of the eCollege.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 403 Page 1 of 2
SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPIC: Executive Organization

Introduction

The College is organized into five major service areas with the President providing
general administrative overall leadership. The service areas of the College consist of
Instruction, Finance, Student Services, Training and Outreach, and Administrative
ServicesBeveloprment—Acecreditationand-tnstitutional-Effectiveness. The President
shall hold regularly scheduled meetings with the administrative employees to give
and to seek advice, provide counsel and give direction toward goals of the College
within the framework of board policies.

Vice President for Instruction

The Vice President for Instruction, under the direction of the President, shall have
primary responsibility and authority for the supervision and development of all
instructional programs and activities. The Vice President for Instruction shall be
responsible for providing quality and sound judgment in development of courses and
programs, use of appropriate instructional methodology, deployment of instructional
resources, compliance with state and Higher Learning Commission assessment
requirements, and the management of instructional support services. The Vice
President for Instruction shall serve as the liaison between the President of the
College and the faculty and instructional support employees.

Vice President for Finance

The Vice President for Finance, under the direction of the President, shall have
primary responsibility for budget development and implementation, and accounting
of all fund revenues, expenditures and investments. The Vice President for Finance
shall establish and maintain quality procedures for the procurement of services,
materials and equipment purchased, as well as maintaining an inventory of all
Ceollege property. The Vice President for Finance shall serve as liaison between the
President of the College and employees in the areas of fiscal services_and; auxiliary

services.-and-personnel-services.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 403 Page 2 of 2

V.

Vice President for Student Services

The Vice President for Student Services, under the direction of the President, shall
have primary responsibility for the development and implementation of policies and
programs related to student services and student life. The Vice President for Student
Services shall serve as the liaison between the President and College students and
supervise student services employees serving in the areas of enroliment management,
Trio grants, athletics, public relations / marketing, counseling, financial aid—eampus

security-/safety, and student life.

Vice President for Training and Outreach

The Vice President for Training and Outreach, under the direction of the President,
shall have primary responsibility for the development and implementation of policies
and procedures related to the development of training programs and community
outreach opportunities. The Vice President for Training and Outreach shall serve as
the liaison between the President and business and industry.

VI.

General Counsel/Executive Director for Administrative Services

The General Counsel/Executive Director for Administrative Services, under the

direction of the President, shall have primary responsibility related to the legal affairs
of the college, as well as, for the development and implementation of policies and
programs related to employment, campus safety and security, and the College
Foundation. The General Counsel/Executive Director for Administrative Services
shall serve as the liaison between the President and the College staff.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 404

Page 1 of 1

SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPI

C: Internal Communication

. Introduction

The President, or his / her designee, shall be authorized to establish such associations,

cou

ncils, and committees deemed necessary for the organization and administration

of the College.

Il.  Internal Communication

A.

General: The President, or his/her designee, shall call general faculty and / or
employee meetings or special group meetings as needed and specify the time and
place of such meetings. Further, the President shall establish standing and ad hoc
committees to assist in college governance or projects to include prescribing
his/her function, establishing terms of service of employees and determining
committee membership.

Faculty Senate of New Mexico Junior College: The faculty employees at New
Mexico Junior College shall be members of the Faculty Senate. The organization
is a vehicle to transmit a faculty consensus to the President concerning those areas
of the Ceollege operations that affect the faculty. The Faculty Senate shall provide
a means to develop a closer relationship among the members, provide a common
meeting ground through regular business sessions and social activities, promote
professional development, strive for continued improvement of the College, and
promote effective communication with other campus groups. However, the
primary focus of the Faculty Senate shall be to promote continued improvement
of instruction and to assist with the operations of the College through appropriate
committees.

Support / Maintenance Staff Council: The Support / Maintenance Staff Council
of New Mexico Junior College was organized to develop a closer relationship
among themselves, to promote professional development, to strive for continued
improvement of the College, and to promote effective communication with other
campus groups. This organization shall be a vehicle to transmit a consensus of
the council to the President concerning those areas of the College operations that
affect the support / maintenance employees.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 405

Page | of 2

SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPI

C: External Communication

. Introduction

The President shall establish guidelines for college faculty and employee contacts
with external organizations and agencies. The President shall also provide citizens

the

opportunity for input into the College's operations by serving with staff

employees on various committees.

Il.  Public Relations

A.

Institutional Public Relations Policy: New Mexico Junior College recognizes the
need to implement an effective public information program. It is intended that the
College carry out an effective information program to maintain the necessary
goodwill of the public it serves. An effective program requires organization,
order, and continuity to achieve its objectives.

Responsibility: The President, or his / her designee, shall be responsible for the
release of all public information pertaining to the College. Generally, the
President shall delegate the necessary authority to the Director of—CeHege
Communications to carry out that responsibility. This officer, in cooperation with
appropriate employees, shall implement a pregram-whiehprogram, which shall
achieve the College's public information objectives within the framework of this

policy.

Media Relations: No one shall speak for the College on unresolved issues or
actions unless specifically authorized by the President to do so. Internally initiated
contacts with representatives of the news media shall be channeled through the
Public Relations Office. Inquiries from the media normally shall be referred to
and coordinated by this office. Procedures have been established by the Public
Relations Office governing the release of public information to include printed
matter, news releases, and commercial advertising.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 405 Page 2 of 2

D.

Incident Reports: When an incident report has been created, it shall be treated as
a pending case. When appropriate, information shall be released in total or an
extract shall be provided to external organizations by the President or designee.

Citizen Advisory Committees

A.

Occupational Advisory Committees: These committees shall be established for
each of the College's occupational programs and shall be comprised of citizens
and faculty employees whose function is to advise the College personnel
regarding the adequacy of instructional programs designed for a particular trade,
craft, or occupation. Membership requirements and terms are outlined in the
Advisory Committee Member’s Handbook.

Other External Committees: The President shall occasionally call on other
citizens of the community to serve on permanent and ad hoc College committees
with staff and faculty employees to assist with College functions and to offer
advice on selected projects having significant community impact.

College Calendar

The President, or his / her designee, shall develop and maintain a calendar of activities
including those of external as well as internal college groups. Information shall
include location, time, and sponsor’s contact person.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 406

Page 1 of 2

SECTION: Administrative Organization

POLICY TOPI

C: New Mexico Junior College Foundation

I.  New Mexico Junior College Foundation

A.

The New Mexico Junior College Foundation, Inc. is a 501(c)(3) non-profit New
Mexico corporation whose mission is to foster, encourage, and promote college
education (academic and career / technical) at New Mexico Junior College. The
Foundation achieves this mission by giving qualified persons the opportunity to
obtain advanced education by means of financial assistance and scholarships; by
soliciting funds for educational, philanthropic, and benevolent purposes to be
used to encourage and promote New Mexico Junior College and Ceollege-related
activities; and by supporting the expansion of facilities at the College through
grants and private contributions. The_General Counsel/Executive Director of
Administrative Services-Viee-Presidentfor-Development of New Mexico Junior
College shall also serve as the Executive Director of the Foundation and hold a
non-voting membership on its board.

The bylaws of the New Mexico Junior College Foundation shall include a
provision that the President of the College and the Chairperson of the New
Mexice-Junier-College Board shall hold voting memberships on the Foundation
Board and the Vice President for Finance shall hold an ex officio, non-voting
membership during the term of each of their respective offices with the College.

The New Mexico Junior College Foundation, Inc. shall submit an audit report
annually to the Sellege Board for review.

Thunderbird Booster Club

A.

The Thunderbird Athletic Booster Club is a 501(c)(3) non-profit New Mexico
organization, organized in January 1968, whose mission is to promote athletics
by assisting with the annual athletic banquet and special awards, publicity,
membership drives, public relations, equipment, fund raising, and special needs
for student athletes requiring enhancements for their academic or athletic
performance. t } } }

1968. The Booster Club consists of two permanent officers and various
committees as needed for different athletic events. The athletic director shall
serve as an advisor for all activities.

The Thunderbird Athletic Booster Club adheres to the policies and procedures of
the NJCAA, the WICAC, and the NIRA.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 406

C.

Page 2 of 2

Upon dissolution, any monies, which may be in the account of the Thunderbird
Athletic Booster Club, shall automatically be transferred to the account of the
New Mexico Junior College Foundation.

IIl.  Western Heritage Museum and Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame

A.

The Western Heritage Museum and Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame is a multi-
functional center dedicated to bringing people together, providing numerous
education experiences, and presenting the diversity of the cultural and natural
histories of Southeastern New Mexico and the surrounding regions. Specifically,
the Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame is a 501(c) 3 nonprofit corporation
dedicated to the role of honoring those persons from Lea County, NM who have
made outstanding contributions in the world of rodeo, ranching, and the ranching
way of life. The Cowboy Hall of Fame honors individuals who have influenced
the growth of the local community through their leadership, and enhances and
compliments the education process at New Mexico Junior College.

The Western Heritage Museum and Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame at New
Mexico Junior College shall be non-political and non-profit. Goals of the
Western Heritage Museum shall be to collect and display memorabilia of the
Cowboy Hall of Fame inductees for the purpose of perpetuating the region’s
western heritage; to collect and display works of art that depict the spirit and
culture of the American West; to engage in the dissemination of information
concerning the rodeo cowboy and ranch cowboy; to engage in and encourage
education of the public regarding the importance of rodeo, the ranch cowboy and
our western heritage; to encourage research in the area of the history of the Lea
County cowboy; to cooperate with other organizations which are involved in
similar programs; and to do all things and take all steps reasonably calculated to
further the aims and objectives of the museum. Additionally, the Western
Heritage Museum will seek to provide visitors with appropriate traveling
exhibitions on a wide variety of topics for their educational enrichment.

The Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame is empowered to receive and accept
contributions and funds from the public, from governmental agencies and other
sources; and to expend and use those contributions and funds to promote and
advance the purposes of the Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fameeerperation.

The Lea County Cowboy Hall of Fame is also empowered to accept, receive, and acquire
funds, stocks, securities, and property by donations, bequests, and devises or otherwise,
and to hold, invest, re-invest, convert, exchange, sell, transfer, mortgage, pledge, lease,



give, dispose of, and otherwise deal with any and all funds, stocks, securities, and
properties so received or acquired, all for the purpose of operating the Lea County
Cowboy Hall of Fame. -corperation:

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 407

Page 1 of 1

SECTION: Administrative Organization
POLICY TOPIC: Accreditation

Accreditation

A. New Mexico Junior College shall maintain the accountability standards and
adhere to institutional policies as established by the New Mexico Higher
Education Department. The College shall perform in such a manner to maintain
institutional accreditation in The Higher Learning Commission as well as other
relevant accrediting agencies.

B. New Mexico Junior College is accredited by or holds membership in the
following national or regional associations. Note, this list may change as different
groups are added or removed. This list is for informational purposes only:

O©o~NO~wWNE

American Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admissions Officers
American Association of Community Colleges

Association of Community College Trustees

Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities

National Accrediting Agency for Clinical Laboratory Sciences

National Association of College Auxiliary Services

National Association of College and University Business Officers
National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators

National Association of Student Personnel Administrators

National Automotive Technicians’ Education Foundation

National Junior College Athletic Association

National League for Nursing Accreditation Commission

New Mexico Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admission
Officers

New Mexico Independent Community Colleges Association

The Higher Learning Commission

Rocky Mountain Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admission
Officers

Western Association of College and University Business Officers
Western Junior College Athletic Conference



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 500

Page 1 of 3

SECTION: Personnel
POLICY TOPIC: Requirements and Employment

Quality of Employees

New Mexico Junior College shall be committed to employing and retaining highly
qualified individuals who are trained and skilled in the area of their appointed
responsibility, who understand and support the basic characteristics of community
college concepts, who understand the demographics of its service area, and who show
a willingness to work in harmony and cooperation with others toward accomplishing
the institutional mission (see Employee Handbook).

Qualifications for Employment, Promotions or Transfers

A.

Employment, promotions, or transfers shall be based on qualifications, ability
and past performances.

New Mexico Junior College prefers to promote employees within the
organization to more responsible positions. In employment, promotional or
transfer decisions, the College shall consider such factors as organizational
needs, aspirations and qualifications of individuals, and availability of other job
candidates. However, in all cases, NMJC will be seeking the best qualified
applicant(s) for the positions (s).

Equal Opportunity

A.

New Mexico Junior College shall comply with the existing federal and state
laws and regulations in its personnel actions, including but not limited to the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 1990; Executive Order 11246; Section 504 of the
1973 Rehabilitation Act; the Age Discrimination Act of 1967; the Americans
with Disability Act of 1990; and the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Act
of 1974, where applicable, as well as, the constitutions of the United States and
the State of New Mexico.

New Mexico Junior College shall not discriminate in its educational and
employment policies and procedures with regard to race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, or
veteran status.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 500 Page 2 of 3

V.

Employee Categories

Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) terminology is applied throughout this section of
policy to describe employee categories. The terminology contained herein shall not
be construed to have any meaning for the purpose of determining appropriate
bargaining units.

A. Salaried (Exempt): The FLSA term used to designate employees who meet the
criteria of executive, administrative or professional positions. Such an employee
shall be exempt from overtime.

1. Professional: A full-time or part-time supervisory, administrative or faculty
employee who is not eligible for overtime or compensatory time
compensation. Professional employees generally receive annual employment
contracts. The professional employees are as follows:

a. Full-time: A position requiring 40 hours work per workweek or at least
25 hours work per workweek for faculty employees teaching in the credit
program.

b. Part-time: A position requiring less than 40 hours work per workweek or
less than 25 hours work per workweek for faculty employees teaching in
the credit program.

2. Supervisor: Anemployee who is in charge of or exercises direction or control
over other employees in the performance of his/her duties.

B. Non-Exempt: The FLSA term used to designate employees who are eligible to
receive compensatory time for all work performed in excess of forty (40) hours
in any designated workweek. As a general rule, New Mexico Junior College does
not budget for overtime pay but agrees to grant compensatory time off in lieu of
overtime wages. The non-exempt employees are as follows:

1. Support/maintenance: A full-time or part-time non-supervisory employee
eligible for overtime or compensatory time. Support/maintenance employees
do not generally receive an annual contract, and are employees At Will.
Certain professional employees under FLSA are also eligible for
compensatory time for all work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in any
designated workweek.

a. Part-time: A position requiring less than 40 hours work per workweek.

2. Hourly: The status of an employee eligible for overtime pay.

a. Overtime: Work in excess of an hourly employee’s regularly scheduled
workweek. (minimum of 40 hours)

3. All hourly and those professional employees that fall into this category are
required to obtain permission from their supervisor, in advance, prior to
working more than 40 hours in a designated workweek. Failure to do so is
grounds for discipline.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 500 Page 3 of 3

C. Full-time Regular: A full-time regular employee shall be employed to fill an
established budgeted position requiring at least 40 hours work per workweek.
Once employed, the individual shall be eligible to participate in all rights
described in the Employee Handbook.

1. Contingent: A person employed into a temporary position is usually limited
to less than a year. Contingent employees are not eligible for benefits.

2. Seasonal: A person employed into a seasonal position is usually limited to
no more than six months. Seasonal employees are not eligible for benefits.

V. Employment of Relatives

A relative is any member of an employee’s immediate family (spouse, children and
any other legal dependent) and parents, brothers, sisters and in-laws. Employment of
relatives is subject to NMJC Presidential approval and the following conditions:

1—New Mexico Junior College Board Member’s immediate famiy-members are

L “ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", Numbered + Level: 1 +
2. _No family member of the College President, a Vice President or Dean may Numbering Style: 1,2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
be hired for employment without first obtaining approval of the NMJC Board. Left + Aligned at: 2.19" + Indent at: 2.44"

3.5.Relatives not holding supervisory authority or not having employing
authority may be employed in the same department/division upon the
approval of the President of the College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 501 Page 1 of 4
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Employment Terms and Workloads

Introduction:

The President, or his/her designee, shall establish procedures for formulating
contracts and regulating the work of the faculty and staff employees.

Contracts of Employment (Exempt)

A. Full-Time Professional Employees: Contracts of full-time professional
employees shall be made on a one (1) fiscal year basis (12 months). Positions
under this category shall include administrative and non-faculty professional
employees. Neither the provisions of the Employee Handbook nor the terms of
the employment contract shall be construed to imply or to guarantee the
expectation of continued employment with the College. Professional employee
job descriptions shall be maintained in the Human Resources Office files. Job
descriptions, which may be changed by the President from time to time, are
attached to and become a part of each professional employee’s contract.

B. Full-Time Faculty Employees: Contracts of full-time faculty employees shall be
made on a one (1) academic year basis (nine months). Neither the provisions of
the Employee Handbook nor the terms of the employment contract shall be
construed to imply or to guarantee the expectation of continued employment with
the College. Faculty employee job descriptions shall be maintained in the Human
Resources Office files. Job descriptions, which may be changed from time to
time, are attached to and become a part of each faculty employee’s contract.

C. Procedure for Non-Renewal of Annual Contract: Upon determination by the
President, if an employee’s contract is not to be renewed, the President shall give
written notification no later than March 31%. This notification shall be delivered
in person by the President, the Presidents Designee or sent by certified mail to the
last known address of the employee. This notification procedure shall be set aside
should the Board determine a reduction in force is necessary due to the economic
conditions related to the Ceollege’s ability to meet its fiscal obligations (see
Result of Reduction in Force/Salary Reduction).



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 501

D.

Page 2 of 4

Contingent Part-Time Faculty Employee Contracts
1. Philosophy: In order to fulfill its commitment to quality education, the

College shall have the best qualified part-time faculty employees obtainable

within available resources. Additionally, if the College is to relate to the needs

and draw upon the resources of the community it serves, it shall utilize part-
time faculty employees in order to:

a. Avail itself of the expertise of qualified persons in business, industry,
government and the professions.

b. Provide students with unique insights of practitioners.

¢. Maintain flexibility in educational programs.

d. Maximize the utilization of available resources. The President shall
provide for the integration of part-time faculty employees into appropriate
college programs.

Employment Period: Part-time faculty employees shall be employed on a
semester basis depending upon the instructional needs identified for each
semester. Such service shall be compensated on a credit hour or contact hour basis
at rates approved by the President.

Il Employment of Full-Time Support/Maintenance (Non-Exempt) Employees

A.

Support/Maintenance employees are employed At Will, not employed under an
employment contract, but who may be dismissed at any time, with or without
cause.

Contingent, part-time and seasonal employees shall be employed on a short-term
or limited basis. They are employees At Will, not employed under an
employment contract, but who may be dismissed at any time, with or without
cause.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 501 Page 3 of 4

V.

VI.

Workload

The period during which a professional salaried (exempt) employee shall be on duty
is the fiscal year or the contract term; and for the support/maintenance hourly (non-
exempt) employee, the normal work period is as specified in the Employee
Handbook. Full-time faculty employees shall be on duty according to the
instructional schedule and the number of days specified in the employment contract.
Specific workloads shall be established by the President through the appropriate
deans.

Community Activity Participation

Faculty and staff employees shall be encouraged to assume individual responsibility
for participation in some type of community activity or service provided that such
participation does not cause the individual’s professional responsibilities to be
impaired.

Special Assignments

A. Supplemental Employment: Agreements for supplemental employment shall be
made with professional salaried (exempt) personnel for the performance of duties
in summer school, evening classes or other assignments not included in the
regular contract. Such service shall be compensated at rates approved by the
President. The President and/or Vice Presidents shall be authorized to approve
such agreements and establish procedures for the delegation of such authority.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 501 Page 4 of 4

B. Release Time: Employees on full-time contracts shall be granted release time
from all or a portion of their regular tasks or teaching workload for the purpose
of performing special assignments. Any such release-time activity shall be
approved by the President and the terms thereof clearly indicated. Faculty
employees shall also be given short-term release from other duties to teach classes
during the temporary absence of the regular instructor.

C. Extra Compensation: Compensation for extra service, in addition to the regular
duties to both professional salaried (exempt) and support/maintenance hourly
(non-exempt) employees, may be awarded in the form of extra compensation.
Compensation for such service shall be approved by the President and the terms
thereof clearly indicated.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 502 Page 1 of 3
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Employment Separation

I.  Termination and Suspension

Explanations of reasons for dismissal or suspension are outlined and
available in the current Employee Handbook.

II.  Summary of Dismissal or Suspension

Dismissal or suspension may result from an act or event, in the opinion of the
President, which is detrimental to the general welfare of the College.

IIl.  Reduction in Force/Salary Reduction

A. The New Mexico Junior College Board shall determine the course(s) of action
necessary to ensure the eCollege’s ability to meet its fiscal obligations. Economic
conditions at the College may require a reduction in salary, a reduction in work
force or both. Should the Board determine that a reduction in work force is
necessary, the notification deadlines for professional employees as set forth in the
“Procedure for Non-Renewal of Annual Contracts” section shall be set aside.

1. A demotion may result from a reduction in budget, change in program
emphasis or lack of work.

2. Following an administrative review for possible reassignment, it is
determined that it is not feasible, the affected employee may be demoted or
dismissed.

3. Salary considerations shall follow the same procedure as a “voluntary
demotion”.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 502 Page 2 of 3
IV.  Philosophy

Every effort shall be made to retain qualified and productive employees in situations
where a reduction in force becomes necessary. In cases other than financial exigency
or non-renewal of soft money contracts where immediate termination shall be
necessary, employees affected by impending reduction in force may be given
assistance in the following ways:

A. Priority in placement in like jobs when a vacancy occurs.
B. Cross-training in other areas where openings are anticipated.

C. Where possible, delay the reduction in force until natural attrition occurs, i.e.,
pending retirements or resignations.

Criteria for Reduction in Force of Faculty and Staff Employees

A. Normally faculty and staff employee reductions shall be satisfied by retirements,
resignations or other types of normal attrition. Where this is not possible, the
determination concerning terminations shall be made considering the following
factors, but not limited to, in descending order:

1. Job performance and competency in service.
2. Qualifications of the employee.
3. Seniority.

B. The President shall have the option of re-assigning affected faculty and staff
employees into other areas of the institution for which the person is qualified.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 502 Page 3 of 3

VI.

VIL.

C. When the President determines that a reduction in force or involuntary transfer is
necessary, such action shall be based upon the needs of the College, performance
of the individual, and the qualifications and seniority of the employee. An
analysis of the acquired knowledge, demonstrated skills, and versatility of the
employees shall be compared to the work to be done and the available funding.

Notice of Reduction in Force

The New Mexico Junior College Board shall determine the course(s) of action
necessary to ensure the college’s ability to meet its fiscal obligations. Economic
conditions at the College may require a reduction in salary, a reduction in workforce
or both. Should the Board determine a reduction in workforce is necessary, the
notification deadlines for professional employees as set forth in the “Procedure for
Non-Renewal of Annual Contracts” section of the Employee Handbook shall be set
aside.

Grievances/Appeal Procedures

All employees affected by a reduction in force may appeal the decision through the
employee appeal procedures for termination as outlined in the Employee Handbook.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 503 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Appeal Process

. Employee Disputes
Philosophy: The Board recognizes that by reason of differences of opinion,

personality conflicts, and lack of communication, disputes may occur. It is in the best
interest of New Mexico Junior College that disputes be resolved immediately.

Il.  Disciplinary Actions

Philosophy: Deficiencies in employee performance, except in the case of summary
dismissal, shall be dealt with at the supervisory level in an attempt to resolve the
matter informally. Deficiencies that remain unresolved shall result in termination. In
the event that a continuing contract faculty employee or other employee terminated
for cause wishes to have an impartial examination of issues surrounding his
termination in a formal hearing, an appeal procedure has been developed for this
purpose and is outlined in the Employee Handbook.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 504

Page | of 4

SECTION: Personnel
POLICY TOPIC: Salary, Benefits and Advancement

. Salary and Wage System

A. Philosophy

The development of a comprehensive wage and salary planning approach
is vital to New Mexico Junior College to recruit and retain well qualified staff.

B. Objectives

To meet our obligations as an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer, the
following objectives have been set:

1.
2.

Promote fair employment practices within the institution.

Strive to ensure all positions are kept in a fair and equitable compensation
status considering the work done, the value to the College and our
relationship to the local labor market.

Provide a system by which fair compensation is made within resources
available based on budget considerations and Board action.

Degrees and credits shall be from colleges and universities which were
accredited when degrees or credits were earned for the course work to
apply to the schedule. For the purposes of educational achievement, only
degrees conferred from institutions regionally or nationally accredited by
accreditation agencies recognized by the U.S. Department of Education
shall be recognized. Degrees conferred from foreign institutions must go
through an equivalency process by an equivalency accrediting agency.
Individuals being considered for faculty employee positions or current
faculty must have at a minimum a Master’s Degree in subject matter or a
Master’s Degree in a different field with a minimum of 18 hours of
Master’s level class’ in the subject matter they are to provide formal
instruction in. Any exceptions to this rule must be approved by the Vice
President of Instruction and the President of the College. In order to avoid
confusion, all graduate hours applied under this provision shall be
reviewed by the appropriate Dean and Vice President of Instruction prior
to the faculty member being offered a teaching position for the college.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 504

Page 2 of 4

Salary Plan Provisions

The objective of the salary plan is for the College to be competitive with other similar
institutions in the local and regional markets and to achieve the goals stated in the
previous section.

A. Faculty

1.

Salary adjustments based on additional semester hours or degrees

earned shall be made only at the beginning of the contract year following
completion (not at mid-year).

The appropriate Dean shall be notified, prior to the annual budget
preparation, of any course work that shall qualify a faculty employee for
advancement on the salary plan for the coming year. Approval shall be
transmitted to the Human Resources Office for the faculty employee’s
personnel file.

These provisions shall not imply nor guarantee the expectation of
continued employment with the college.

B. Support/Maintenance

1.

Increment adjustments shall be granted to individual employees

upon the satisfactory completion of college course work directly related
to his/her current work assignment. For a course to be considered for a
salary increment:

A. The employee shall initiate and obtain pre-approval of the
course from his/her appropriate supervisor prior to enrolling in
the course by demonstrating the relationship and/or value of the
course to the employee’s current work assignment. (Only course
work taken on an employee’s own time shall be considered for
a salary increment. Course work taken on a released time basis
shall not be eligible).



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 504

Benefits Program

Page 3 of 4

B. The employee’s appropriate supervisor shall submit a written

confirmation of the course work to the Human Resources Office
prior to the first day of class.

. Salary increments shall go into effect at the beginning of the

next fiscal year following successful completion of the course (not
at mid-year). A grade of “C” or better shall be earned in the
course. In these cases where salary increments are granted for
classes satisfactorily completed, one shall not expect additional
increments for having completed an associate or bachelor’s degree
using the same college hours for which he/she is already being
compensated.

2. These provisions shall not imply norret guarantee the expectation of
continued employment with New Mexico Junior College.

The President, or his/her designee, shall develop a benefit plan for all faculty and
staff employees. The Board shall annually consider a benefit package as part of the
budgetary process. In as much as benefits change, please contact the Human
Resources Office for current information.

Employee Advancement

Qualifications for Employee Advancement, Promotion or Transfer will be
considered based on the following criteria. (See Employee Handbook)
A. Employment, promotions or transfers shall be based on qualifications,

B.

ability, and past performance.

The College may promote employees within the organization to more
responsible positions. In employment, promotional and transfer decisions,
New Mexico Junior College shall consider such factors as organizational
needs, aspirations and qualifications of individuals and availability of other
job candidates. However, in all cases, NMJC will be seeking the best
qualified applicant(s) and/or candidate(s) for the position(s).



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 504 Page 4 of 4

C. An employee wishing consideration for promotion or transfer to another
position or department is encouraged to discuss the matter with his/her
immediate supervisor and a representative from the Human Resources Office.

D. In considering employees for promotion or transfer, seniority or length of
service shall be given weight only if all other factors are essentially equal.
The primary criteria shall be individual qualifications and organizational
needs.

E. The college may check and verify any facts or statements related to the
employment of any applicant for employment at the CollegeNew-Mexico
Junter-College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 505 Page 1 of 2
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Staff Development

Philosophy of Staff Development

Professional growth and development and in-service training for faculty and staff
employees are seen as tools for increasing knowledge and developing skills which shall
enhance the development of each employee in an effort to improve job performance as
well as improve the efficiency of the operations of the College. Faculty and staff
employees shall be expected to realize professional progress through such activities as
completion of additional college work, participation in professional organizations and
meetings, seminars, workshops, special study groups, independent study groups,
independent study or research, travel, work experience, publishing, private instruction
and leadership in college and civic organizations. The Board is committed and
supportive of these and other activities, and encourages the administration to provide
opportunities for employee development which shall in turn promote the
accomplishment of the Ceollege’s mission.

Staff Development Plan

A. As avehicle for promoting the professional growth activities of the New Mexico
Junior College faculty and staff employees, the College shall have a program of
activities and provide development opportunities through a comprehensive staff
development plan. The objectives of the plan are as follows:

1. To promote training for all employees to enhance their understanding of the
nature of a comprehensive community college.

2. To provide faculty employees with the instructional technology and
methodology appropriate to community colleges.

3. To provide professional enrichment program opportunities for all employees.

4. To enhance instructional support programs through support employee
training.

5. Enhance the climate for staff development by obtaining maximum
commitment for such activities from the administration and Board.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 505 Page 2 of 2

6. Recognize staff development program participation by providing appropriate
recognition.

Tailor the programs of staff development to all staff groups.

Continue ongoing planning and evaluation of the staff development plan.
Develop the program so it is consistent with institutional goals and objectives.
Consider the total development needs of the employee and of the College.
Develop the program in view of fostering job satisfaction and attracting and
retaining qualified, creative, committed and competent employees.

e
= O oo~

Note: New Mexico Junior College shall train without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, or veteran status in compliance
with any applicablethe-state and federal statutes and guidelines.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 506

Page | of 2

SECTION: Personnel
POLICY TOPIC: Annual Goal Setting

Philosophy

The success of New Mexico Junior College is directly related to the job performance
of its employees in its service area. Therefore, the College shall be committed to a
system of annual goal setting to help employees stay focused.

Goal Setting Sessions

A.

Full-Time Professional Salaried (Exempt) Employees: Goal setting sessions will
be conducted on each full time professional employee by their supervisor. The
year’s previous list of goals shall also be discussed with the employee to
determine if the goals were met and if they should be removed from the next
year’s goals or refined and included in the next year’s goals. The intent of the
goal setting sessions is to help provide guidance on professional development and
to meet the college’s mission and vision. Professional employee annual goal
setting documentation shall be maintained in the Human Resources Office.

Full-Time Faculty (Exempt) Employees: A formal evaluation procedure has been
developed for full-time faculty employees, which is designed to necessitate an
overall commitment for instructional improvement while at the same time
providing a means to support employee decision making and contract renewal.
The performance of all faculty employees shall be annually reviewed with an
emphasis on new objectives for the next assessment period. Annual faculty
evaluations are maintained in files in the office of the appropriate Dean.

Full-Time Support/Maintenance Hourly (Non-Exempt) Employees: Goal setting
sessions will be conducted on each full time support/maintenance employees by
their supervisor. The year’s previous list of goals shall also be discussed with the
employee to determine if the goals were met and if they should be removed from
the next year’s goals or refined and included in the next year’s goals. The intent
of the goal setting sessions is to help provide guidance on professional
development and to meet the college’s mission and vision.  Full-Time
Support/Maintenance employee annual goal setting session documentation shall
be maintained in the Human Resources Office.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 506 Page 2 of 2

Ill.  Recognition

A. New Mexico Junior College has a program that recognizes excellent service and
communicates to its employees pride in a job well done. Service awards are a part
of this recognition and reflect the commitment and effort of employees to earn
them. The service awards are recognition of those full-time employees who have
attained five (5) years of continuous service. Service Awards are given out to
employees in 5 year increments.

B. Eligibility

1. Current full-time employee

2. Only actual employment (other than contingent status) shall serve as
length of service for this program.

3. The annual cut-off date for determining service awards shall be
December 31.

4. The service awards shall not apply to part-time, contingent and
seasonal employees or to the persons teaching in the continuing
education/community development program.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 507 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Employee Records

. Responsibility for Employee Records

The Executive Director of Administrative Services is designated as the custodian for
personnel records of the faculty and staff employees and the records of applicants
seeking employment at the College.

Il.  Inspection Policy

Any authorized person who wishes to inspect the contents of a personnel file or
applicant file shall be permitted to do so, but is limited to information that does not
include legally protected material.

IIl.  Release of Information

Except as required for use by the President in the execution of official duties, or as
required by law
——— the custodian for records shall release personnel file contents only upon

written authorization from the employee affected.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 508 Page 1 of 3
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Employee Standards of Ethics

Declaration of Policy

Engaging in extramural work for money, although not encouraged, shall not be
prohibited unless such work interferes with the employee’s duties, creates a conflict
of interest or adversely reflects on the College or its purpose. Conflict of interest
occurs when an employee is in a position to influence a decision or utilize information
that he/she shall have access to in his/her position which may result in personal gain
for the employee (or for a family member, or any immediate family member). To
implement this policy, the following standards of conduct and disclosure
requirements shall be observed by the employees owing a responsibility to the people
of the service area in the performance of their duties (see Employee Handbook). This
policy shall serve as a guide for official conduct and as a basis for discipline of those
who breach the standards of ethics.

Standards of Conduct

A. All CollegenNMIE employees shall treat his/her position as a public trust and
shall use the powers and resources of his/her position to advance the interests of
the College and shall not obtain personal benefits or pursue private interests that
are incompatible with the public interest.

B. All Ceollege employees shall conduct themselves in a manner that maintains the
appearance and fact of integrity in the ethical discharging of their position
responsibilities.

C. Pursuant to state law, New Mexico Junior College employees shall not request or
receive money, items or gifts of value, favors, gratuities or promises from any
person, firm or corporation that is engaged in or attempting to do business (either
directly or indirectly) with the College.

D. An employee having (or whose family has) any sort of financial or managerial
relationship (whether directly or indirectly) with a business attempting to do
business with the College shall disclose such relationship in writing to the
Coordinator of Purchasing before the College can purchase goods or services
from the business.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 508 Page 2 of 3

E. Anemployee may engage in consulting, in accordance with the NMJC Consulting
Policy, so long as the practice is not in conflict (either directly or indirectly) with
the employee’s position or the services offered by the College.

F. No employee shall accept other employment or engage in any activity that might
reasonably cause him/her to disclose confidential information acquired by reason
of his/her employment with the College.

G. AllNMJC employees shall make eCollege purchases in accordance with the State
Procurement Code and purchasing procedures published by the Business Office.
Any unauthorized purchases made by an employee shall be considered personal
in nature and shall not be binding uponte the College.

H. Employees shall not use Ceollege purchase cards or charge/vendor accounts for
personal use. Violation of this policy shall result in disciplinary action up to and
including dismissal.

Disclosure of Interest

A. Certification of No Interest: Any employee in the preparation of specifications,
evaluation, recommendation, execution or administration of any purchase or
contract for the purchase of goods or services by the College (other than
employment contracts) shall be deemed to have certified in writing that he/she
does not have a substantial interest in any business entity which is a party to or
receives direct financial benefit from New Mexico Junior College's purchase or
contract.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 508

Page 3 of 3

Non-Certification: If in any case an employee is or anticipates that he/she shall
be in breach of the above certification, he/she shall immediately notify his/her
immediate supervisor of such fact, identify the business entity in which he/she
has a substantial interest and the nature and extent thereof. Such an employee
shall immediately be removed from any involvement in the transaction and the
President shall take such other action as he/she may deem necessary to avoid a
conflict of interest with regard to such a transaction.

Financial DisclosureStatements: Any employee routinely involved in activities
covered by this policy shall, at his/her option, make a disclosure of his/her
personal interest by filing a statement of such interest with the President (or in
the case of the President with the Board). Any such statement shall be updated
annually. The President shall require the filing of such financial
disclosurestaterent by any employee routinely or extensively involved in the
type of business transactions contemplated by this policy.

IV.  Non-Compliance

The failure of any employee to comply with one or more of the provisions of this

poli

cy, which applies to him/her, shall constitute cause for termination of

employment subject to right of hearing.

V. Employee Theft Policy

It is a violation of the New Mexico Junior College theft policy for any employee to
take or allow another employee to take college property and convert that property to
his/her own use. A violation of this policy shall result in dismissal from employment
(see Employee Handbook).



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 509 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Drug -Free Workplace

l. Drug -Free Workplace Policy and Program

The Drug -Free Workplace Policy and Program has been adopted pursuant to federal
law and the commitment of the College to a drug-free environment for the pursuit of
its educational mission. Drug abuse in the workplace poses a serious threat to the health
and welfare of employees and student employees; impairs work performance;
jeopardizes the safety and well-being of other employees, students and members of the
general public and conflicts with the responsibility of New Mexico Junior College to
foster a healthy atmosphere for the pursuit of education and service for the Junior
College District. Details of the entire policy are printed in the current Employee
Handbook as well as online at the NMJC Web page.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 510 Page 1 of 2
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Sexual Harassment Policy

I. Sexual Harassment

The New Mexico Junior College Sexual Harassment Policy shall cover all the employees
of the eCollege and all the students. This policy also extends to former employees and
former students when sexual harassment has resulted in a change of the employee’s or
student’s status to that of a non-employee or non-student prior to resolution of any alleged
sexual harassment.

Discrimination on the basis of sex is a violation of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil
Rights Act of 1991 and Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972. New Mexico
Junior College prohibits sexual harassment activity, which is a form of sexual
discrimination, by any of its employees or students. Unwelcome sexual advances,
requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature
constitutes sexual harassment when:

A. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or
condition of employment or instructional service.

B. Submission to such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an
individual’s work; or classroom performance; or creating an intimidating,
hostile or offensive workplace, classroom or campus environment.

C. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis
for delivery to or withholding of the institution’s services.

Unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature and a hostile work, classroom or campus
environment includes, but is not limited to, the following:

A. Verbal or physical sexual advances, including subtle pressure for sexual
activity; touching, pinching, patting or brushing against; flirtations or verbal
abuse of a sexual nature; graphic comments regarding physical or personality
characteristics of a sexual nature; displaying of sexually suggestive objects or
pictures in the work place; and sexually oriented kidding, teasing, double-
entendre and jokes.

B. Verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature shall constitute sexual
harassment when the allegedly harassed employee or student has indicated, by
his/her direct communication or conduct, that it is unwelcome.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 510

Page 2 of 2

Policy and Procedures for Employees:
A. Any employee who believes that he/she is the object of sexual harassment or

who has knowledge of any sexual harassment of any other employee or
student shall immediately report it to a supervisor or to the Executive Director
of Administrative Services. A prompt confidential investigation shall be
conducted of any reported sexual harassment. Charges of sexual harassment
should be made as soon as possible after the alleged occurrence. Appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal or suspension of
employment, shall be taken against any employee who is found to have been
responsible for sexual harassment or for knowingly permitting a sexually
hostile environment to exist.

Confidentiality shall be maintained within the limits of an investigation and
no reprisals or retaliation shall be allowed to occur as a result of good faith
reporting of charges.

Complaints of sexual harassment or unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature
shall be formally pursued under the EEO grievance procedure.

Policy and Procedures for Students:
A. Any student who believes that he/she is the object of sexual harassment or

who has knowledge of any sexual harassment of any other student or
employee shall immediately report it to the Vice President for Student
Services or his/her appointed designee. A prompt confidential investigation
shall be conducted of any reported sexual harassment. Charges of sexual
harassment should be as soon as possible after the alleged occurrence.
Appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including suspension or dismissal
of a student, shall be taken against any student who is found to have been
responsible for sexual harassment or for knowingly permitting a sexually
hostile environment to exist.

Confidentiality shall be maintained within the limits of an investigation and
no reprisals or retaliation shall be allowed to occur as a result of good faith
reporting of charges.

Complaints of sexual harassment by students or unwelcome conduct of sexual
nature by a student shall be formally pursued under the disciplinary procedure
and/or the grievance procedure within the Student Handbook.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 600 Page 1 of 5
SECTION: Curriculum and Instruction

POLICY TOPIC: Educational Programs and Services

Philosophy

The mission of New Mexico Junior College is to provide quality educational and
support services to enhance the quality of life for the communities and individuals
we serve and to ensure success through learning.

Transfer Education

The College offers courses which are designed to enable students, including those
who enter with scholastic deficiencies, to complete the first two (2) years of four (4)
years of college work and to enter a four-year institution. Several programs of study
exist to this end leading to Associate in Arts, Associate in Science, and Associate in
Applied Science degrees.

Career/Technical Education

The College actively monitors the technical/vocational training needs of its service
area and the state, and assumes a position of developing and offering courses
designed to equip students with the skills and technical knowledge required for
successful employment in semi-professional or other occupational fields. One- and
two-year certificate programs and an Associate in Applied Science degree are the
result of the completion of various technical/vocational program offerings at the
College.

Community and Continuing Education

In recognition of the principle that true education is a lifelong experience, New
Mexico Junior College offers non-credit courses designed to prepare individuals for
responsible citizenship, increased competence in communication, improved
understanding of their cultural heritage and physical and biological environment,
achievement of a balanced lifestyle, social adjustment and an opportunity for life
enrichment.

Atrticulated High School Program

New Mexico Junior College is committed to a close working relationship with the
public secondary schools in its area. A cooperative program has been established
whereby high school students are trained in various occupational programs in the



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 2 of 5

VI.

VII.

VIII.

same facilities and share equipment with their post-secondary counterparts. This
cooperative program allows high school students to amass college credits while still
completing their high school education.

Dual Credit Classes

New Mexico Junior College is committed to working closely with the public
secondary schools in its area. To this end, NMJC has established a broad
spectrum of dual credit classes that are offered to qualified high school
students. These courses are offered via ITV, online, and/or face to face
methodologies and the participating high school students must meet the same
standards and placement scores as native students.

Early College

New Mexico Junior College is committed to working closely with the public,
secondary schools in the area it serves. To enhance this endeavor NMJC, along with
the five school districts, has developed an Early College Program which allows high
school juniors and seniors the opportunity to fully immerse in the college setting on
the NMJC campus and work towards an Associate’s Degree at the same time they
complete requirements for high school graduation.

Basic Skill Development

To support the open door policy and to provide opportunities for those citizens not
able to complete high school, the College offers an Adult Basic Education (ABE)
program culminating in the award of a General Education Development (GED)
diploma. Classes in English as a Second Language are conducted at sites throughout
the county.

Continuing Education and Educational Access Programs and Services

In keeping with its mission of educational access, New Mexico Junior College offers
the following programs and services. The Board acknowledges these programs and
services as important to the educational program and supports their continued
development.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 3 of 5

XI.

A. Instructional Qutreach: Instruction in both credit and non-credit programs are
offered at various public schools and other facilities throughout the service area.
The College also enters into cooperative agreements with community agencies
and organizations to offer skill-training opportunities on site.

B. Flexible Scheduling: New Mexico Junior College offers a variety of courses
during the evening hours and on weekends. Self-paced instruction is also
available in many programs. The implementation of the open-entry open-exit
concept is also being supported.

C. Telecommunications: Instructional television (ITV) and other means of
electronic delivery are effective means of extending educational opportunity to
citizens who otherwise might not avail themselves of it or who prefer an
individual approach to learning. The College shall continue to develop means to
implement these programs.

D. Brokering of Educational Services: NMJC is committed to distance education
through brokering and coordination of educational programs, activities and
services in its region.

Instructional Support Services

New Mexico Junior College offers extensive support services for its instructional
courses and programs to include learning resources, tutoring, counseling and
guidance, career advisement, assessment and placement.

Small Business Development Center (SBDC)

The Small Business Development Center (SBDC) provides a vast array of technical
assistance to small businesses and aspiring entrepreneurs. By supporting business
growth, sustainability and enhancing the creation of new business entities, the
SBDC foster local and regional economic development through job creation and
retention. As a result of the no cost, extensive, one-on-one, long-term professional
business advising, low-cost training and other specialized services SBDC clients
receive, the program remains one of the nation’s largest small business assistance
programs. The SBDC is made up of a unique collaboration of SBA federal funds,
state and local governments, and private sector resources.

The SBDC provides services through professional business advisors including the
development of business plans, financial proposals and lending assistance,
procurement and contracting aid, market research, trainings, tax planning and other
business related services. The New Mexico Junior College SBDC is part of the New



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 600

Page 4 of 5

Mexico Small Business Development Center Network (NMSBDC), which is
comprised of 19 service centers and 7 satellite offices strategically located
throughout New Mexico. Service area for the New Mexico Junior College SBDC is
Lea County, New Mexico.

XIl.  Gra

ding and Scholastic Standing

A.

Philosophy:  The task of evaluating academic performance is extremely
important. Although letter grades are not precise yardsticks for indicating levels
of academic performance, the assignment of grades shall be taken seriously by all
faculty employees, in view of the extremely important consequences that grades
have in the lives and goals of students. Despite this emphasis on grades, it is even
more important that faculty employees not lose sight of the more important goals
of evaluation i.e., emphasizing an attitude toward lifelong learning and
determining whether students actually reach predetermined objectives of the
curricula. Since the goals of the College are the maximizing of learning and skills
among students, rather than a sorting out of individuals by grade discrimination,
New Mexico Junior College encourages its faculty employees to discuss and
evaluate different philosophies of grading and to recommend policies or
procedures which are likely to improve the motivation of students toward the
intrinsic rewards of learning and to stimulate a better atmosphere for learning in
the College.

System of Grading: The grading system that is currently being used by the
College is the "A" through "F" system. Grades assigned shall reflect the quality
of work done in courses for credit. Grades indicating the standing of students for
each course taken are issued at the end of each semester. Complete descriptions
of grades offered as well as an explanation of various withdrawal formats and
course options are listed in the Student Handbook and the College Catalog.

Grade Appeals: An appeals process as outlined in the Student Handbook and
College Catalog shall be available for students wishing to appeal an assigned
grade.

. Scholastic Standing: A system of recognizing scholastic standing has been

instituted at the College to include recognition of honor for academic
achievement as well as an identification of those having academic difficulty
through a system of probation and suspension. More specific procedures for the
classification of probation and suspension as well as the removal provisions from
such probation and suspension are listed in the Student Handbook and the College
Catalog.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 5 of 5

XII.

XIV.

XV.

Student Academic Load

The normal load for a full-time college student, who plans to graduate in two (2)
years, (without attending summer school) is sixteenl5-16 hours per semester.
However, in order for a student to maintain full-time status, he/she shall enroll in,
and complete a m|n|mum of twelve (12) semester hours AFFGVEFlG&d—IS—FRGFe—thaH

SHRRRALEL IS e (See College Catalog)

Attendance

Attendance shall be required at every session of each course for which the student is
enrolled. When unavoidable circumstances make attendance impossible, students
shall provide a satisfactory explanation of their absences to their instructors. College
sponsored activities are considered excused absences and instructors shall be notified
of the students who will be absent from class. Students having absences due to college
sponsored activities shall be permitted to make up work. It shall be the responsibility
of the student to make arrangements with the affected classes/instructors to take care
of the required work; however, arrangements for make-ups shall be made within a
reasonable time frame, usually within one week of the absence.

Graduation Requirements

A. Graduation requirements represent the firm commitment to general education
principles that are designed to develop the potential of each student, broaden the
outlook and contribute to the realization of the well-balanced whole person. Upon
completion of graduation requirements, New Mexico Junior College awards the
following degrees: Associate in Arts, Associate in Science, and Associate in
Applied Science to students who complete a prescribed program. One and two-
year certificates are also awarded by the BeardCollege.

B. Transitional studies courses shall not be used to satisfy graduation requirements;
however, transitional studies courses required for some students shall become a
part of their degree plan.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 601

SECTION: Curriculum and Instruction

POLICY TOPIC: Academic Freedom

. Introduction

A dami aadom i 1n0ht nro ad h aYal

Constitution-New Mexico Junior College is committed to the principle of academic

Page 1 of 2

Amanadment o na nitad fa

freedom in both teaching and learning.

Il.  Academic Freedom

A. The role of New Mexico Junior College shall not embrace that of research as

commonly found in senior colleges and universities. New Mexico Junior College
is a teaching institution; therefore, any consideration of academic freedom does
of necessity concern freedom in the instructional process.

. As a purveyor of ideas, the faculty employees, at times, shall come in conflict

with the prevailing belief of large segments of society, and even with that of
his/fher own colleagues. Academic freedom is not easily defined because it
involves a special set of guarantees. That right to support unorthodox positions,
arrived at through scholarly investigation, free from reprisals or coercion, is
fundamental to the continued progress of society. The right to pursue unpopular
lines of inquiry and express new and unaccepted ideas shall fall within the
framework of a very special set of guarantees called academic freedom. In
granting these guarantees, society expresses a willingness to risk the
consequences, because history confirms that the risk is outweighed by the benefits
derived from such a society.

. The exercise of this freedom carries with it the burden of corollary

responsibilities. Professional employees shall not knowingly misrepresent facts.
They shall be careful in their teaching not to introduce controversial matter
bearing no relationship to their subject. They shall not force their own ideas and
ready-made decisions on the student, but shall get the student to make his/her own
decisions in the light of all available information. They shall exercise appropriate
restraint and guard against distortion and inaccuracies. Outside his/her academic
role, as a private citizen, the professional employee shall have no other special
privileges. When he/she speaks or writes as a private citizen, he/she shall be free
from institutional censorship or discipline; but his/her special position in the
community imposes special obligations. As a person of learning and as an
instructional employee, he/she shall remember that the public shall judge his/her
institution by his/her utterances.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 601

Page 2 of 2

He/she shall at all times be accurate, shall exercise appropriate restraint, shall
show respect for the opinions of others, and shall make every effort to indicate
that he/she is not a spokesperson for the College. Should the extramural
utterances of an instructor be such as to raise grave doubts concerning his/her
fitness for his/her position, institutional discipline shall be imposed which may
include board action.

. The Cellege Board recognizes that it is not possible to define with precision the

limits of academic freedom in the complex world of ideas; however, the Board
insists that its policies be followed.

The employee’s own colleagues and the College shall bear the brunt of public
criticism, shall have the most to lose from withdrawal of public trust, and are,
therefore, in the best position to balance the issues of academic freedom and
responsibility.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 602 Page | of 2
SECTION: Curriculum and Instruction

POLICY TOPIC: Curriculum Development and Revision

Curriculum Development and Revision

All programs at New Mexico Junior College shall be continuously appraised to assure
that the offered courses meet the needs of the community and of the students. The
College and Board shall encourage faculty involvement in the planning of course
offerings and in the development of new techniques for meeting course objectives.
The President shall be authorized to establish detailed procedures for curriculum
development.

Criteria for Course Creation

New Mexico Junior College shall create adult education, evening college, or
community service courses, whether credit or non-credit, when there is an apparent
need for it in the community, when the course is primarily educational, when qualified
instructors and funds are available, and when adequate enrollment is likely. Under
unusual circumstances (e.g., acute community needs, initiation of new programs)
some latitude in class size shall be allowed.

Course and Program Evaluation

The College shall have a system in place to evaluate its courses and programs
according to relevant enrollment, student achievement, placement statistics, and the
criteria as listed above. A course or program shall be discontinued when it ceases to
meet all applicable criteria.

Course and Program Excellence

The College shall strive to achieve and maintain excellence in all of its courses and
programs. Further, the College shall encourage faculty employees to keep relevant and
current in their disciplines as well as promote the research and development of creative
and imaginative educational programs. Real life experiences, field trips and similar
activities as part of a course or program are perceived as adding to the relevance and
excellence of the program, and shall therefore be encouraged.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 602 Page 2 of 2

V. Instructional Methodology

Creating alternative means of delivering instruction shall also be encouraged,
particularly in view of the diversity of New Mexico Junior College students.
Electronic techniques, self-paced instruction and other innovative methodologies
shall be seen as key opportunities in the expansion of instructional delivery for the
college's service area.

VI.  Course Syllabi

Course syllabi shall be prepared for all courses listed in the College Catalog. The
syllabi shall be updated continually and copies shall be kept on file in the offices of
the Academic Division Deans.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 700

Page 1 of 2

SECTION: Student Services
POLICY TOPIC: Student Programs and Services

General Policy

Students shall be responsible for acquainting themselves with the services maintained
for them and with procedures outlined for their assistance in such sources as the
College Catalog, Student Handbook, student bulletins and other official publications.
The student services staff shall make every effort to assist the student in this
endeavor.

Programs and Services

A.

Counseling: The College shall provide counseling services to assist students in
their educational planning.

Financial Aid: Financial aid programs including various loan funds, scholarships,
grants, and campus employment shall be provided and promoted as they are
available.

ieesStudent Accessibility Services: A support service program
for individuals with disabilities shall be available to assist students with their
documented special needs while obtaining an education.

. Student Records: The

shall maintain permanent academic records for each student
which shall include all courses taken by a student and the grade received in each
course. All changes of enrollment (dropping a course, adding a course or
withdrawing from the College) shall be processed through this office.

In addition, the Enrollment-Management Office shall make official

changes of a name and/or address, shall send out transcripts, and process the

appeal of academic probation or suspension. Other services the office shall

provide include agency certification and graduation checks through the National

Student Clearinghouse.

1. Philosophy: The College shall maintain such information in its files for each
student as is considered essential and appropriate to the college operation and
student welfare. The College shall adhere to all federal and state laws and
rules pertaining to the privacy rights of parents and students.

Formatted: Highlight
Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 700

Page 2 of 2

2. Release of Student Information: New Mexico Junior College does not publish
a student directory for general distribution. Release of student information,
schedules, and related data shall be governed by the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 as amended. Each student shall
have the right to review personal records, to seek correction of information
contained in those records, and to have access to records as outlined in
FERPA regulations. Student records shall be kept in the Registrar’s Office of
Enrolment-Management and shall be confidential to the student, advisor, and
those faculty and staff employees to have authorized access to the files to
perform their jobs.

F. Assessment: The student services staff shall be qualified and equipped to provide

testing services for a variety of the students’ needs from assistance with career
planning to course placement. These services shall be encouraged for the student
and shall assist the faculty employee or counselor in the academic advisement of
the student. This shall ultimately result in the student experiencing a more
positive and successful educational program.

I11.  Student Activities:

A.

Philosophy: The College shall be committed to the concept of providing vital co-
curricular activities for students. Qualified staff employees shall be employed to
develop and to coordinate programs and activities which shall enhance individual
leadership development, promote desired social interaction, and provide social
and recreational activities.

Student Organizations: Impetus for the formation of new clubs at the College is
expected to come from students. As a pre-requisite to operation on campus, all
clubs shall be recognized by the College and shall agree to abide by regulations
of the Board and club rules issued by the administration. No club shall be
established or allowed to operate which discriminates against employees or
students in violation of state or federal law. Student clubs and organizations are
required to designate a full-time staff employee, generally a faculty member, as a
sponsor. Student organizations shall be approved annually by the Vice President
for Student Services. (See Student Handbook for a list of Student Clubs and
Organizations)



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 701 Page l of 1
SECTION: Student Services

POLICY TOPIC: Admissions

Admissions

New Mexico Junior College is an independent two-year comprehensive community
college having as a major part of its fundamental mission the provision of serving the
needs and making accessible post-secondary education to the members of the
community. In order to fulfill this mission, the College has an open-door policy for
admission of students in credit courses and programs, who have graduated from an
accredited high school, completed a General Education Development (GED)

certificate, or who through age and experience qualify for
admission. The College also has opportunities for high school juniors and seniors to
take college classes. New Mexico Junior College’s non-credit course admission shall
be in accordance with program procedures and admission policies as described
herein.

Admission Requirements

General admission requirements and specific course and program admission
requirements shall be outlined in the College Catalog. All admission procedures shall

be under the direct supervision of the Dean-of EnrollmentManagementand

subject to review and action by the Vice President for Student Services.

Equal Access
New Mexico Junior College does not discriminate in its educational and employment

policies and procedures with regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
national origin, age, disability, genetic information, or veteran status.

Admissions Appeal

If an applicant feels that he/she has been unjustly denied admission to the College,
he/she shall follow an appeals process as outlined in the College Catalog.

Formatted: Highlight
Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough
Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight
Formatted: Strikethrough



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 702

Page | of 3

SECTION: Student Services
POLICY TOPIC: Registration, Tuition Charges

Registration Policy

A.

The President shall ensure that registration activities and procedures are
developed in accordance with College policies.

Early registration procedures shall be developed to maximize student planning,
advisement, and placement into appropriate classes.

It shall be the policy of the College to offer equal access to courses and programs
being offered for all students who have pre-requisites subject to enrollment limits
and deadlines.

Tuition Charges

A.

General Policy

The New-Mexico-Junior-Cellege Board has the statutory authority to set tuition

rates in order to ensure adequate financing of the college. Upon recommendation
of the President, the Board will annually review and consider changes in tuition
rates as part of the budgetary process. Careful attention and planning of tuition
increases will include seeking appropriate input from student representatives, the
community, staff, and the Board. Tuition is the student’s share of the cost of
instruction and general expenditures that represent the cost of providing an
education. In determining tuition rates, New Mexico Junior College will seek to
uphold the following principles:

1. Citizens who desire a postsecondary education should have access to these
educational opportunities at an affordable price.

2. Students and their families are entitled to maximum predictability related to
the cost of attending college. Increases in tuition should be gradual and
moderate.

3. A reasonable and consistent share of the cost of public education should be
shared by the state, local taxpayers, and the student. The New-Mexico-Junior
Cellege Board will take into consideration the following criteria in
determining tuition rates:

- The mission and strategic plan of the College;

- The availability of state funding;

- The formula tuition credit rate and other state initiatives adopted by the
legislature;



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 702 Page 2 of 3

- The district’s contribution through local mill levy revenues;

- The tuition rates at other two-year institutions;

- The financial needs of the College, considering other revenue
sources and unrestricted reserve balances;

- The sources of need-based financial aid available to students for
offsetting tuition increases.

B. Refunds of Tuition

See the Academic Calendar maintained on the NMJC website and the procedures
are outlined in the College Catalog.

Students who receive federal Title 1V financial aid and who withdraw, drop or
otherwise fail to complete the semester for which they are enrolled are subject to
the federal return of funds policy and may owe a refund to the U.S. Department
of Education for unearned amounts received. The return of funds calculation is
based on the time a student spent in academic attendance, and a pro rata schedule
is used to determine the amount of Title IV aid earned, and the amount to be
returned by the institution and the student. Students who do not begin attendance
in any or all of their classes will be subject to recalculation of their awards, and
will be responsible for any charges owed to NMJC. Questions regarding the
federal return of funds policy may contact the Financial Aid Office for further
information.

C. Tuition Refund Appeals Procedure

A withdrawing student must submit a written appeal delineating individual
circumstances that would warrant an exception to the published refund policy to

the Dean—of Enrolment—Management: The Formatted: Highlight

. WI“_ study the appeal Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight
and either recommend a refund or refer the appeal to the Vice President for

Instruction. Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Highlight
Formatted: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 702

D.

Page 3 of 3

Military Absence

Any student serving as a reservist in the armed forces who is called up for duty
should contact the
to explore potential options to continue or terminate
their current enrollment. The
along with the Academic Deans will first explore
ways to assist the student in completing his/her classes. If this is not feasible or
viable, the college will offer the student a tuition waiver for a subsequent semester
when they return from active duty. Documentation of the waiver will be
maintained with the students’ permanent record. To ensure that NMJC is more
than fair in itseur policies regarding military absences, NMJCwe-will process
refunds that go beyond our normal school refunds — on a case by case basis. A
student called up for active duty should contact the
in person or by writing before the
end of the enrollment period. The student will need to provide a copy of their
orders.

Formatted:
Formatted:
Formatted:

Formatted:

Formatted

Formatted:

Formatted:

Highlight
Highlight
Highlight
Highlight

: Highlight

Highlight
Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 703

Page 1 of 5

SECTION: Student Services

POLICY TOPI

C: College Credits, Articulation with Other Institutions and Graduation
Requirements

I.  Transfer of Credits

A.

Credit Courses: New Mexico Junior College has a broad policy of acceptance of
transfer credits from other post-secondary institutions recognized by regional
accrediting agencies. Regardless of the number of credit hours accepted for
transfer into New Mexico Junior College, a maximum of forty-eight (48) credit
hours shall be applied toward a degree or certificate. A transfer student shall
complete a minimum of fifteen (15) credit hours at New Mexico Junior College
prior to the granting of a degree or certificate.

Occupational/Vocational Non-Credit Experience: Only credit earned in non-
technical subjects shall be initially accepted from technical institutes which are
accredited by a regional collegiate accrediting association. Normally, no credit
shall be accepted by the College from technical institutes, business schools, or
other post high school institutes which are not members of regional collegiate
accrediting associations. However, students applying to the College who have
earned technical credit, which they believe would be applicable to the degree they
are pursuing, may have an official transcript sent from the school directly to the

New Mexico Junior College, | Office]
EESTEIETENEEEEEE. 1t shall then be the student's responsibility to request
referral of this transcript by the

EETETEEEEEESE T (o the division of the college having supervision

of his/her particular program. The division shall determine whether any of the
credit is acceptable in its program and return the transcript with its

recommendations to the | Officeof]
EIEEEEEE. An interview or demonstration of competence, or both,

shall be required before the decision regarding credit is made. Acceptance of such
credit shall be binding only to the specific program recommending credit. It shall
be subject to re-evaluation should the student later enter another program offered
by the College.

Formatted:
Formatted:

: Highlight

Formatted

Formatted:

Formatted:

Formatted

Highlight
Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 703

Page 2 of 5

Il.  Alternative Methods of Earning Credit

A.

Advanced Placement (AP)

Students who have completed college-level courses in secondary schools and have
taken the Advanced Placement (AP) examinations of the College Board with
resulting composite scores of 3, 4, or 5 may petition for college credit and advanced
placement. Such credit will be treated as transfer credit without a grade, will count
toward graduation, and may be used in fulfilling specific curriculum requirements.
Students who have taken and passed examinations for Advanced Placement
courses, other than those listed in the NMJC Catalog, should meet with a counselor
about credit for those courses. Students may earn a maximum of 48 credits for
successful performance on AP examinations. The NMJC courses and the credit
hours which will be given for AP scores obtained in the AP subject area indicated
in the NMJC College Catalog.

B. College Level Examination Program (CLEP)

NMJC recognizes and honors prior learning by accepting a wide range of subject
area College-Level Examination Program (CLEP) tests, which measure a student’s
mastery of college-level, introductory course content in a wide range of disciplines.
Transfer students can earn credit through prior CLEP exams if their scores meet
these credit-granting standards. Credit for CLEP examinations will be treated as
credit without a grade, will count toward graduation, and may be used in fulfilling
specific curriculum requirements. NMJC grants‘We-grant a maximum of 48 credits
for successful performance on CLEP examinations. The NMJC Catalog will
provide details of scores required on each specific subject area, scores required, and
credit hours given for each subject area.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 703

C.

Page 3 of 5

Credit for Prior Learning Policy
Law Enforcement/Corrections (Criminal Justice)

New Mexico Junior College recognizes that New Mexico police officers and
corrections officers come to us with a firm grounding in their individual
disciplines. We recognize and honor their prior learning by awarding college credit
for a wide variety of learning experiences, both classroom and practical
experience. In an effort to assist officers who want to further their educational
experiences, NMJC is willing to award college credit for successful completion of
both a certified law enforcement academy and/or corrections academy. Such credit
will be treated as credit without a grade, will count toward graduation, and may be
used in fulfilling specific curriculum requirements. Credit will be awarded as
indicated in the NMJC College Catalog.

. Institutional Challenge

New Mexico Junior College recognizes that students learn by experience as well
as in the formal class setting. Therefore, credit for courses for which there is no
CLEP exam is awarded upon satisfactory performance on comprehensive
examinations that are administered by the divisions responsible for the courses.
The grade on each institutional challenge exam is the grade that will appear on the
NMJC transcript. In order to be eligible to attempt credit by institutional challenge,
the following provisions must be met:

e The student must contact the appropriate academic dean and instructor for
permission and make arrangements to take the institutional exam for credit.

e The student must not have previously audited, enrolled in, or attempted
credit by examination in the course(s).

e The student must enroll in the course before the institutional challenge
exam can be taken.

Credit by exam will not be awarded for physical education activity classes.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 703 Page 4 of 5

Transcripts of Credit Courses

Upon request by a student, the Bean-efEnrretmentManagement shall send

a student's transcript to any college, agency, business, or person named by the student.
Official transcripts shall be forwarded as mandated by federal requirements. No
transcripts shall be released if a student is in debt to the College or is delinquent on
student financial aid payments unless required by federal guidelines.

Acrticulation
A. Articulation

At a regular meeting of the New Mexico Junior College Board on December 18,
1990, that body adopted the following articulation policy addendum on the
treatment of native NMJC and transfer students: “To further enhance articulation
between all state-supported institutions in New Mexico, New Mexico Junior
College adopts the principle of treating transfer students as native NMJC students
in the application of credit toward certificate or degree requirements.”

B. Transfer Among New Mexico Higher Education Institutions

To facilitate transfer of students and course credits among New Mexico’s colleges
and universities, the state’s public institutions of higher education are required to
accept in transfer courses taken within approved modules of lower-division course
work and apply them toward degree requirements. Several transfer guides have
been developed through collaboration of New Mexico’s public post-secondary
institutions, consistent with requirements of state law (Section 21- 1B-16-1-6, et.
seq. NMSA, 1978). Students enrolling for first-year or second-year study at a New
Mexico institution and wishing to prepare for possible transfer into a degree
program at another institution are advised to take the lower-division coursework
during their freshman and sophomore years.

Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight
Formatted: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 703 Page 5 of 5

C. Student Responsibility

New Mexico’s colleges and universities have collaborated to produce guides to
assist students who plan to transfer before completing a program of study. Course
modules are designed to help students select courses carefully so that they may
transfer with little or no loss of credit. However, planning for effective transfer with
maximum efficiency is ultimately the student’s responsibility. Responsible transfer
planning includes early and regular consultation with the intended degree-granting
institution to assure that all pre-transfer coursework will meet the requirements of
the desired degree.

D. Transferable Lower-Division General Education Common Core

Students enrolling for first-year study who have not yet selected either an academic
focus or the institution where they wish to graduate are advised to take courses
during their freshman year outlined in the Lower Division General Education
Common Core. For students enrolled at any public institution in New Mexico, a
general education course matrix has been created and courses listed on said matrix
(www.hed.state.nm.us) are guaranteed to transfer to any other New Mexico public
college or university, and apply toward associate and baccalaureate degree program
requirements.  Students should consult advisors at their current institutions
regarding which specific courses fit these categories. Students preparing for careers
in engineering, health sciences, or other profession-related fields are advised that
some of this course work may not transfer toward general education requirements
but in most cases will apply toward elective requirements.

E. Application for Degree or Certificate

Degree or certificate candidates shall be required to file an application to graduate
for each degree or certificate sought. Forms shall be completed and fees paid by
dates posted by the Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight


http://www.hed.state.nm.us/

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 704 Page 1 of 4
SECTION: Student Services

POLICY TOPIC: Code of Student Conduct

General Rule

By registering at New Mexico Junior College, a student assumes responsibility for
becoming familiar with and abiding by the general rules of conduct as established in
the Student Handbook. Students who are also employees of the College shall be
covered by employee policies related to conduct and administrative appeal rather than
such student policies.

General Provisions

Students at New Mexico Junior College neither lose the rights nor escape the
responsibilities of citizenship. Students shall be expected to obey the criminal and
civil statutes of the State of New Mexico, the federal government, and the ¢College's
policies, procedures, rules and regulations. Students may be penalized by the College
for violating its standards of conduct even though they are also punished by the state
or federal authorities for the same act.

Scope

New Mexico Junior College shall have jurisdiction for disciplinary purposes over a
person who was a student at the time the alleged violation of a bBoard policy,
administrative procedure, rule or Ceollege regulation occurred.

Disciplinary Actions and Sanctions

A. When an alleged infraction of Ceollege policies, procedures, rules or regulations
is brought to the attention of the NMJC Disciplinary Official, an appropriate
investigation of the alleged violation shall occur. The student(s) involved shall
be given the opportunity to present his/her/their case. Following an
investigation of the matter, the Mice-President-for-Student-Services

shall make an administrative decision on the case and, if warranted,
assess the appropriate disciplinary action.

The following internal guidelines are established for the handling of disciplinary
matters. A NMJC Security/Public Safety Officer will generate an incident report
stating a student may have violated the Student Code of Conduct. The Security /
Public Safety Officer must make supervisors aware of alleged violation and
communication must continue up to and including the Vice President for Student
Services (VPSS).

Formatted: Strikethrough
Formatted: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 704

1.

Page 2 of 4

Upon receipt of this information, prior to the completion of the
investigation, the VPSS, VPI, or Director of Public Safety will make a
determination regarding the threat to property, self, or others and may
impose interim suspension sanctions.

Upon completion of investigation and documentation of such by a
Security / Public Safety Officer, the Security / Public Safety Officer will
give an incident report to the Disciplinary Official and give the student a

business card which will include the name of the
NMJC D|SC|pI|nary OffICIal as—well—-as—dathy—times—for—discipline

The student in question will meet with the NMJC Disciplinary Official.
This meeting will be recorded. The NMJC Disciplinary Official will
provide the following information to the student both verbally and in
writing.

a. the specific violations

b. the discipline to be imposed; and

c. the appeal process.

Students shall sign for and take possession of copies of pertinent information utilized in the
disciplinary decision. Investigative record / copies will be maintained at the StudentLife Office-

If the student chooses to challenge the disposition (ruling), he / she may

appeal the decision to the Disciplinary Committee. This request must be submitted in writing to
the Disciplinary Official no later than 2 (two) business days after the student receives his / her
discipline letter. The student will be notified in writing of the date and time of the hearing. (See
NMJC Student Handbook for Disciplinary Hearings and Appeal Process).

Formatted: Highlight
Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight
Formatted: Highlight



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 704 Page 3 of 4

B. New Mexico Junior College is a tax supported educational institution whose
mission is to provide an educational opportunity to all who enroll. Attendance is
not compulsory, and whether the opportunity to attend is called a "right" or
"privilege," it is optional and voluntary. The enrollment of a student at the
College is a voluntary entrance into the academic community. By such entrance,
the student voluntarily assumes obligations of performance and behavior, which
are imposed by the College relevant to its lawful missions, processes, and
functions. These obligations may be much higher than those imposed on all
citizens by civil and criminal law. New Mexico Junior College is a learning
community consisting of students, faculty, and staff. Just as any community has
a culture, along with written and unwritten “expectations” for conduct, NMJC
we too hashave a culture and associated expectations for behavior. The
community's expectation is that conduct is marked by integrity. Any student
who chooses to enroll at NMJC also chooses to become part of this community
and make constructive contributions to its culture. This choice is attended by an
obligation to conduct oneself in such a way as to facilitate the mission of the
community which is to "...pursue and share knowledge...” The following
principles are part of the collective expectation of the members of this
community relative to personal conduct. We hope they serve to explain and
illustrate our position.

o Civility- Members of a learning community interact with others in a courteous and polite
manner. Members of the community have a right to respect the values, opinions, or
feelings of others.

e Ethical Behavior- The pursuit of a higher education is a privilege. Associated with that
privilege is an obligation to aspire to a set of principles and values that demonstrate a
commitment to fairness, honesty, empathy, and achievement.

e Morality- Members of a learning community commit to ideals of right human conduct.
This is lifestyle that seeks to harm no one and attempts to be a positive contributor in
every interaction.

e Respect- Every member of this community should seek to both gain and demonstrate
respect. Members should hold one another in high regard. Each individual should conduct
him or herself in a manner worthy of that regard. That regard is gained by decent and
correct behavior.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 704 Page 4 of 4

The learning community at New Mexico Junior College does not intend to be prescriptive
regarding the personal beliefs and value systems of its members. However, this
community does believe that it has a right to expect its members to demonstrate personal
responsibility and integrity in word and deed. When the conduct of any member falls
outside the bounds of civil, moral, and ethical behavior, that member can expect the
community of New Mexico Junior College to call such conduct into question. The
College reserves the right to discipline students or student organizations for inappropriate
actions to secure compliance with these higher obligations. Students failing to maintain
these higher obligations may be asked to leave the academic community. Students are
expected to comply with all College policies and procedures and the Code of Conduct as
outlined in the student handbook. New Mexico Junior College officials have inherent
authority to maintain order and discipline students. Students are expected to comply with
all College policies and procedures. Students are also advised that violations of policy
are cumulative in nature. Although the NMJC Student Disciplinary System may have
some terminology and actions that mirror the legal system, it should not be confused with
the criminal justice system.

Students attending the District are subject to reasonable rules and regulations of the
Board. Foley v. Benedict, 55 S.W.2d 805 (Tex. Comm. App. 1932); Calbillo v. San Jacinto
Junior College, 305 F.Supp. 857 (S.D. Tex. 1969)

New Mexico Junior College officials may define offenses for which suspension (for
the rest of the semester or for a longer period of time) may be imposed and determine
whether the offense has been committed.  Students are entitled to a fair notice or
warning of what constitutes prohibited conduct. Students shall be given a fair
opportunity to demonstrate innocence in a hearing before school officials. Students are
entitled to due process in disciplinary hearings, including being given adequate notice
of the hearing and definite charges in advance and the right to a fair hearing before an
impartial tribunal. Foley v. Benedict, 55 S.W.2d 805 (Tex. Comm. App. 1932); Cornette
v. Aldridge, 408 S.W.2d 935 (Tex. Civ. App. 1966); Jenkins v. Louisiana State Board
of Education, 506 F.2d 992 (5th Cir. 1975); Shamloo v. Mississippi State Board of
Trustees, etc., 620 F.2d 515 (5th Cir. 1980)




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 705 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Student Services

POLICY TOPIC: Student Complaint Process

New Mexico Junior College is dedicated to a procedural process which provides that all
student grievances will be handled fairly and equally without regard to race, color, sex,
age, religion, disability, national origin, marital status, political affiliation, sexual
orientation or other non-merit factors. It is the policy of NMJC to provide fair and
orderly procedures to resolve student grievances. Nothing in this policy prevents a
student from discussing a complaint informally with the appropriate college employee.

INFORMAL COMPLAINT PROCESS

A student with a concern or complaint who feels they have been incorrectly or unfairly

treated has recourse through the complaint procedures. In some instances, complaints

can be resolved through an informal process in which the student talks to his/her
supervisor if necessary. The basic step of the informal process includes:

. Begin by discussing the matter with staff, faculty, or department in which the
issue originated.

. If the issue is not resolved, then the next step is to move forward with the formal
process.

. If the issue is resolved, tFo complete the informal complaint process, the NMJC
employee must fill out a complaint form with a satisfactory resolution. Finally,
the complaint form needs to be sent to the office of the Vice President for Student
Services for filing purposes.

FORMAL COMPLAINT PROCESS

The formal complaint process includes multiple entry points for the student. Those
entry points include:

e  Virtual Suggestion

° NMJC Employee

° Instructor

. Dean

. Public Safety

. Vice President for Finance

° Vice President of Instruction

. Vice President for Training and Outreach
. Vice President for Student Services

. President



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 800 Page | of 3
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Fiscal Programs and Operations

Fiscal Services

The Business Office shall administer revenues received, investments, control the
expenditure of funds, purchasing procedures, budget preparation, and other fiscal
matters affecting the College's operations. Procedures established to implement these
functions shall be maintained in accordance with all applicable current statutes and
board policies.

Budget

The President shall prepare or cause to be prepared a budget of revenues and
expenditures for New Mexico Junior College on a fiscal year basis. This budget shall
be developed in accordance with the New Mexico Higher Education Department
guidelines and based on input from the appropriate College administrators. The Board
shall adopt a budget at a public meeting on or before May 1st, prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year. The President or the Vice President for Finance shall be authorized
through the Board to re-allocate funds between the various items within a
departmental budget. The President shall not formulate a deficit budget or knowingly
approve deficit spending at the College. The approved budget shall be filed with the
New Mexico Higher Education Department on or before May 1st of the fiscal year
for which the budget is adopted.

Tax Rate and Levy of Taxes

The Board shall levy five (5) mills on all the net taxable property of the New-Mexice
Junier-Cellege District for operating and levy the appropriate tax rate for any debt
service requirements. The tax rates shall not exceed the amount approved pursuant to
state statute including yield control.

Fiscal Year
The College financial operations shall be based on the fiscal year (twelve-month

period) beginning on July 1 in each year and ending on June 30 in the succeeding
calendar year.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 800 Page 2 of 3

V.

VI.

VIL.

Audit

The College Board shall solicit and contract with a New Mexico-licensed certified
public accountant for an annual financial audit. The results of this audit of revenues,
expenditures, transfers, and changes in fund balances shall be in compliance with the
rules and regulations of the New Mexico Higher Education Department, the State
Auditor, the AICPA and generally accepted accounting practices and shall be

submitted to the New-Mexice-Junior-College Board after acceptance and release by
the New Mexico State Auditor.

Bequests, Donations and Gifts

Solicitation and receipts of gifts, bequests and donations by College employees shall
be made in accordance with established procedures and shall not be administered in
such a manner as to be unlawful or discriminatory.

Payroll

A. Salary checks for Fulltime Employees are disbursed by the Business Office after
8:00 a.m. on the 15™ and the last working day of the month Salary checks for
Part-time or Student Employees are disbursed by the Business Office after 8:00
a.m. on the 10" and 25™ of each month. When the 10", 15" or 25th day or the
last working day of the month falls on Saturday or Sunday, salary checks shall be
disbursed by the Business Office on Friday prior to that particular pay period.

Note: Direct deposit privileges are available to all full-time, part-time, and
student employees.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 800 Page 3 of 3

VIII.

B. Fulltime Employees signed up for direct deposit shall have their direct deposit
voucher available on the NMJC website on the 15" and last day of the month.
When the 15M and or the last day of the month falls on Saturday or Sunday, direct
deposit vouchers will be available online on Friday prior to that particular pay
period. Part-time and Student Employees signed up for direct deposit shall have
their direct deposit voucher available on the NMJC website using self-service
Banner on the 10" and 25" of the month. When the 10th or 25" day falls on
Saturday or Sunday, direct deposit vouchers will be available on Friday prior to
that particular pay period.

Disbursement Authorizations

The President and the Vice President for Finance shall be authorized and empowered
by the College Board to sign checks on New Mexico Junior College funds for lawful
expenses of the College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 801 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: General Management

Signature Authority

Unless the authorizing action of the Board specifically provides otherwise, any grant
application or any grant or contract approved shall be executed on behalf of the New
Mexico—Junior-Cellege Board by either the President or the Vice President for
Finance.

College Business Activities

A. Asan extension of its educational and community service missions, New Mexico
Junior College shall offer a variety of programs and services for general public
access that are derivatives of its instructional activities.

B. Itshall be desirable for the College to organize some of these activities as separate
and distinct business cost centers and charge fees for providing these goods and
services. To ensure that New Mexico Junior College does not become involved
in activities outside the College's mission, all business activities shall be related
to or support the College's mission. An exception to this policy shall be authorized
by the President when it is determined that an exception is clearly in the best
interest of the College and the public.

Insurance

With some specific exclusions (dishonest acts, mysterious disappearance of
property), Ceollege property shall be insured against loss due to theft, vandalism and
other perils such as accidents, weather occurrences, explosions, and vehicle damage,
and failure on the part of a college employee to faithfully perform duties or to
properly account for money or property received.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 802 Page ] of 1
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Financial Reporting System

Central Accounting System

A. The College shall have a central accounting system which integrates financial
accounting, budgeting and management reporting. The central accounting system
shall be based on generally accepted fund accounting principles.

B. Central accounting system records shall be maintained on administrative software
that provides financial information to account administrators, fiscal monitors and
deans to assist them in performing their fiscal duties. The Information
Technology Department shall be responsible for overseeing and maintaining the
integrity of the central accounting system and the business office staff shall be
responsible for the daily operation of the system.

Access to Financial Information

Account administrators, fiscal monitors, and deans, including all individuals
responsible for the management of an operating budget or cost center, shall have
access to needed financial information on the central accounting system database.
This access shall consist of on-line computer monitor access.

Security of Financial Data

Account administrators, fiscal monitors and deans shall be charged with maintaining
the confidentiality and integrity of the data contained in the central accounting system
reports and to limit access to those individuals with a need to know.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 803 Page ] of 3
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Purchasing and Procurement

General Policy

The matter of New Mexico Junior College spending, including procurement of
supplies, materials, contracted services, equipment, and reimbursement of employees
for business-related expenses, shall be one to which the Board gives critical attention.
The Board seeks to purchase at the lowest cost and optimum quality for each function
to be served. The New Mexico Procurement Code, Section 13-1-1 et. seq. NMSA
1978 comp, shall serve as the guide for purchasing supplies, materials, equipment
and contracted services.

Scope of Procurement Policy

It is the general policy of New Mexico Junior College that all financial resources
received by the College, irrespective of their sources, shall be expended through
college accounting systems in accordance with the New-MexicoJunier—College
Board policies. This policy shall include funds obtained through the appropriation of
tax revenues, gifts from individual donors, income earned for services/activities or
events performed or completed, or through transfers from the New Mexico Junior
College Foundation. College employees shall not directly control or expend funds on
deposit in affiliated organization accounts for college business unless the funds are
transferred to an appropriate college account. All funds shall be deposited in a
College account. No other bank accounts shall be set up without the approval of the
Board.

Procurement Flexibility

These purchasing policies shall provide flexibility to managers enabling them to
perform their duties and to achieve the maximum benefit from the resources for
which each manager is responsible. These policies shall be in place to ensure
compliance with all state procurement laws and federal laws where applicable. As
the College is a public supported entity, certain procurement guidelines shall be
established and followed to ensure adequate accountability. The Vice President for
Finance, with the approval of the President, shall supplement this policy with specific
purchasing procedures.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 803

V.

Page 2 of 3

Allowable and Unallowable Expenditures

Allowable and unallowable expenditures shall be determined by Board action, the
Accountant/Controller or the Vice President for Finance.

A.

Payments for membership in community/business organizations shall be allowed
only when the College employee serves as an official representative of the
College.

. Purchase of personal gifts to individuals or organizations including college

employees shall be prohibited unless approved by other college published policy
(e.g., employee service awards).

College  purchase  of  office  refreshments  (including  coffee
makers/food/beverages) shall be prohibited, except when the refreshments are to
be consumed primarily by guests of the College or at business meetings with
community participants. College purchase of office decorations (pictures, plants,
decorative items) shall be prohibited.

. College funds shall not be used to reimburse individuals for personal items stolen

from college buildings; however, insurance payments for loaned items officially
received and used or displayed by the College shall be permitted.

Entertainment of College employees (e.g., meal expenses) other than pursuant to
the College's travel policy shall be prohibited. Exceptions are allowed when the
function is a hospitality event that includes both the College and invited guests of
the College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 803 Page 3 of 3

V.

Employee Participation

It shall be unlawful and against Board policy for any College employee to participate
directly or indirectly in procurement when he/she knows the employee or any
member of the employee’s immediate family has a financial interest in the business
seeking or obtaining a contract or purchase order award. All employees shall make
College purchases in accordance with the purchasing procedures published by the
Business Office. Any unauthorized purchases made by an employee shall be
considered personal in nature and shall not be binding uponte the College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 804 Page ] of 1
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Commercial Activities at the College (including Sales/Fundraisers)

Sales of Commodities on Campus

No commaodities shall be normally sold on campus by any individual or organization
not officially part of the College except through regularly approved distribution
channels such as the bookstore, concessions for contracted events, food service or
campus special events on approval. Other sales of commodities shall be approved
with the permission of the President or his/her designee.

Distribution and/or Sale of Publications on Campus

A publication may be sold or otherwise distributed on campus if all of the following
conditions are met:

A. Itis not disruptive of the educational process, does not have a negative impact on
the image of the College, or does not cause serious campus conflict.

B. The distributor agrees to hold warrants—helding-the College harmless in any
dispute, claim or legal action resulting from the distribution or sale of the

publication.

C. It does not include interaction with employees during the period they are on paid
status.

D. It is approved by the President, or his/her designee, as being appropriate for
distribution.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 805 Page 1 of 5
POLICY TOPIC: Copyright, Patent and Intellectual Property Policy

General Statement of Purpose

The purpose of the New Mexico Junior College Copyright, Patent and Intellectual
Property Policy is to establish ownership, rights, and responsibilities with respect to
copyright, patent and intellectual property created and developed by faculty or other
college employees during their employment at the college.

New Mexico Junior College has a responsibility for and an interest in the
advancement of knowledge and creative work that will enhance its educational mission
and benefit the public it serves. The goal of this policy is fourfold:

e to encourage the development of copyright, patent and intellectual property
for the best interest of the public, the creator of the copyright and intellectual,
and the college;

e toprovide timely disclosure and protection of copyright, patent and intellectual
property whether by development, commercialization, or publication, or any
combination thereof;

o to balance the rights of the creator of copyright, patent and intellectual property
and the rights of the college. Creators may be faculty or other employees
of the college; and

e to develop a policy that is easy to understand and implement and that is not
burdensome to the creator of the copyright and intellectual property.

Scope

This policy applies to all full- and part-time faculty, staff, and administrators working
on any project under the direction and control of New Mexico Junior College and to
anyone using college facilities or conducting activities under the supervision of New
Mexico Junior College personnel. Contracts between employees and the College and
subcontracts between New Mexico Junior College and persons who are not College
employees will include language that determines the ownership of intellectual property
and copyright / patent material that is developed under the purpose of that particular
contract. College employees should not enter into intellectual property agreements,
without affirmative notice to the prospective employer, that the intellectual property
and copyright / patent material rights of the College cannot be subordinated to a third
party consulting or employment agreement.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 805 Page 2 of 5

Definitions
Creator(s): The author(s) or originator(s) of the copyright or intellectual property.

College Assignment: A college assignment exists when employee(s) are directed by
the College to prepare the work within the scope of their employment. Work made for
hire is a legal term defined in the Copyright Act as a work prepared by an employee
within the scope of his or her employment or a work specially ordered or
commissioned in certain specified circumstances.

Intellectual Property: Creative or scholarly work protected by patent, copyright,
trademark, and trade secret laws. Such property includes but is not limited to
e creative work in traditional or technology-based media;
inventions;
software programs;
distance courses, both content and presentation (ITV and Online);
documents and databases;
lab manuals.

Copyrightable Material: Under the federal copyright law, copyright subsists in original
works of authorship which have been fixed in any tangible medium of expression from
which they can be perceived, reproduced, or otherwise communicated, either directly
or with the aid of machine or device. These works include:

e Literary works such as books, journal articles, poems, manuals, memoranda,
tests, computer programs, instructional material, databases, bibliographies;

e Musical works including any accompanying words;

e Dramatic works including any accompanying music;

e Pantomimes and choreographic works (if fixed, as in notation or videotape);

e Pictorial, graphic and sculptural works, including photographs, diagrams,
sketches and integrated circuit masks;

e Motion pictures and other audiovisual works such as videotapes;

e Sound recordings.

Patent: A patent is the right of ownership granted by the government to a person. It
gives the person the positive right to sell his or her invention in whole or in part and
the negative right to exclude others from making, using or selling the "claimed"
invention throughout the jurisdiction.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 805

Page 3 of 5

College Resources: Specific use of college funds, personnel, facilities, services,
equipment, and the like in the creation and / or development of intellectual property
or copyright / patent material. Such resources include but are not limited to:

College funds such as grants, stipends, additional compensation, and/or release
time;

College equipment such as audiovisual, all computer resources, computer-
related tools, equipment, and software;

developed as part of regular work load,;

College name, reputation, goodwill, and/or logo;

College personnel, such as librarians, graphic artists, videographers,
instructional and media designers, photographers, administrative staff, and/or
information technology professionals. College personnel shall be interpreted
as not including the inventor of the intellectual property unless such invention
included use of time normally devoted to college activities.

V. Ownership of Copyright or Intellectual Property

The Creator of copyright or intellectual property is its owner unless:

The work is a €College assignment or qualifies as a work made for hire, then
the employer or the commissioning party is considered to be the author;

College resources were used in the creation and / or development of the
intellectual property. In this event the College shall own the property; or

A written agreement exists between the creator and the College whereby the
College is established as the owner or co-owner of the intellectual property.
Intellectual property created and / or developed prior to this policy shall be
owned in accordance with applicable law.

In the case of works created under developmental grants from governmental or
foundation sources prescribing ownership rights, the conditions of such grants, rather
than this policy, shall govern. An exception to the policy shall exist where shared
eCollege and external grant funding exists, in which case a contract reflecting this
shared funding support shall be executed.

V. Recovery of Resources

Independent Works — The eCollege employee shall be entitled to all profits earned
from copyright or intellectual property developed exclusively on the employee’s time
and without the use of the College facilities.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 805 Page 4 of 5

VL.

VII.

Supported Work — Profits earned from copyright or intellectual property developed
totally or partially on college time with the use of college facilities, equipment or with
college funding shall be shared equitably with the College as provided by an agreement
between the employee and the College. In the event that college resources as defined
above are used by the employee in development of the intellectual property, the college
shall enter into an agreement with the employee allowing the College to recover a
fair and equitable amount equal to actual cost of such college resources actually used
by the employee in development of the intellectual property.

Use of Copyright, Patent and Intellectual Property

If the creator of copyright, patent and intellectual property who owns the property
pursuant to this policy is allowed by written agreement with the eCollege to use the
€College’s name and / or logo, the creator shall be required to secure written
authorization to use any third party copyrighted works within the creator’s work. The
creator / owner shall also save and hold harmless the eCollege from any copyright
infringement claim.

To assure educational continuity, the creator of electronic or other type of course
material who owns the material pursuant to this policy, upon leaving the employ of
the College, may grant the college a license to use and modify the property for
teaching purposes.

If the eCollege pursuant to this policy owns electronic or other type of course material
created by a faculty member or other eCollege employee, it, upon request

of the faculty member or other employee leaving the eCollege, may grant the creator a
license to use and modify the property for teaching purposes.

Revisions to Intellectual Property and Copyrighted / Patented Material

Revisions to copyright, patent and intellectual property, created by a faculty member
or other college employee and owned by the College pursuant to this policy may be
requested by the creator or the College. If revisions are requested by the creator, the
College shall have the sole authority to determine whether the requested revisions
justify expenditure of college funds. If the revisions are requested by the College, the
creator shall complete the revisions. If the creator fails to do so, the college shall be
entitled to have the revisions completed by others with notification that the revisions
were not completed by the creator.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 805 Page 5 of 5

VIIL.

Disclosure and Agreement of Ownership

Each New Mexico Junior College employee, who during the period of employment,
solely or jointly creates, authors, conceives, or invents any intellectual property,
whether or not such property or material is patentable or copyrightable, should disclose
it in writing to the Vice President for Instruction, so that a determination of ownership
and written agreement can be prepared.

The Vice-President for Instruction shall establish procedures to ensure that any college
employee creating copyright or intellectual property with college support shall enter
into an agreement with the College providing either:

e Employee assigns ownership rights to the College; or

e Payment by the employee to the college of a fair and equitable amount based
on the actual cost of college facilities, equipment or other physical materials
actually used in producing such works. This shall also include, in any case
where a copyright or intellectual property is created with college support, the
agreement will provide that the College has a perpetual license to use the
work without further compensation.

Questions of ownership or other matters pertaining to materials covered by this policy
shall be resolved by the Vice President for Instruction in consultation with
appropriate institutional representatives and legal counsel if necessary. In the event
that the Vice President for Instruction and the creator(s) are unable to reach agreement
regarding ownership, the Vice President for Instruction may, at his/her discretion,
undertake a voluntary mediation process whereby a mutually agreeable independent
third party familiar with intellectual property and guided by the principles contained
in this policy shall be selected by the parties to meditate the matter(s) under dispute.
The parties shall deal in good faith in seeking the prompt resolution of any disputed
issues. If the parties are unable to reach an agreement, the agreement shall be tabled,
leaving the parties in the status quo.

All Agreements must be approved by the President in writing to be binding on the
parties. The President shall, in a fair and reasonable time, either approve the agreement,
or return the agreement to the Vice-President for Instruction to make suggested
changes to the agreement, or inform the Vice-President for Instruction that he/she will
not approve the agreement. In the event the President fails to approve a proposed
agreement, the proposed agreement, although signed by the creator, and/or the Vice
President for Instruction, shall have no legal force or effect and shall not be used or
considered by any party as proof of ownership or for any other purposes beyond
the purpose of facilitating timely initial negotiations between the creator, and the
College.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 806 Page 1 of 2
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Cash Management

Safekeeping

Members of the faculty, staff or student body who receive College monies (i.e., cash,
checks, credit card payments, money orders and other negotiable instruments) shall
be responsible for its collection, safekeeping, deposit and for the safety of employees
who handle the monies.

Investment Statement

A. Cash and investment efforts shall be directed in a manner which provides optimal
return on deposits given appropriate consideration to safety and liquidity. Primary
significance shall be given to the preservation of capital and secondary
importance to the generation of income and capital gains.

B. The Vice President for Finance shall have the authority and responsibility to
administer the cash and investment management function in accordance with
Chapter 6, Article 10, New Mexico Regulation 6.10.10 and this policy. The Vice
President for Finance and the President shall be signatories on all accounts.

Funds Needed for Operations and Debt Service

All funds needed for operation and debt service will be kept in FDIC insured checking
accounts. There is an account for accounts payable, one for payroll, one for student
refunds, and one for funds held for student clubs and activities.

Funds Not Required for Immediate Operations

These funds may be used to purchase certificates of deposit at FDIC insured banks in
Lea County.

Individual certificates of deposit of $250,000.00 should be limited to one per bank in
order to be covered by FDIC insurance.

Certificates of deposit of more than $250,000.00 should be placed as CDARS with
one Lea County institution to get the benefit of full FDIC insurance coverage. The
deposit is placed with one CDARS member bank, then the member bank places
amounts of less than $250,000.00 with other member banks so that the entire deposit
plus interest is covered under FDIC insurance.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 806 Page 2 of 2

V.  Accountability

Status of cash deposits shall be reported at each regular meeting of the College Board.
The report shall include the name of the financial institution, the type of investment,
the interest rate, the maturity date and the amount of the investment.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 807 Page 1of 1
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Travel Approval and Reimbursement

General Policy

The President, or his/her designee, shall establish travel and per diem reimbursement

rates for eCollege employees and the New-Mexice-JuniorCollege-Board members

using the regulations established by the State of New Mexico for public
employees/officials as guidelines.

Reimbursement Rates

New Mexico Junior College shall pay properly approved and authorized employee
and Board member business and travel expenses incurred for the benefit of and in the
course of employment or official service of the College. All approved travel
expenditures, regardless of funding source, shall be reimbursed in accordance with
the current rates set forth in Section 6 of the New Mexico Junior College Policies and
Procedures Manual.

A. Per Diem allowances shall be computed on the basis of a twenty-four (24) hour
day divided into three (3) eight-hour increments. No per diem allowance is
available for periods of less than eight (8) hours. Reimbursement for periods
greater than eight (8) hours shall be made according to the current per diem rate,
regardless of amount of expenditure. Athletic team travel shall be reimbursed
based on actual receipts.

Per Diem reimbursement for day trips (not requiring overnight stay) is made
through payroll, per IRS regulations.

B. Reimbursement for actual lodging expense is made based on lodging receipts.

C. Alltravel shall be approved by a supervisor and a Vice President or the President,
as appropriate for the traveler.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 808 Page 1of 1
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Contracts and Externally Funded Grants

. Approval to Request Grant Funds

A. Funding: Only the President and Vice President for Finance shall be permitted
to approve grant applications if new college resources shall be committed at any
time to complete the grant’s scope of work/service. If no new college resources
are required, the President shall delegate to a designated representative. The
President, or his/her designee, shall be authorized to make application on behalf
of the College to private or governmental agencies for funding, and shall report
to the Board all applications submitted. Prior approval of the Board shall be
required for any grant application:

I. In support of new facilities construction.
2. Where the terms of the application require specific Board approval.

Il.  Contracts

A. Authority Delegation: Delegation of contracting authority normally vested in the
Board shall be appropriate within specified guidelines for the timely, efficient
administration of the College. Certain College officials shall be hereby expressly
authorized and empowered to contract in the name of New Mexico Junior College
as follows:

1. The President shall contract for any lawful purpose of the College provided
the obligation of the College thereby incurred does not exceed $60,000.
Additionally, the President may contract for any lawful purpose where
external grant or contract funds are involved without Board approval and
without a dollar limit.

2. The President or the Vice President for Finance may approve a capital
improvement change order involving an expenditure of $25,000 or less.

B. Signatory Authority

Unless the authorizing action of the Cellege—Board specifically provides
otherwise, any contract approved shall be executed on behalf of the College by
either the President or the Vice President for Finance.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 900 Page | of 2
SECTION: Campus Activities and Security

POLICY TOPIC: Speakers or Guests, Facility Usage and Public Events

Speakers or Guests

New Mexico Junior College shall invite visits from outside speakers to enrich any of
the programs and services offered by the College with the approval of the President.
Opportunities shall be provided to question or challenge the views of speakers as long
as order is maintained. If in the opinion of the President, the speaker may cause
serious campus conflict and may have a negative impact on the image of the College,
the President shall have the authority and responsibility to prevent the appearance.
The use of outside speakers for class presentations shall also be encouraged and
permitted under the guidelines of this policy.

Public Events

The President shall be authorized to develop or cause to be developed a program of
public events to enrich and supplement the eCollege curriculum for the benefit of the
students and staff and the community at large. The program shall include lectures and
forums, fine arts programs, film series, exhibits, and other cultural activities.

Facility Use

A. Security, safekeeping and proper care of public equipment and facilities shall be
a responsibility of all eCollege employees. Supplies, employees, equipment and
facilities shall not be used for personal purposes or projects.

B. New Mexico Junior College employees shall not utilize any college property or
facilities for personal or private business, non-eCollege related projects or
activities on or off campus including, but not limited to, use of the copy machines
and telephone systems, unless approved by the President. Violation of this policy
shall result in disciplinary action against the employee up to and including
dismissal.

C. College facilities and projects may be used on the same basis of scheduling and
fees required of non-employees when appropriate procedures for such use have
been followed.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 900 Page 2 of 2

D. Institutional and subject matter related projects should be conducted by eCollege
employees. All such projects shall be in the public domain (the realm embracing
property rights that belong to the community at large are unprotected by copyright
or patent and are subject to appropriation by anyone and/or for which no personal
funds or monies shall be paid to the-New Mexico Junior College-Bistrict).
Projects which do not fall in the above category shall be considered when
presented according to the following procedures:

1. Writing a detailed description of the proposed project.
2. Securing approval of the President:

a. Ifsuch projects are conducted by cellegeCollege employees other than the
faculty employees, approval shall be secured from the President. Prior
approval shall be required before starting a project that does not fall in the
above two categories and for which special approval is required.

b. Inthe event a project is conducted and the expense thereof is borne by the
individual employee, the fruits of the project shall belong to the particular
employee, as it is the policy of the Board that projects accomplished by
the employee on his/her own time and at his/her own expense shall be
his/her own property. In the event the employee desires to share the results
of his/her project with the College, a separate contract shall be agreed
upon between the Board and the individual as to such project.

Other Conditions

Although the facilities are available for public use, individuals and groups using the
facilities shall abide by eollegeCollege policies as well as local, state, and federal
laws and regulations. Those not abiding by applicable laws and regulations and those
disruptive of the educational process or those whose general conduct is determined
by the College to be inappropriate shall be requested to leave, and in the event of
refusal, appropriate legal action shall be taken.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 901 Page 1 of 4
SECTION: Campus Activities and Security
POLICY TOPIC: IT Use Policy

Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy

A. New Mexico Junior College provides numerous information technology
resources for use by the College’s students, faculty, and staff. Information
technology includes, but is not limited to, all esHegeCollege computing
equipment, software, systems, and networks. These resources are provided
to support the College’s mission and institutional goals. The use of these
systems is a privilege and all users are expected to act responsibly and to
follow the College’s policies governing the use of these resources.
Violations of this policy could result in disciplinary review. In such a
review, the full range of disciplinary sanctions is available including the
loss of computer use privileges, dismissal from the College, and legal
action. Violations of some portions of the policy may constitute a criminal
offense.

B. The College’s Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy requires
that each campus user abide by and agree to the following guidelines:

- Respect security requirements for computer accounts.

- A computer or electronic mail (e-mail) account assigned to
an individual, including student accounts, must not be used
by others.

- Faculty, students, and staff are individually responsible for
the proper use of their accounts, including password
protection and appropriate use of Internet resources.

- Making your password or another person’s password or
access code available to others or otherwise attempting to
evade, disable or "crack" password or other security
provisions, or assisting others in doing so, threatens the
work, privacy and well-being of many others and is a serious
violation of College policies.

- Faculty, students and staff are responsible for choosing an
appropriate password that is difficult for others to guess.

- If an individual suspects their password has been
compromised, they should change the password
immediately.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 901 Page 2 of 4

C. Respect Copyright Laws

Computer software use must conform to copyright laws and  licensing
agreements. Copyright law protects software licensing agreements
whether a copyright notice is explicitly stated in the software or its
documentation. Software licensed by the College must only be used in
accordance with the applicable license. It is illegal to make duplicate
copies of software products unless authorized to do so by its author or
publisher. Computer users have no right to give or receive duplicates of
software without authorization or to install duplicated software onto
College computing equipment.

D. Respect the Rights of Others on the System

Computer users shall not use the College’s information technology
resources to participate in activities that are harassing in nature or
prohibited by law. Sending messages, information, or images that are
threatening, harassing, or discriminatory in nature is in violation of
College policies and may be in violation of the law. Displaying
potentially offensive material in a computer laboratory or other campus
location is not allowed. Users are absolutely prohibited from utilizing
systems to create, access, store or disseminate materials that may be
sexually or racially offensive, or otherwise insulting or derogatory to
persons of a certain race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national
origin, age, disability, genetic information, or veteran status.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 901 Page 3 of 4

E. Respect electronic mail guidelines

In support of the College’s mission, the College encourages the use of
its electronic mail services to share information, to improve
communication, and to exchange ideas. Any electronic mail address or
account associated with the College is the property of the College.
Those who use the College’s electronic mail services are expected to
adhere to state and federal laws, the policies and procedures of the
College, and should follow normal standards of professional and
personal courtesy and conduct. Electronic communication under a false
name or designation is prohibited. Sending anonymous communications
does not disassociate senders from assuming responsibility for their
actions.

Electronic mail services should not be used in ways that strain the
College’s computing resources or interfere with others’ use of the
electronic mail system. Prohibitive uses include, but are not limited to,
sending or forwarding chain letters, exploiting list-servers by
amplifying widespread distribution of electronic mail, and sending the
same electronic mail message repeatedly.

Employees are prohibited from using the “All Employee” mass
distribution list to distribute non-work related messages. Information in
regards to work, employees, and NMJC sponsored events are
acceptable.

Confidentiality of electronic mail cannot be assured. The system
administrator, technical managers, or other persons may need to view
the contents of computer accounts and electronic mail to perform
maintenance or to diagnose and correct problems. When performing
maintenance, the College will make reasonable attempts to ensure the
privacy of computer accounts and electronic mail, but cannot guarantee
total privacy of the accounts. The user, however acknowledges and
consents that the eaHegeCollege may monitor e-mail communications
and internet usage in order to insure compliance with this policy. If
policy violations are discovered, they will be reported immediately and
appropriate action will be taken.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 901 Page 4 of 4

&-F.  Respect the Operational Guidelines Governing the use of the

Information Technology Facilities.

Administrators responsible for computer systems may establish more
detailed guidelines governing the use of the College’s computing
equipment and facilities. These guidelines cover such issues as
allowable connect time, disk space allocations, handling of un-
retrievable mail, responsibility for account approval and other items
related to administering the systems. Downloading of software onto any
computing equipment owned or operated by New Mexico Junior
College (unless downloaded material is considered a faculty resource)
without prior written approval is not permitted. During peak system
utilization times, computer users engaged in activities which are not
directly related to the business of the College may be asked to relinquish
their access to the system. Settings on computers are not to be changed.
Computer users, whether on campus or accessing NMJC resources
remotely, are expected to abide by these rules and use the College’s
computing resources in a responsible and professional manner.

The College prohibits the use of programs that degrade the available
bandwidth, including but not limited to music/radio programs, videos,
and game playing from Internet sites, unless these programs are
incorporated into instruction.

The College provides information technology resources for users to
engage in activities that support the work of the institution. Use of the
College’s resources for commercial reasons, fund-raising, political
campaigns, or illegal purposes is not acceptable. Non-authorized
solicitations on behalf of individuals, groups, or organizations are
prohibited.

G. Agreement

All users of New Mexico Junior College computing systems must read,
understand, and comply with the policies outlined in this document. By
using any of the College’s information technology resources, users
agree to comply with these policies.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 902 Page 1of 1
SECTION: Campus Activities and Security

POLICY TOPIC: Campus Public Safety and Security

I.  Public Safety and Security Force

As part of its accountability to constituents, the Cellege Board and administration
shall support an appropriate public safety and security force adequate for the safety
of students, staff and security of esHegeCollege properties.

Il.  Campus Keys

The protection and safekeeping of College property shall be the responsibility of all
NMJC employees. Employees who are issued office and/or building keys shall
assume the responsibility by closely guarding their keys to prevent unauthorized
usage.

Office and/or building keys shall be issued to an employee only through the assigned
department secretary upon receipt of completed key request forms. The forms are to
be approved by the Director of Public Safety to determine that the appropriate level
of access is granted based upon the employees work assignment. The forms will then
be forwarded to and approved by the appropriate Miew Vice President and/or
President. _ Under no circumstances shall an employee be authorized to swap, trade,
loan or pass along keys issued under his/her name to another employee or any other
person.  Keys(s) issued to an employee shall not be duplicated under any
circumstances.

An employee who loses an NMJC key shall immediately report such loss to his/her supervisor,
his/her assigned department secretary and the Public Safety/Security Supervisor. An employee
may incur monetary fines or be required to pay key replacement fees for lost or stolen keys.



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 903

Page 1of 1

SECTION: Campus Activities and Security
POLICY TOPIC: Inclement Weather

Inclement Weather

From time to time inclement weather can pose problems for students and others
using the eelegeCollege central campus and outreach centers. Traveling
conditions may vary considerably, depending on the individual’s home location
in relation to the central campus or outreach center. No student or staff member
is encouraged to travel when conditions are considered dangerous.

In the event of inclement weather, the following procedure will be followed:

a.

If conditions appear to warrant closing, postponing, or restricting
College activities, the President or his/her designee will make the decision
as to what to do.

When a decision is made to cancel, postpone, or otherwise modify a
campus or outreach schedule, the President or f his/her designee will
notify the Director of Public Relations/Marketing and the Director of
Information Technology. The Director of Public Relations/Marketing
will notify local and regional television and radio stations. The Director
of Information Technology will post the notice on the NMJC web page.
The_Executive Director of Administrative Services or Director of Public
Safety will also make notification via the Regroup RAVE Emergency
Notification system information about the delay or closing of
eeHegeCollege due to the weather.

Normally the decision to postpone, cancel, or otherwise restrict

College classes/activities will be made by 6:00 am for the day activities
and by 1:00 pm for evening activities. Changes in weather conditions
during the day may necessitate campus updates for cancellations.

Should classes be postponed or cancelled employees are asked not to
report to the campus. Certain maintenance/grounds employees will be
called to report to the campus to help make walking and driving surfaces
safer for when the campus re-opens.

Each supervisor is responsible for notifying his/her staff of any change in
schedule.



APPENDIX A

Community College Act

NMJC adheres to the current Community College Act, Chapter 21-13-1 NMSA 1978.

History: 1953 Comp., § 73-33-1, enacted by Laws 1963, ch. 17, § 1; 1985, ch. 238, § 1.

http://164.64.110.239/nmac/



http://164.64.110.239/nmac/

APPENDIX B
NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

College Board

President Executive Assistant

Vice,
Vice Fresicent Vice Fresicent Vice President Vice Presicent Developmant,
Public Safety & 2
! Student Services Instruction Financa Training & Outraach Effactiveress &

Smal Busines:
Development Cir

Business Office
ement

Bean, Enrollment
Manage

Transporaation
Training

Beokstors

Dvision Dean

New Horizons Swdentlife Public Safety.

Cashier/Maikcom
Feundation

Workforce &
Pl Custom Training.

Division Dean
S Distance lsaming Document. Campus Events & Communications &|
Camputer Info. & Prof. Studies Scheduling Mearketing
Services
Faod Services Pannell Library
KA Reio &
TBird TV
Testing .
Hursing Program
Center et

Bhysical Plant

May 2016




College Board

‘Western Heritage
— Museum &
LCCHOF

— Physical Plant

May 2018

President —
Assistant
Gen;l;lcﬁ::self Vice President Vice President Vice President e F:::ldent
= For Student For For l
Dsectocaf Services Finance/Admin Instruction Training &
Admin. Services QOutreach
Develop. Dean of Business Academic Hor: ;;ns
Office Students Office Divisions -
Foundation
SP:;“[& Regi College Inst. Effect. ‘;(g —
gy egistrar Bookstore & Assess .
Security Training
R:sl‘lc’E?clla' Counseling Document Pannell Events &
& payroll & Advising Center Library Scheduling
NMIC Finandal Cashle{f e mic Community
Aid pan pUcEess Education
Fourdation Switchbrd Center
Computer
Athletics Inforr:atian L & Sl Bars
Marketing Dewel. Ctr.
Services
Food Transport.
Services Training
TRIO
Program




APPENDIX C

FORMAT AND GUIDELINES

FOR PROPOSING NEW AND REVISED

BOARD POLICY



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
FORMAT FOR PROPOSED BOARD POLICY

I. Introduction: Formation and Revision of Board Policy

A. The formulation and adoption of written policies shall constitute the basic method
by which the Board exercises its leadership in the operation of the College. The
Board delegates to the President the function of implementing policy.

B. Recognizing its own function as the lawful and final authority in policy matters,
the Board accepts the principle that those who are affected by the policy shall be
involved in the formulation of such policy. The Board, therefore, encourages staff
and administration to review and recommend new policies or changes of policy
when appropriate.

1. Proposed Policy Statement

A person seeking a revision and/or addition to board policy shall submit a proposed
policy statement unnumbered and undated to the President, or his/her designee, for
review. Please submit below a statement of proposed policy.

. Rationale for the Proposed Policy

Please provide some justification below as to why the policy is needed (refer to
attached guideline).

1V. Suggestion for Written Procedures to Accompany Proposed Policy (if applicable and
if known).

Please outline supporting procedures below, new and old that would be applicable to
proposed policy.

V. Disposition

After consideration and discussion, the person submitting the policy may be asked to
present further rationale. When a decision has been finalized concerning the proposed
policy, the President shall forward the change to the Board with his recommendation
for action. No amendments to a policy shall be made without Board approval. The
final action taken shall be communicated to the originator of the proposed policy
change.

\%

. Utilization

This procedure shall not be utilized by employees in a designated or certified
bargaining unit or their representatives.



)

NEW MEXICO

Junior College

Vice President for Finance

To:  NMIJC Board Members
From: Josh Morgan
RE:  Annual Fixed Asset Inventory Certification

Date: June 21, 2018

As directed by the New Mexico Junior College Board of Directors, the Office of the Vice
President of Finance has supervised this year’s annual inventory of chattels and equipment
valued at over $5,000.00. In accordance with generally accepted auditing procedures, and in
order to meet the annual requirements for certification as specified in State Statute 12-6-10,
we hereby certify the over $5,000.00 property listing for New Mexico Junior College.

Pat Chappelle Josh Morgan
Board Chair Accountant/Controller
New Mexico Junior College New Mexico Junior College

1 Thunderbird Circle » Hobbs, New Mexico 88240 ¢ (575) 492-2770 ¢ 1-800-657-6260 * www.nmjc.edu

Promoting Success through Learning



Tag#
N10012
N10261
N12514
N11312
G30205
N12727
G30404
N14659
N14660
N14661
N14663
N15171
N15195
N15219
N15220
N15256
N15267
N15422
N15413
N15409
N15395
N15565
G31306
N15596
N15635
N15636
N15645
N15793
N15787
N15687
N15697
N15792
(G31532
N16246
N16352
N16464
N16706
N16707
N16797
G31672
G31673
G31676
N16893

Description
Steinway Grand Piano
Extractor & Dryer
Power Paper Cutter
Sun Modular Gas Analyzer
IBM CPU - Pentium
1996 Ford Econoline Van
Powertrain Control System
1997 Chevy S-10 Truck
1997 Chevy S-10 Truck
1997 Chevy S-10 Truck
1997 Chevy S-10 Truck
Portable Rodeo Arena-Yellow
Kamatsu 5000 Fork Lift
1999 Chevy 5-10 Truck
1999 Chevy S-10 Truck
John Deere Turf Gator
1999 GMC Dump Truck
Ice-O-Matic Ice Machine
Spacesaver Shelving
Rotary 4 Post Alignment Rack
Hunter Alignment Machine
Komatsu 1200 |b Forklift
Air Bag System Trainer
Shuttle Pro 40 Kiln
2000 Ford Econoline Van
2000 Ford Econoline Van
Whirlamatic Burnishing Machine
Paint Spray Booth
World Diagnostic System
Neomet Binocular Microscope
Scissor Lift
CoolTech AC Machine
HP Color Inkjet Plotter
Powertrain Trainer
2001 Ford Econoline Van
2001 Dodge Ram
John Deere Turf Gator
John Deere Greensmower
2002 Chevrolet Astro Van
ABS/TCS System Trainer
Nikon Microscope/Camera
Impact Testing Machine
12 Port GBIC Switch

Location Code

WH105
CA185
AC112
DW226
DW217
DORMLO
DW241
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
RG100
WARINV
WMPORT
WMPORT
BBSTOR
WMPORT
BA162
DW208
DW222
DW129
DW229
DW235
AC120
WMPORT
BMLOT
WM101
WMPORT
DW130
DW114
CP103
Dw221
WM111A
DW110
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
bw212
DW114
Dw119
MC103

Serial or Vin #

No Serial #
175083
24845
0890A0140
23WCMX1
1FBJS31H7THABS765
CTFP628PVW6E7
1GCCS144XV8156128
1GCCS1449VK223935
1GCCS1445VK231126
1GCCS1445VK231126
No Serial #
503210A
1GCCS1440X8103165
1GCCS1441X8104125
1001
1GDJC34F7XF030594
91808
No Serial #
KAN9S9C0022
EJ&S04
21115
1057
3503
1FBSS31L3YHA01643
1FBSS31L7YHAQ9342
1308913
No Serial #
9373824605
MC88209
15030
9041
SGO7E33123
1087
1FMRE11241HB00745
1B7HC16YX1S323698
VGOTURF016456
M02653B070316
1GNDM19XX2B117031
1056
610457
SIP5384
CHK0612WOM4

Acquisition Date
11/1/1970
10/1/1981
10/1/1981

4/1/1991
5/1/1996
7/12/1996
10/1/1996
9/1/1997
9/1/1997
9/1/1997
9/1/1997
6/23/1998
9/29/1998
11/6/1998
11/6/1998
12/9/1998
1/11/1999
7/30/1999
8/25/1999
8/27/1999
8/27/1999
12/15/1999
1/20/2000
2/4/2000
4/3/2000
4/3/2000
4/24/2000
5/12/2000
6/16/2000
6/22/2000
6/27/2000
7/10/2000
10/6/2000
11/13/2000
2/8/2001
7/16/2001
10/15/2001
10/15/2001
2/14/2002
4/2/2002
4/10/2002
4/16/2002
5/30/2002

Acqguired Value
$5,500.00
$6,205.00
$7,550.00

$10,378.00
$5,203.00
$24,986.00
$8,116.42
$13,100.00
$13,200.00
$13,200.00
$13,200.00
$15,500.00
$20,000.00
$14,400.00
$14,400.00
$5,645.97
$28,557.86
$5,502.55
$10,976.48
$12,780.00
$17,721.44
$14,800.00
$5,334.14
$24,970.69
$24,984.00
$24,984.00
$8,136.00
$6,900.00
$10,311.00
$7,942.50
$10,079.75
$5,349.50
$11,643.51
$8,000.00
$19,962.00
$18,257.50
$5,500.40
$16,062.45
$20,550.00
$9,059.36
$13,313.98
$10,855.00
$7,291.52

Department
Dean of Arts, Humanities & Career Technology,
Director of Athletics,
Vice President of Finance,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,
Dean of Students,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Athletics,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Athletics,
Director of Physical Plant,
Vice President of Student Services,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Arts, Humanities & Career Technology,
Director of Physical Plant,
Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Director of Physical Plant,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,



N16877
N16860
N16867
N16880
N16870
N16883
N17036
N17049
N17052
N17059
N17065
G31769
G31816
G31817
G31818
G31828
N17701
G31839
N17722
N17743
N17769
N17900
N17899
N17891
N18073
N18001
N18002
N17964
N17963
G31917
N17992
N17999
G31816
G31927
N18067
N18426
N18432
N18217
N18131
N18132
N18134
N18434
N18180
N18251

12 Port GBIC Switch

CAT 3350 12PT

CAT 3550 12PT

CAT 3550 12PT

CAT 3350 12PT

12 Port GBIC Switch
Statesman Lectern
Statesman Lectern
Statesman Lectern
Statesman Lectern
Statesman Lectern
Dynasty TIG Runner
Pro-Cut Brake Lathe
SimMan Patient Simulator
HP Multi-Designjet Scanner
Atech Suitcase Trainer
2004 Chevolet Suburban
Mustang Dynamometer MD-100
2005 44 Passenger Bus
1983 Champion Road Grader
12X16 Metal Building
Resilite Mat/Custom Logo
Resilite Mat/Custom Logo
2005 Chrysler 300 Sedan
Tower Project

Digipath PC

DigiServe PC

Walkin Cooler/Freezer
2005 Chevrolet Suburban
Pinnacle M-Serial Engra
Hitachi Projector

Sonic Portable Flaw

Nikon Microscope

Hunter Rd Force Measurement
Canon Film Scanner

DVR For Security System
Avaya 58500, Call Xpress
24 Port GBIC Switch

CAT C3750 48PT

CAT C3750 48PT

CAT C3750 48PT

Interior Casework/Fixtures
Waveworks 72" Desk
Linear Wall for Displays

MC118C
J5104
DW104
MC118C
MC118C
WARHOU
BM146
HH103
HH203
MH130
MC105A
DW101
DW226
MC137
WM1l11
DW130
WMPORT
DW218
WMPORT
CG100
TOWER
CA203
CA203
WMPORT
TOWER
AC113A
ACl111
BA166
WMPORT
AC105D
WH101
DwW104
DW114
Dw222
PL101
BA131
WARHOU
MC103
BA215
BA135
BA135
BA104
WF139
HC118

CHKO0616VOAL

CHK0616V0A4

CHK0616V09W

CHK0616VOA7

CHKO616V0OA8

CHKO0616V0AB

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

LC354090

PFM21864

No Serial #

DKB2H1100V

No Serial #

3GNEC16Z64G180330
18452

1T7YU2C2451148107

710A-75-191590

No Serial #

No Serial #

145388
2C3JA53G55H591960
No Serial #
PUW786032
PUY795029
No Serial #
1GNEC16Z95R192876
D52218
G4L102046
1200BO00K092243

611728
EP8037
(CS302296

4.46103E+16
051G24001758
M05246930570096D05
CAT0929N2RP
CAT0926Z1BG
CAT0926N2RG
No Serial #
MBOHB2005
No Serial #

5/30/2002
5/30/2002
5/30/2002
5/30/2002
5/30/2002
5/30/2002
9/30/2002
9/30/2002
9/30/2002
9/30/2002
9/30/2002
3/4/2003
9/4/2003
9/9/2003
9/19/2003
11/18/2003
12/19/2003
1/16/2004
2/20/2004
5/26/2004
6/30/2004
10/24/2004
10/25/2004
12/10/2004
12/15/2004
12/16/2004
12/16/2004
12/20/2004
1/14/2005
3/10/2005
3/16/2005
3/23/2005
3/25/2005
5/4/2005
6/14/2005
7/6/2005
7/30/2005
8/14/2005
8/19/2005
8/19/2005
8/19/2005
8/30/2005
9/29/2005
11/11/2005

$8,490.06
$8,575.92
$8,575.92
$8,575.92
$8,758.08
$8,758.08
$5,640.00
$5,640.00
$5,640.00
$5,640.00
$5,640.00
$5,149.08
$7,934.21
$29,952.00
$13,750.00
$5,305.84
$28,816.71
$24,154.00
$126,593.80
$16,500.00
$5,290.33
$5,068.50
$5,068.50
$23,663.00
$52,030.26
$11,515.00
$14,915.00
$13,828.04
$29,600.00
$10,820.12
$5,999.00
$7,051.37
$10,787.48
$13,219.00
$9,658.00
$157,949.18
$213,119.25
$6,229.00
$5,124.00
$5,124.00
$5,124.00
$99,387.63
$5,017.25
$49,619.00

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Student Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Arts, Humanities & Career Technology,
Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Library Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of Museum,



N18201
G31939
G31941
G31938
N18472
N18439
N18682
N18854
N18494
N18492
N18799
N18622
N18765
N18766
N18767
N18803
G31965
G50016
G50004
N18881
N18801
N18802
N18856
N18855
N18882
N18939
N18900
N18887
N18888
N18889
N18943
N18894
N18895
N18901
G50015
N18972
N18995
N18996
N18966
N18967
G50022
N1S000
N1S004
N1S008

Aerial Man Lift

Digital Ultrasonic Flaw Detector
Nikon Microscope Monitor
Accuturn Brake Lathe

IP Circuit Pack

Baum AirFeed Folder

DVR For Security System
CAT 3750 48PT

2007 Freightliner

Light Therapy Unit
Audio/Video System

Toro Mower

Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Spacesaver Filing System
Custom Techline Podium

IDS Adv. Pkg./ Panasonic Computer

Glock Controlled Handgun
Transformers (3 Units)

2007 Ford Crown Victoria
2007 Ford Crown Victoria
DV Deck (2 tags total)
Wheel Alignment System
2002 Freightliner

Cisco Firewall Security
Vision 1624 Trophy Pro
2007 Chevrolet Impala

2007 Chevrolet Impala

2007 Chevrolet Suburban
Motorola Canopy Tower
Polycom 7000 Series
Polycom 7000 Series (Prison)
Symmetra 6KA Scalable
Polycom 7000 Series

HP StorageWorks

Precor Elliptical Crosstrainer
Precor Elliptical Crosstrainer
Precor Elliptical

Precor Elliptical

CoolTech AC Machine
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium

WMPORT
Dwi114
bwi114
DW110
MC103
AC110
Jwi101
MC103
ETC1
CA128
HC116
WMPORT
CA148
CA145
CAl144
JS116
DW110
DW239
BM156A
bwill
WMPORT
WMPORT
CAl46A
DW222
ETC1
MC103
AC110
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
TOWER
PL225
PRISON
MC103
PL213
WARHOU
CA186
CA186
DN123
DN123
DW221
WF102
WF119
WF122A

Z-45-005993
925a
51031388
32482
(Not Taggable)
014TF0189
No Serial #
CAT11821Z1AV
1FUJALCKS7DX70027
791852
Can'tgetto SN
86853
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
CF-18NHHZXBM

2FAFP73V67X132414
2FAFP73V87X13415
1110694 (Camera)
AR8846
1FUIBBCGX2LF25180
SMG1124N1VC
No Serial #
2GIWB58K579273919
2G1WB58K479240782
1GNFC16077R409043
0A-00-3E-FA-A7-D7
001C5702DF00
82073408F414AK
1DP644002928
8207360950E7AK
USE7260042
AA72110070057
AA72127070068
AXGEJ25070027
AXGEJ25070018

1439
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #

12/16/2005
1/4/2006
4/6/2006

4/25/2006
5/5/2006
6/24/2006
7/3/2006
7/15/2006
8/4/2006
8/9/2006
9/1/2006
9/1/2006
9/20/2006
9/20/2006
9/20/2006

10/20/2006

10/24/2006

10/31/2006

11/1/2006
11/30/2006
1/10/2007
1/10/2007
2/22/2007
3/14/2007
7/22/2007
8/4/2007
8/7/2007
8/10/2007
8/10/2007
8/10/2007
8/24/2007
8/27/2007
8/30/2007
9/14/2007
9/24/2007
10/1/2007

10/15/2007

10/15/2007

11/13/2007

11/13/2007

11/26/2007

11/29/2007

11/29/2007

11/29/2007

$24,000.00
$7,470.00
$11,246.11
$12,712.24
$42,354.49
$5,995.00
$70,359.79
$5,266.90
$86,500.00
$8,130.00
$35,911.67
$43,777.49
$7,993.60
$7,993.60
$7,993.60
£8,978.74
$5,797.00
$9,799.00
$5,420.00
$16,439.85
$19,648.00
$19,648.00
$26,851.01
$22,124.00
$44,000.00
$184,288.35
$12,259.00
$17,300.00
$17,300.00
$23,200.00
$7,446.25
$10,004.94
$10,371.23
$6,449.00
$6,755.72
$8,158.00
$5,601.25
$5,601.25
$5,032.68
$5,032.68
$5,272.76
$5,992.79
$5,992.79
$5,992.79

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of CIS,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Athletics,

Director of Museum,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Institutional Effectiveness,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of CIS,

Vice President of Finance,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Athletics,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,



N19012
N19016
N19020
N18980
N18981
N19041
N19053
N19039
N19040
N18990
N19026
N19055
N19038
G50024
N19052
N19043
N19051
N19069
N19070
N19071
G50025
N19068
N19061
(50026
N15093
N13080
N19091
N13085
N1S077
N19081
N15082
N19083
N15086
N19100
N19090
N19101
N19079
N19087
N19088
N19076
N139084
N19096
N19097
N19098

Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Custom Techline Podium
Pole Vault Pit (No Tag)
Down Draft Table

HP ProLiant ML 370 G5

HP ProLiant ML 370 G5
Spectrotrometer Quick Scan
Clarity Optical Reader
Polycom 7000 Series
Freightliner FLD

Polycom 7000 Series

Xerox Copier

2008 Ford Fusion

Kawasaki Mule

CAT 3750 48PT

CAT 3750 48PT

CAT 3750 48PT

Plasma Cutting Machine-Upstairs
Precor Elliptical Crosstrainer
G650 Media Gateway RHS
Peripheral Kit w/Linkbox
Modular Smart Array
Mitsubishi XD490U Projector
SimMan Patient Simulator
Custom Techline Podium
Refrigerant System Trainer
Mitsubishi XD490U Projector
Mitsubishi XD490U Projector
Reception Area Desk

Robot with Skins

Emergency Notification System
Sony 5K Projector

Chimera Server (7 tags)
Supercardioid Microphones
2008 Chrysler 300 LX

2008 Chrysler 300 LX

John Deere 5525 Tractor
Hobart Dishwasher

Cybex Pro 3 Treadmill

Cybex Arc Trainer

Cybex Arc Trainer

WF1228
WF125A
WF1258
BA202
BA220
SB107
DW117
WARHOU
WARHOU
HH129
MC119
PL235
RG100
PL225
AC112
WMPORT
RG100
Jw203C
JW203C
JW203C
DW116
CA186
MC103
MC138
WARHOU
TM100
MC122
BA214
HHS
TM200
WEF125A
WF142
PL237A
MC103
WARHOU
WARHOU
PL120
WMPORT
WMPORT
RG100
BA161
DN101
DN123
DN123

No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #

USE802N33B
USE802N33B

1067
SN01379
AID53CSP600480H
1FUWDXYASTP724021

WRT613682
3FAHPO7Z88R175943
JKLAFDE1988502026
FD01213X1RW
FD01213X1RE
FDO1213X1RA

AAT72112070091
150422033052

3CL827B065
6025280

No Serial #
97399
6024120
6011951
32

No Serial #
103003

2.21954E+11
213349-001
2C3KA43D59H565465
2C3KA43D0OSNS17372
RWSG100015972
85-1068008
DOG609550T-9014NN031
D0514750AT90004N38
DO514750AT90004N39

11/29/2007
11/29/2007
11/29/2007
12/2/2007
12/2/2007
12/7/2007
1/10/2008
1/10/2008
1/10/2008
1/14/2008
1/28/2008
1/29/2008
2/4/2008
2/7/2008
3/6/2008
3/11/2008
4/4/2008
4/30/2008
4/30/2008
4/30/2008
5/9/2008
5/15/2008
5/27/2008
6/27/2008
7/20/2008
8/25/2008
8/25/2008
8/28/2008
9/5/2008
9/12/2008
9/12/2008
9/21/2008
9/30/2008
10/3/2008
10/13/2008
10/30/2008
12/14/2008
1/23/2009
1/23/2009
1/30/2009
4/13/2009
6/17/2009
6/17/2009
6/17/2009

$5,992.79
$5,992.79
$5,992.79
$6,724.57
$6,724.57
$15,489.00
$10,590.00
$14,027.00
$14,027.00
$9,177.00
$6,434.00
$11,713.37
$5,500.00
$11,713.37
$8,809.00
$16,625.05
$9,198.00
$6,442.00
$6,442.00
$6,593.00
$9,847.37
$5,720.00
$17,360.38
$10,024.90
$16,618.07
$5,234.76
$30,075.99
$6,505.25
$14,156.00
$5,234.76
$5,234.76
$5,245.65
$8,575.00
$117,178.08
$75,015.70
$44,350.00
$9,213.56
$22,000.00
$22,000.00
$35,934.24
$13,900.88
$5,370.00
$5,495.00
$5,495.00

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Athletics,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Business, Math & Science,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Athletics,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Finance,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Athletics,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Dean of Business, Math & Science,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

President,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,

Vice President of Student Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,



N19123
N19114
N19113
N19124
N19132
N19134
N19127
N19122
N19118
N19116
N19103
N19121
N19120
N19115
N19119
N19117
N19138
N19139
N19130
N19131
N15129
N19135
N19136
N19140
N19137
N19151
N19152
N19150
N19149
N19145
N19142
N19141
N19144
N19147
N19143
N19148
N19146
N19164
N19172
N19176
N19216
N19220
N19221
N19219

Robo Bull/Bronc Body

York Water Chiller

Pulling Unit

Custom Techline Podium

HP ProLiant DL 380 G6

HP ProlLiant DL 380 G6

HP ProlLiant DL 390 G6
Recording/Streaming Device
ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

[TV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

Hybrid Wind and Solar System
Hybrid Wind and Solar System
HP ProLiant DL 380 G6
Potomac Desktop Bundle
PowerDyne PC Software

HP ProLiant DL 380 G6

CAT 2960 48PT

Workstation - 8134

Utility Trailer 8 X 30
Troubleshooting Hyd. Circuits
LV PNEU Fund.

Hyd.2, Electric Control

LV HYD Fund.

Spacesaver: Reference
Spacesaver: Periodicals
Spacesaver: Archive Storage
Spacesaver: Reference
Spacesaver: General
Spacesaver: Microfilm & Maps
Spacesaver: Gov. & Legal
Spacesaver: General & Legal
18' Dual Tandem Gooseneck
2010 Chrysler 300 S

Law Enforcement System
Spacesaver: Microfilm & Maps
Spacesaver: General
Spacesaver: Gov. & Legal
Spacesaver: General & Legal

RG100
CP109
ETC2
WH121
WARHOU
WARHOU
WARHOU
PL210A
HHS
LHSA
LHSB
PL213
JHS

THS

EHS
PL240
AP108
AP108
PL210A
PL110
DW218
MC107
WF121
AP107
WMPORT
AP107
AP107
AP107
AP107
PL101
PL101
PL103
PL101
PL101
PL101
PL101
PL101
RG100
WMPORT
BM156A
PL101
PL101
PL101
PL103

No Serial #
SGVM-330180
AlL1419

No Serial #
USE940N9CO
USE940N9BZ
USE942N4DH
0090FB20F830

ROO04F2BF2FO1
R0O004F2BF2CBB

ROO04F2BFD3BD
Multiple SN's

USE947NBGO
ZOPEXC5Va4d

No Serial #
USEDO7N177
FOC1345V1CW

No Serial #
4P5FD302391131082

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Seriall #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #
16VDX1824A2649500
2C3CAZCVGAH262247
05868/BDIE/

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

No Serial #

6/30/2009
7/23/2009
9/3/2009
9/14/2009
10/13/2009
10/13/2009
10/20/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
10/22/2009
11/20/2009
11/20/2009
12/1/2009
12/2/2009
1/4/2010
3/8/2010
3/8/2010
3/26/2010
5/11/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
6/30/2010
7/29/2010
7/29/2010
8/3/2010
8/10/2010
8/13/2010
8/13/2010
8/13/2010

$14,458.00
$178,000.00
$713,967.94
$7,029.00
$5,232.01
$6,068.00
$5,818.05
$32,005.38
$57,284.56
$57,459.53
$57,459.56
$57,459.56
$59,563.51
$59,863.51
$61,673.84
$61,879.29
$8,517.00
$8,517.00
$5,161.00
$8,377.00
$6,904.95
$5,423.00
$9,342.03
$20,861.00
$8,400.00
$5,291.00
$5,751.00
$6,743.00
$14,804.00
$33,792.69
$40,319.79
$41,247.22
$42,504.94
$71,594.96
$73,301.60
$80,005.34
$155,575.28
$12,225.00
$26,967.00
$43,383.00
$8,144.63
$7,955.00
$8,889.44
$17,286.15

Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Library Services,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Library Services,



N19166
N19170
N19171
N19178
N19158
N139162
N19163
N138175
N19174
N19167
N19183
N19184
N19186
N19189
N19130
N19191
N19192
N19194
N19187
N19193
N19188
N19204
N15205
N18210
N19198
N15202
N19206
N19208
N1920S
N19197
N19196
N19211
N19222
N19223
N19226
N19224
N19225
N19227
N19228
N19230
N19234
N19236
N19229
N19232

2011 Dodge Ram
Workstation/Datacard ID
Datacard Printer

40 Pad CPSpulse System
Server Storage Cabinet
Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Piano Restoration

Goosneck Stock Trailer

2011 Chevrolet Passenger Van
MD-5 Gas Bench

Mitsubishi XD280U Projector
Mitsubishi XD280U Projector
ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed.Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed.Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

ITV Dist. Ed. Equip.

Rodeo Bleachers #1

Rodeo Bleachers #2

Rect & Filtering Module (5 Pieces)
HP Proliant DL 380 G7

Air Compressor

DVR For Security System
DVR For Security System
DVR For Security System
Potomac

Canon Color Scanner

2011 Chevrolet Silverado
Pyxis Med. Admin. System
Xerox Copier

Coates Tire Changer
Electrolux Washer/Extractor
700 Interface Module

DVR For Security System
DVR For Security System
Lift-LOLO

Bluefire SA-Taser

Glock Bluefire Weapon
Screen/Optoma Projector
HON Valido 72" Desk

WMPORT
WARHOU
MC105A
WARHOU
PL123
DW206
PL10S
WH105
RG100
WMPORT
Dw218
CAl44
CA148
PL218
PL241
PL237
PL203
PL216
PL238
PL204
PL217
ENERGY
ENERGY
AP107
MC107
CP103
Jw101
TB106
RH106
WARHOU
Js118
WMPORT
MC137A
15130
DW222
CA185
AC113A
BA142
MC103
DN112
BM156A
BM156A
Jw1o01
MC105

3D7TP2CLOBGS509925
3F3BMML1
NS6779
20464c46
L258-24P
XEG446190
LBD001659
416087
SHMXG2420B1005267
1GAZGZFG1B1100691
03-0016668
3001294
3004425
4684800
5189227
5189440
51839445
5189394
5189320
5189354
4592014
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
USEO51N310
BU1101130121
No Serial #
4.44533E+16
4.44533E+16
2.21954E+11
DW312765
3GCPKSE37BG338288
13216292
XKK388802
1106101275
00652/0400475
UAP693864
4.44533E+16
No Serial #
3598
x00-609329
REW282
1D0G1102111280481
3NV2UC

8/18/2010
8/24/2010
8/24/2010
9/3/2010
9/8/2010
9/10/2010
9/10/2010
9/15/2010
9/22/2010
9/30/2010
10/13/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/5/2010
11/18/2010
11/18/2010
12/9/2010
1/13/2011
2/1/2011
5/12/2011
5/12/2011
5/12/2011
5/19/2011
5/18/2011
6/10/2011
6/15/2011
8/4/2011
8/17/2011
8/22/2011
8/22/2011
8/26/2011
8/26/2011
9/13/2011
9/13/2011
9/13/2011
9/13/2011
10/3/2011

$33,513.00
$6,532.57
$13,211.16
$6,961.88
$8,101.03
$9,949.00
$13,585.00
$14,945.00
$14,907.00
$34,051.00
$9,474.00
$5,115.89
$5,115.89
$34,870.11
$34,870.11
$34,870.11
$36,321.88
$36,321.88
$37,196.08
$44,493.12
$84,501.52
$9,925.34
$9,925.34
$12,351.00
$7,513.24
$10,631.00
$7,004.01
$7,004.01
$7,004.01
$5,890.00
$10,014.45
$30,551.00
$14,346.41
$13,500.00
$5,500.00
$7,400.00
$72,660.00
$22,116.44
$30,822.51
$5,475.50
$6,409.00
$7,069.00
$7,806.00
$7,355.88

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

President,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Arts, Humanities & Career Technology,
Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Athletics,

Director of Athletics,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Athletics,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,

Dean of Students,

Director of CIS,



N19231
N19235
N19237
N19238
N19239
N19240
N19241
N19242
N19243
N19244
N19233
N15249
N19247
N15248
N19251
N19255
N19256
N19250
N19252
N19253
N19254
N19257
N19258
N19260
N19259
N19261
N19268
N19263
N19262
N19267
N19283
N19284
N19266
N19264
N19265
N19274
N19271
N19272
N19269
N19270
N19273
N19275
N19276
N19277

600 Series Gun

Voice Mail Server

Cat Skid Loader

High Jump Pit (No Tag)
Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Lightning Station

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Scotsman Ice Machine
Resilite Mat/Custom Logo
HP ProLiant DL 380p G&
HP ProLiant DL 380p G8
HP ProLiant DL 380P G8
Roadster 22K-J Projector
Fortinet Fortigate 300C
Fortinet Fortimail 400C
HP ProlLiant DL 380p G&
Cat Front End Loader
Glock Bluefire Weapon
Glock Bluefire Weapon
DVR For Security System
Hybrid Power System/Trailer
2011 Chevrolet Express Van
Hybrid Power System
2012 Dodge Charger
SimJunior Manikin

Sony Camcorder

Sony Camcorder

Clarke Floor Machine
DVR For Security System
DVR For Security System
2012 Chevrolet Impala
2012 Dodge Caravan
2012 Dodge Charger
Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

HON Announce 72" Desk
2012 Chevrolet Express Van
8000 Series Gun

CAl24
WARHOU
RG100
SB107
BA156
MH115
TOWER
BA130
15101
CA128
CA203
MC107
MC107
MC107
EVECTR
WARHOU
WARHOU
MC107
DWwi111
BM156A
BM156A
BA106
ETC1
WMPORT
ETC1
WMPORT
MC122A
CAL46A
CAl146A
CA188
w101
ENERGY
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
HC107
MC117
MH124
WM105A
HH224
BA118
15122
WMPORT
CAl24

13130
VMD213REI004765-010811
CAT0242BCS01253
No Serial #

AE9198111
AE9198142
No Serial #
FQVTOXSV
XEF440218
9.08132E+12

42042
USE2172KT2
USE2172LHX
USE2172018

290385009
FG300C3913600429
FE400C3M12000104
USE2204BBL
CAT0242BCSRS01715

1025501
4.46103E+16
1J95U1214C1287662
1GAZG1FG2B1136715
0878HG0697
2C3CDXHG1CH276722
232M23120010
116526
311273
8000070765
No Serial #
4.46103E+16
2G1WFSE36C1146509
2C4)DGAG3CR343005
2C3DXHGXCH276721
AE9208800
AE9208933
AE9208393
AES208881
XKK412959
XKK412931
3A055W
1GAZG1FG4C1136460
14740

10/7/2011
10/13/2011
11/2/2011
11/11/2011
12/14/2011
12/21/2011
1/9/2012
1/19/2012
1/19/2012
1/26/2012
3/22/2012
5/8/2012
5/8/2012
5/8/2012
5/8/2012
5/18/2012
5/18/2012
6/6/2012
6/15/2012
6/21/2012
6/27/2012
6/29/2012
7/26/2012
7/26/2012
7/30/2012
7/30/2012
8/10/2012
8/16/2012
8/16/2012
8/20/2012
8/20/2012
8/20/2012
8/23/2012
8/23/2012
8/23/2012
8/24/2012
8/24/2012
8/24/2012
8/24/2012
8/24/2012
8/24/2012
8/28/2012
11/8/2012
11/9/2012

$6,498.00
$5,389.46
$36,777.00
$6,550.00
$5,750.00
$5,750.00
$8,327.88
$8,954.00
$8,954.00
$6,589.75
$6,765.00
$6,952.23
$6,988.73
$6,988.73
$91,766.23
$8,920.00
$12,005.10
$8,556.77
$38,248.00
$7,917.00
$7,917.00
$8,552.44
$20,875.00
$21,485.59
$19,125.00
$28,246.99
$38,236.67
$5,094.00
$6,990.00
$5,999.00
$36,608.20
$48,792.03
$18,699.99
$23,139.54
$28,246.99
$6,928.00
$7,277.00
$7,277.00
$7,627.00
$9,275.00
$10,170.00
$5,843.00
$10,969.99
$6,161.00

Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Athletics,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Director of Athletics,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Dean of Administrative Services,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Institutional Effectiveness,
Director of Institutional Effectiveness,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Administrative Services,
Dean of Administrative Services,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Museum,

Dean of Public Safety & Industry,
Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

President,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,



N19279
N19278
N19280
N19281
N19282
N19285
N19287
N19288
N19289
N19297
N19290
N19291
N19292
N19293
N19294
N19295
N19298
N19300
N19301
N19302
N19304
N19305
N19307
N19308
N19309
N19310
N19311
N19313
N19312
N19316
N19315
N19314
N139317
N19322
N19323
N19319
N158320
N19321
N19318
N159325
N19326
N19328
N19329
N19331

Scotchman 50 Ton
Datacard ID Machine

The Arm Machine
SmartGrid Technology Panel
Fuel Cell Technology Panel
Continental Washer/Extractor
HP ProlLiant DL 380p G8
HP ProLiant DL 380p G8
HP ProLiant DL 380p G8
Virtual SAN P4500

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

Xerox Copier

DVR For Security System
Utility Trailer 8 X 24
Hustler Riding Mower
Xerox Copier

Vollrath Serving Counter
Vollrath Serving Counter
Clark C25 LP Forklift

Sharp 80" LED TV

Sharp 80" LED TV

Sharp 80" LED TV

Sharp 80" LED TV

HP ProLiant DL 380e G8
Extron Matrix Switcher

3D AV Rover

DVR For Security System
DVR For Security System
Nuvera 100 Mainframe
2013 Dodge Truck

Massey Ferguson Tractor
John Deere Camo
Refurbished EMSCO 80 Unit
D Co Centaur Server
Market Forge Sterilizer
Vulcan Convection Steamer
Shelving: CD & DVD

2014 Starcraft Shuttle Bus
2014 Starcraft Shuttle Bus
500 Barrel Tank

DW116
WARHOU
BB100
TM200
TM200
BB111
WARHOU
WARHOU
WARHOU
WARHOU
PL115
Js136
BM135
BA210
WF142
WF132
DN133
WMPORT
WMPORT
CA149
BA157
BA157
WMPORT
BA150
MC118B
MC118B
MC1188B
MC104
MC105A
WF150
Jwio1
HC108B
AC113A
WMPORT
WMPORT
EQ108
ETC2
WARHOU
HH126
BA162
PL101
WMPORT
WMPORT
ETC2

2730K1012
J3VOWV1/SP75PLUS
96238
No Serial #
07183-1213-0375
1461785K12
USE302SHKR
USE302SHKJ
USE302SHKS
MXQ2470V2R
AE9882023
AE9882194
AE9882037
AES882017
AE9882014
AE9882228
No Serial #
1192326
12051372
AES891805
D246-00621442-001
D246-00621442-002
P2321-0069-9862CNF
309825931
309825937
309825892
309825936
MXQ3380CeV
AQP78DW E26294
2004255
4.04557E+17
4.04645E+17
TB7-000961
3C63RRGLXDG568238
FY788823
1MO0855DSIDM062013
DF-80-109-48
CZYW027901
75037
46-301825
No Serial #
EEA23802
EEA23803
ST500-443

11/14/2012
11/14/2012
11/27/2012
11/28/2012
11/28/2012
1/31/2013
2/13/2013
2/13/2013
2/13/2013
2/13/2013
3/28/2013
3/28/2013
3/28/2013
3/28/2013
3/28/2013
3/28/2013
4/4/2013
5/23/2013
6/24/2013
8/8/2013
9/12/2013
9/12/2013
10/2/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/3/2013
10/15/2013
10/17/2013
10/31/2013
11/1/2013
11/11/2013
12/3/2013
12/5/2013
12/13/2013
3/31/2014
3/31/2014
4/16/2014

$10,350.00
$1L74550
$6,500.00
$9,289.50
$10,709.50
$5,969.50
$8,676.79
$8,676.79
$8,676.79
$45,313.99
$7,927.00
$7,927.00
$7,927.00
$7,927.00
$7,927.00
$7,927.00
$5,812.94
$5,950.00
$12,906.66
$7,927.00
$10,482.24
$10,482.25
$25,660.00
$5,450.76
$5,450.76
$5,450.76
$5,450.76
$5,619.28
$5,635.00
$15,000.00
$17,167.39
$17,167.40
$150,849.12
$45,731.99
$19,950.00
$11,524.00
$19,131.22
$5,587.68
$13,550.31
$7,841.68
$5,009.80
$79,482.00
$84,460.00
$9,500.00

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Athletics,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President of Student Services,

Vice President of Student Services,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Vice President for Training and QOutreach,
Dean of Administrative Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Business, Math & Science,

Vice President of Student Services,
Director of Library Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,



N19332
N19333
N19330
N19335
N19336
N19337
N19338
N19339
N19340
N19341
N19342
N19343
N19344
N19345
N19346
N19350
N19351
N19353
N19354
N19356
N19355
N19357
N19358
N19359
N19360
N19361
N19362
N19363
N19364
N19366
N19365
N19367
N19369
N19368
N19370
N19371
N19372
N19373
N19376
N19374
N19375
N19377
N19378
N19386

500 Barrel Tank

Horizontal Seperator

500 Barrel Tank

2014 Freightliner Truck
Vulcan Convection Oven
2012 Dragon Trailer
Vertical Light Tower

Polaris Ranger

High Pressure Wellhead ( 2 items )
Recovery 9265 Backup
2014 Freightliner

Frac Tank

Frac Tank

Backhoe

Vacuum Pump

Enclosed Trailer 8 X 24
Behringer Sound System
Champion Paper Cutter
Self Check-Out System
Classic Non-Folding Cage
ASA IPS Firewall

CoolTech AC Machine
Rogue I1SO Leg Press 35
2014 Dodge Ram

2014 Chrysler 300C

2014 Dodge Ram

Video Management System
Tomcat 255 Burnishing Machine
HP Designjet Z6800
Enclosed Trailer 8 X 30
Truck Driving Simulator Cab
Vulcan Gas Range

Heater Treater

2015 Chevrolet Suburban
HP ProLiant DL 380 G9

CAT 2960 48PT

Midas Digital Mixer

Xerox Copier

Shure Wireless Mike System
HP Proliant DL 380 G9

HP Proliant DL 380 G9
Daktronics Baseball Scoreboard
John Deere 310K Backhoe
AC/DC Trainer

ETC2
ETC2
ETC2
WARINV
BA162
ETC1
ETC2
SB107
ETC2
MC103
ETEL
ETC2
ETC2
ETC2
ETC1
WMPORT
BM119B
AC112
PL101
BB100
MC107
DW221
CA100
WMPORT
WMPORT
WMPORT
MC103
WM101
AC113A
ETC1
ETC1
BA162
ETC2
WMPORT
MC107
MC118C
TRACPB
PL221A
TRACPB
MC107
MC107
BBCON
WMPORT
AP106

ST500-467
SP195
STS00-442
1FVACWCYOEHFY2567
54-1069580
1D9ST4221CUB61939
0495PR0O2V14
4AXARHA45A9EEB04999
13120863-007
9265-700-70415
3ALXFBCGGFDGB5236
14817
130566
170310KETEE263731
589678
135CG3228FICA0448
Could not get to SN
1401745
No Serial #
No Serial #
FTX182810GL
E6A1442006194
No Serial #
3C6JR6DGXEG303575
2C3CCAEGYOEH255639
3C6URACLEEG159989
C8250FD0O6M20125
79648
MY4714900)
B10 2287432
No Serial #
481827632
7935
1GNSC5EC9FR559879
MXQ50701FW
FCW1846A4DZ
§$1401581B31
AE9551044
No Serial # Visible
MXQ51405KH
MXQ51405KG
7154
1T0310LXIFF284254
No Serial #

4/16/2014
4/16/2014
4/16/2014
4/30/2014
5/8/2014
5/21/2014
5/28/2014
5/30/2014
6/4/2014
6/18/2014
6/24/2014
6/25/2014
6/25/2014
6/25/2014
6/30/2014
10/3/2014
10/15/2014
11/5/2014
11/5/2014
11/13/2014
11/13/2014
11/17/2014
11/18/2014
11/19/2014
11/19/2014
11/19/2014
12/10/2014
12/15/2014
12/16/2014
12/16/2014
12/16/2014
1/15/2015
1/27/2015
1/27/2015
3/5/2015
3/12/2015
4/9/2015
4/17/2015
5/4/2015
5/6/2015
5/6/2015
6/12/2015
6/29/2015
7/23/2015

$9,500.00
$11,598.00
$12,376.00
$89,997.00
$6,612.00
$42,600.00
$10,766.00
$8,354.00
$18,397.69
$47,749.18
$119,625.00
$19,500.00
$29,175.00
$74,625.07
$11,000.00
$14,500.00
$39,188.48
$30,995.00
$33,070.00
$5,126.75
$37,396.52
$7,323.70
$5,701.48
$23,492.99
$24,983.99
$39,856.99
$72,489.30
$13,780.50
$11,901.00
$93,262.00
$215,925.00
$6,928.31
$7,543.75
$12,300.00
$9,353.80
$5,068.50
$5,374.99
$6,830.00
$6,323.13
$16,418.94
$16,418.94
$39,998.00
$73,627.94
$5,620.76

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Vice President for Training and Qutreach
Vice President for Training and Qutreach
Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President of Student Services,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Vice President for Training and Outreach
Director of Athletics,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,
Director of CIS,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Finance,

Director of Library Services,

Director of Athletics,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Physical Plant,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President of Finance,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,

Vice President of Student Services,

Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Finance,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Vice President for Training and Outreach,

1

»

’



N19387 AC/DC Trainer AP106 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $5,620.76 Vice President for Training and Outreach,

N19388 AC/DC Trainer AP106 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $5,620.76 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19389 AC/DC Trainer AP106 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $5,620.76 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19390 AC/DC Trainer AP106 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $5,620.76 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19382 Distribution AP107 G-319656 7/23/2015 $15,560.30 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19383 Distribution AP107 G-319657 7/23/2015 $15,560.30 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19384 Distribution AP107 G-319658 7/23/2015 $15,560.30 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19385 Power, Energy Trans AP107 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $15,560.30 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19380 Pneumatic Training System AP107 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $19,173.80 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19393 Mechanical Training System AP107 G-317908 7/23/2015 $19,473.60 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19394 Mechanical Training System AP107 G-318466 7/23/2015 $19,473.60 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19395 Mechanical Training System AP107 G-317424 7/23/2015 $19,473.60 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19396 Mechanical Training System AP107 G-317425 7/23/2015 $19,473.60 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19397 Mechanical Training System AP107 G-317909 7/23/2015 $19,473.60 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19391 Industrial Controls of Motors AP107 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $22,157.80 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19392 Industrial Controls of Motors AP107 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $22,157.80 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19398 Industrial Wiring AP107 G-314606 7/23/2015 $30,766.90 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19399 Industrial Wiring AP107 G-315044 7/23/2015 $30,766.90 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19379 Hydraulics Training System AP107 No Serial # 7/23/2015 $52,414.60 Vice President for Training and Outreach,
N19381 Instr. & Process Control AP107 G-319644 7/23/2015 $174,146.20 Vice President for Training and Qutreach,
N19401 HP Proliant DL 380 GS MC107 MXQ52501K8 8/5/2015 $13,323.74 Director of CIS,

N19402 HP ProlLiant DL 380 GS MC107 MXQ52501K7 8/5/2015 $13,323.74 Director of CIS,

N19403 Server For Security System MC103 C8250FEQ4N10039 8/11/2015 $59,299.75 Dean of Administrative Services,

N19404 Six Horse Panel Walker RG100 No Serial # 8/26/2015 $32,517.00 Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
N19405 Epson G6970WU Projector WH101 VVSF560043L 9/24/2015 $6,379.00 Director of CIS,

N19407 HP Proliant DL 380 GS MC107 MXQ532067G 10/6/2015 $7,675.11 Director of CIS,

N19408 HP ProLiant DL 380 G9 MC107 MXQ532067) 10/6/2015 $7,675.11 Director of CIS,

N19409 HP Proliant DL 380 G9 MC107 MXQ532067K 10/6/2015 $7,675.11 Director of CIS,

N19406 HP Proliant DL 380 GS MC107 MXQ532067H 10/6/2015 $7,675.12 Director of CIS,

N19410 Livestream HD550 CA146A 5.50623E+13 10/16/2015 $7,498.64 Director of Institutional Effectiveness,
N19412 Server for Security System MC103 C8250FE30N20151 10/16/2015 $113,315.79 Dean of Administrative Services,

N19414 Russwood Circulation Desk PL101A No Serial # 12/11/2015 $11,023.88 Director of Library Services,

N19415 Console Control Board CAl46B No Serial # 1/8/2016 $5,295.52 Director of Institutional Effectiveness,
N19416 Server For Security System MC103 2M25251BVY 3/29/2016 $52,214.94 Dean of Administrative Services,

N19417 Retail Pro POS System HC106 B7L8JB2 5/27/2016 $16,732.10 Director of Museum,

N19430 CAT 3650 48PT RH FDO2027EOEC 8/22/2016 $6,112.30 Director of CIS,

N19431 CAT 3650 48PT TB FDO2027Q076 8/22/2016 $6,112.30 Director of CIS,

N19419 CAT 3650 48PT 15104 FDO2022Q17R 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19420 CAT 3650 48PT HH210 FDO2022E227 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19421 CAT 3650 48PT MH106 FDO2022E2PO 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19422 CAT 3650 48PT BA215 FDO2022E2VH 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19423 CAT 3650 48PT BA135 FDO2022E2VK 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19424 CAT 3650 48PT PL239 FDO2022Q17M 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,

N19425 CAT 3650 48PT CAl62 FDO2022E2D8 8/22/2016 $9,227.80 Director of CIS,



N19426
N19427
N19428
N19429
N19432
N19418
N19434
N139433
N159435
N139438
N19437
N19440
N15441
N19442
N19439
N15448
N19443
N19445
N18444
N15446
N19447
N139452
N159453
N19451
N19454
N19455
N19456
N19457
N19450
N19458
N19459
N19460
N19461
N19462
N19463
N19474
N19472
N19473
N19464
N19465
N19467
N19466
N19468
N19469

CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 6807 - XLChassis
Server For Security System
Avaya Phone System
Dell Database Server
Utah Switcher
Leightronix Server
Nursing Annie Manikin
Nursing Annie Manikin
Nursing Anne Manikin
SimMan 3G Manikin
Overland Snap Server
SimCart RX

Open Display Merchandiser
Lo Boy 90 Whirlpool
CAT 3650 48PT

2017 Ford Expedition XL
CAT 3650 48PT

CAT 3650 48PT

Tintri Network Storage
Nevco Scoreboard
Nevco Scoreboard
Nevco Statistics Displays
Yard Ramp

Epson Pro L1300U

Thor Encoder Convertor
HP ProLiant DL 360 G9
HP ProlLiant DL 360 G9
HP Proliant DL 380 G9
HP Proliant DL 380 G9
HP ProLiant DL 380 G9
Manley Slam Stereo
Genelec Digital Input
Genelec Digital Input
Nexus Switch

Pro Station Sound Board
Hot Food Bar

CAT 3650 48PT

Fortinet Analyzer 400E
Fortinet Fortimail 400E

WF158
MC103
BM146A
JW203C
15139
MC107
MC103
MC107
MC107
MC107
MC107
MC122
MC137
MC137
MC142
MC107
MC137A
BA159
CA128
BM106
WMPORT
BM106
BM106
MC107
CA189
CA189
CA189
CG100
HC116
MC107
MC107
MC107
MC107
MC107
MC107
BM109
BM109
BM109
MC107
8M109
BA162
Jw203C
MC107
MC107

FDO2022E2VG
FDO2022E2D7
FDO2022E225
FDO2022Q1CU
FDO2022Q11Z
FGE20410XD5
C8250FE42N10015
USE62677TH
DL1KQD2

10162941
00EOFB1001DO
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
8C06360271
AT51000114

2562

TOMS08Y021

16490705
FD0O2042E2B)
1FMJU1FTXHEA49040
FD02045Q05D
FDO2045E0BM
0211-1717-007
No Serial #
No Serial #
No Serial #
DCQH11-3.3
X2WQ730010L
2SDI-ATSC/LL/AC3/1115-12
MXQ72502HV
MXQ72502M8
MXQ725006NL
MXQ725006NM
MXQ725006NK
SLAMS75A
1238APM21000237
1238APM21000238
FOC2133ROLS
No Serial #
No Serial #
FDO2130E2CQ
FL-4HE3R17900446
FE-400E3A17000274

8/22/2016
8/22/2016
8/22/2016
8/22/2016
8/22/2016
8/22/2016
9/1/2016
9/1/2016
9/29/2016
11/2/2016
11/2/2016
12/15/2016
12/15/2016
12/15/2016
12/15/2016
12/20/2016
1/10/2017
1/19/2017
1/19/2017
2/8/2017
2/8/2017
2/9/2017
2/9/2017
5/11/2017
6/2/2017
6/2/2017
6/2/2017
6/13/2017
6/20/2017
6/27/2017
6/30/2017
6/30/2017
7/7/2017
7/7/2017
7/7/2017
8/4/2017
8/4/2017
8/4/2017
8/14/2017
8/22/2017
9/4/2017
9/27/2017
10/19/2017
10/19/2017

$9,227.80
$9,227.80
$9,227.80
$9,227.80
$9,227.80
$96,765.80
$36,703.78
$59,249.22
$10,774.00
$7,995.00
$9,593.00
$8,800.04
$8,800.04
$8,800.04
$102,097.21
$5,999.82
$11,700.00
$6,458.00
$8,515.00
$10,973.00
$36,106.50
$7,625.60
$7,625.60
$68,647.00
$7,300.00
$7,300.00
$8,033.81
$13,699.99
$7,799.00
$5,230.00
$8,053.40
$9,400.98
$12,791.55
$12,791.55
$12,791.55
$5,980.00
$7,609.30
$7,609.30
$12,519.10
$228,500.00
$7,631.83
$10,049.50
$8,085.23
$13,300.74

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Institutional Effectiveness,

Director of Institutional Effectiveness,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Student Services,

Director of Athletics,

Director of CIS,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Athletics,

Director of Physical Plant,

Director of Museum,

Director of Institutional Effectiveness,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Vice President of Student Services,

Dean of Administrative Services,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,



N19470
N19475
N19476
N19477
N19478
N19480
N19479
N19484
N19481
N19482
N19483

Fortinet Fortigate 900D

DW Drum Set

Comrex

Analog Audio Interface
Analog Audio Interface

Rack Server 630

RPCS1830 for RealPresence Clariti
Unitrends RC926S Appliance
CAT 3650 48PT

Extron HDMI DA

Extron HDMI DA

MC107
BM1108B
CAl146B
BM109
BM109
NE

NE
MC107
BA135
BM103
BM105

FG-900D3916800530

NXP0250
BLDCV63000056H
BLDCV71000117H

§265-700-70415
Not Visible
No Serial #
No Serial #

658598

10/19/2017
10/30/2017
12/7/2017
12/11/2017
12/11/2017
1/18/2018
1/18/2018
2/8/2018
2/20/2018
2/21/2018
2/21/2018

$19,713.64
$7,662.77
$6,336.67
$5,071.82
$5,071.82
$5,940.00
$31,100.10
$41,499.00
$10,920.70
$6,082.35
$6,082.35

Director of CIS,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of Institutional Effectiveness,

Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Dean of Distance Learning & Professional Studies,
Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,

Director of CIS,



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BUSINESS OFFICE

5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240
Phone: (575) 492-2769
Fax: (575) 492-2768

To: NMIJC Board Members
From: Josh Morgan
RE: Disposition of Del Norte Inventory

Date: June 21,2018

At the May Board Meeting, the Board approved for administration to determine the best method of
disposal of the personal property located at the Del Norte Fitness Center. Some of the equipment has
been repurposed to other areas on campus. In regards to the equipment remaining at Del Norte, we
have reached out to the Lea County High Schools to inquire about their interest in the College donating
the equipment from the Del Norte Fitness Center. We will also reach out to some of the other high
schools not located within Lea County after the Lea County High Schools have had a chance to look over
the equipment. After the high schools have had a chance to look at the equipment, if there is still
equipment remaining, we will dispose of the equipment through public sale.

In preparation of the disposal of this equipment and in accordance with Article 6 (“Sale of Public
Property”) Section 31-6-1, New Mexico Junior College is requesting to dispose of the Del Norte Fitness
Center inventory by either donation to a public entity or through public sale. Upon approval by the
NMJC Board of Directors, a letter will be sent to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA) and the Higher
Education Department (HED) notifying of our intentions to dispose of such inventory. Pursuant to
Paragraph B of Section 13-6-1, New Mexico Junior College will wait 30 days from the notice to OSA and
HED to dispose of the equipment.



Attached is a list of inventory items we are requesting to dispose.

In accordance with State Statute 13-6-1, we hereby approve the disposition of New Mexico Junior
College Del Norte Fitness Center equipment through donation to a public entity or through public sale.

Pat Chappelle Josh Morgan
Board Chair Accountant/Controller

New Mexico Junior College New Mexico Junior College



Tag # Description Location Code Serial or Vin # Acquisition Date Acquired Value Department

D00115 Table and Chairs DN114 No Serial # 3/17/2015 $608.24 Del Norte Department,
H10346 Cybex Ab Machine DN124 D0521120909062 6/17/2009 $3,141.00 Del Norte Department,
H10583 Raypack Pool Heater DN113 1112M001174 1/13/2009 $2,100.00 Del Norte Department,
H11288 Tread Ladder DN112 No Serial # 10/3/2011 $3,671.18 Del Norte Department,
H11835 Nautilus Treadmill DN123 100152512092002 11/15/2012 $4,162.81 Del Norte Department,
H11836 Nautilus Treadmill DN123 100152512080118 11/15/2012 $3,909.06 Del Norte Department,
H11837 Nautilus Treadmill DN123 100152512092003 11/15/2012 $3,909.06 Del Norte Department,
H11838 Nautilus Treadmill DN123 100152512092001 11/15/2012 $3,909.06 Del Norte Department,
H11839 Nautilus Treadmill DN123 100152512092007 11/15/2012 $3,909.06 Del Norte Department,
H12115 Commercial VR Pro Bike DN123 EE520G03059 10/16/2013 $1,142.00 Del Norte Department,
H12117 Commercial Treadmill DN123 EE130120387 10/16/2013 $2,460.00 Del Norte Department,
H12118 Commercial Treadmill DN123 EE130120388 10/16/2013 $2,460.00 Del Norte Department,
H12143 Cybex Prone Leg Curl DN124 H091312140122N 10/31/2013 $3,560.00 Del Norte Department,
N12732 Storage Building DN100 No Serial # 4/22/1996 $2,495.00 Del Norte Department,
N12909 Trotter Chin Up Dip Assist DN124 9629813 4/1/1996 $2,156.00 Del Norte Department,
N15844 ClubTrack Treadmill DN123 No Serial # 9/5/2000 $4,359.47 Del Norte Department,
N15845 ClubTrack Treadmill DN101 No Serial # 8/16/2000 $4,359.47 Del Norte Department,
N17188 Body Solid Lat Machine DN124 2WC70052502 11/5/2002 $1,375.00 Del Norte Department,
N17674 Dech Stor-A-Way Container DN112 No Serial # 10/18/2003 $1,091.49 Del Norte Department,
N17686 Precor Elliptical DN123 EFX 556 12/8/2003 $4,245.00 Del Norte Department,
N18068 Precor Elliptical DN123 AXFJE10050006 6/23/2005 $4,695.00 Del Norte Department,
N18966 Precor Elliptical DN123 AXGEJ25070027 11/13/2007 $5,032.68 Del Norte Department,
N18967 Precor Elliptical DN123 AXGEJ25070018 11/13/2007 $5,032.68 Del Norte Department,
N18968 Nautilus Crossover Tower DN124 0014597WDAY07370049 2/8/2008 $3,330.86 Del Norte Department,
N18969 Nautilus Pulldown Tower DN124 0G14597WDAY07370048 2/8/2008 $2,126.16 Del Norte Department,
N19096 Cybex Pro 3 Treadmill DN101 DO609550T-9014NNO31 6/17/2009 $5,370.00 Del Norte Department,
N19097 Cybex Arc Trainer DN123 D0514750AT90004N38 6/17/2009 $5,495.00 Del Norte Department,
N19098 Cybex Arc Trainer DN123 DO514750AT90004N39 6/17/2009 $5,495.00 Del Norte Department,

N19230 Lift-LOLO DN112 3998 9/13/2011 $5,475.50 Del Norte Department,



	Board Agenda
	Board Minutes
	NMJC - LFC Hearing June 2018
	Board Reports
	Board Policy Manual Revisions
	Annual Inventory Board Certification - FY18
	Disposal of Del Norte Inventory

